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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
“STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the
decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the
Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group’) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars
given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM
Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all
reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is
accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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Hong Kong
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT
THREZERS

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group recorded a loss of approximately HK$32.1 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021, compared with the loss of
approximately HK$41.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2020, it reduced by approximately HK$9.5 million. As disclosed in
the Company’s announcement dated 7 March 2022, the loss for
the year ended 31 December 2021 was mainly due to (i) the fair
value losses amounting to approximately HK$6.7 million arising from
the Group’s unlisted equity investment in the limited partnership
engaged in investing in new medicine development projects
classified as financial assets at fair value through its profit or loss
during the year ended 31 December 2021, and (i) the change of
government policy in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) on
the new automobile emission standard (‘China 6 Standard”). The
PRC government requires the parallel importers of motor vehicles
to obtain certification administered by the Ministry of Ecology and
Environment of the PRC (“EE Certification”) for China 6 Standard
imported motor vehicles before offering the same for sale in the PRC
(the “Certification Process”). Only a limited number of the Group’s
China 6 Standard imported motor vehicles have gone through the
Certification Process and could be offered for sale in the PRC during
the year ended 31 December 2021 and thus causing the business
under this segment was seriously affected.

The Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 recorded total
revenue of approximately HK$24.2 million, which was a decrease
of approximately HK$44.9 million compared with the last year. It
was due to a record of sales of motor vehicles, provision of agency
services and accessories sourcing segment approximately HK$23.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2021, compared with
approximately HK$67.8 million for the previous year, representing a
decrease of approximately HK$44.5 million.

The performance of the sales of motor vehicles segment has been
seriously affected since the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic, the
on-going Sino-US trade war and the change of the PRC government
policy. For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recorded
the revenue of sales of motor vehicles where the Group acts as
principal approximately HK$21.6 million and agency and service fees
income from accessories sourcing approximately HK$1.7 million.
Approximately HK$62.7 million and approximately HK$5.1 million
were recorded respectively for the revenue of sales of motor vehicles
where the Group acts as principal and agency and service fees
income from accessories sourcing for the year ended 31 December
2020.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT

In 2019, the Group invested in the new medicine development
market in the PRC, the limited partnership of the Group co-operates
with its business partner in the joint development of four new
medicines in the treatment of lymphoma, cell tumors, colorectal
cancer and multidrug-resistant tuberculosis. As at 31 December
2021, one of the new medicines has entered into the phase | of
clinical trial and the others are still in the researching stage.

For proprietary stock trading, the Group recorded an unrealised gain
of approximately HK$0.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2021.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Results of the Group

The Group recorded total revenue of approximately HK$24.2 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021 as compared to total revenue
of approximately HK$69.1 million for the previous year, representing
a decrease of approximately HK$44.9 million or approximately
65.0%. The sharp decrease of revenue was primarily due to the
decrease in sales of motor vehicles business in PRC.

The Group recorded a loss for the year amounted to approximately
HK$32.1 million, compared with a loss of approximately HK$41.6
million for the last year, representing a decrease of loss of
approximately 22.8%.

The loss included the fair value losses arising from the Group’s
interest in the limited partnership engaged in the business of
investing in new medicine development projects at the fair value
through its profit or loss of approximately HK$6.7 million for the
year under review, compared with fair value losses of approximately
HK$15.7 million for the previous year.

The loss also included the impairment loss on trade deposits paid
and other receivables reversed of approximately HK$3.8 million for
the year under review, compared with impairment loss on trade
deposits paid and other receivables recognised of approximately
HK$10.8 million for the previous year.

No provision was needed for such onerous contracts in the sales
of motor vehicles, provision of agency services and accessories
sourcing segment for the year under review, compared with provision
for onerous contracts reversed of approximately HK$4.3 million for
the previous year.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT
THREZERS

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group’s current assets as at 31 December 2021 amounted
to approximately HK$255.9 million compared with approximately
HK$193.9 million as at 31 December 2020 and the liquidity of
the Group, as demonstrated by the current ratio (current assets
over current liabilities) was 2.5 times, compared with 6.0 times
for previous year. Among them, the financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss were approximately HK$1.4 million (2020:
approximately HK$1.2 million) which invested in the equity securities
listed in Hong Kong. As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s cash
and bank balances and pledged deposits were approximately
HK$121.3 million (2020: approximately HK$109.8 million) of which
approximately HK$6.1 million (2020: approximately HK$16.3 million)
were held on behalf of clients in trust and segregated accounts
and approximately HK$61.0 million were pledged deposits (2020:
HK$NIl).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s total borrowings amounted to
approximately HK$10.0 million, which wholly repayable in October
2023 (2020: approximately HK$0.2 million was repayable within one
year). That borrowings were secured by charges over the Group’s
leasehold land and buildings as well as corporate guarantee issued
by the Company. The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December
2021 (calculated by the total liabilities of approximately HK$116.9
million over equity attributable to the owners of the Company of
approximately HK$178.4 million) is 65.5% (2020: 17.5%). Taking
into account of the amount of liquid assets in hand, the Board is
of the view that the Group has sufficient financial resources for
future development of the existing business of the Group and other
business when investment opportunities arise.

The equity attributable to the owners of the Company amounted
to approximately HK$178.4 million as at 31 December 2021,
representing a decrease of approximately HK$28.0 million, or 13.6%
from that of 31 December 2020. The decrease was mainly due to
loss for the year attributable to the owners of the Company.

The Group manages the foreign exchange exposure arising from
its normal course of business activities and investments in foreign
operations by funding its local operations and investments through
cash flow generated from business transaction locally. As at the end
of the year, the Group did not have any material un-hedged foreign
exchange exposure of interest rate mismatch. Foreign currency
exposure did not pose a significant risk for the Group. However, we
will continue to stay vigilant and closely monitor our exposure to
movements of relevant currency.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT

Capital structure
As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s issued share capital was
7,748,958,120 shares of HK$0.01 each.

Sales of motor vehicles, provision of agency services and
accessories sourcing

It recorded approximately HK$23.3 million of revenue for the year
under review compared with approximately HK$67.8 million for
the last year, representing a decrease of revenue of approximately
65.6%. It is principally engaged in motor vehicles business in the
PRC, in particular, sales of motor vehicles and motor vehicles parts.
For the year under review, the change in government policy in
relation to automobile emission standard in the PRC, it led to the
motor vehicles business was seriously affected. As the Certification
Process for those China 6 Standard motor vehicles of the Group
have taken longer than expected and only a limited number of the
Group’s China 6 Standard imported motor vehicles have gone
through the Certification Process and could be offered for sale in the
PRC and incurred a slight profit of approximately HK$0.5 million for
the year (2020: loss approximately HK$1.9 million) which is arrived
at after taking into impairment loss on trade deposits paid and other
receivables reversed amounted to approximately HK$3.8 million
(2020: impairment loss on trade deposits paid and other receivables
recognised of approximately HK$10.8 million).

Brokerage and securities margin financing service

Total revenue of this segment recorded approximately HK$0.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2021, compared with
approximately HK$1.3 million for the last year. This segment loss
reached approximately HK$1.2 million while loss of approximately
HK$1.6 million for the last year.

Trading and principal investments

The securities trading recorded no realised gain or loss for
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. It recorded an
unrealised fair value gains of approximately HK$0.3 million for
the year under review, compared with an unrealised fair value
losses of approximately HK$0.2 million of the previous year. This
segment showed an operating loss of approximately HK$3.4 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021 and it recorded a loss of
approximately HK$5.5 million for the last year.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT
THREZERS

CHARGES ON ASSETS

Leasehold land and buildings of the Group with a carrying amount of
approximately HK$22.7 million (2020: approximately HK$24.3 million)
were pledged for credit facilities granted to the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any contingent
liabilities (2020: Nil).

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES/FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS

There was no other material acquisition/disposal which would have
been required to be disclosed under the GEM Listing Rules for the
year under review and the Group has no concrete plans for any
material investments.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a workforce of 49
employees (2020: 47). The total staff costs, including Directors’
emoluments, amounted to approximately HK$14.1 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: approximately HK$18.7
million). The Group’s remuneration policies are reviewed on an
annual basis and commensurate with the industry pay level. The
remuneration package includes basic salary, provident fund, medical
benefits and discretionary bonus. The Group has also adopted a
share option scheme as an added incentive for its employees.

OUTLOOK

As at 31 December 2021, almost 96.3% revenue of the Group came
from the segment of sales of motor vehicles, provision of agency
services and accessories sourcing in the PRC.

As disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 19 March 2018,
the motor vehicles business has a risk of reliance on a small number
of customers. As at 31 December 2021, EE R AN ZEHIEE S A
fE/AF) (transliterated as Chongging Sheng Yu Hong Jia International
Trading Company Limited) (“Sheng Yu Hong Jia”) has improved its
number of customers and increased to 54 customers and with 37
customers in the progress of negotiation. Sheng Yu Hong Jia will
strive to increase more customers to reduce the level of reliance in
the future.

BEEIER
AEBREELN22,700,0008 7 (ZE_F
F 1 £924,300,0008T) 2 HE LT RIEFE
MR TFAEEZEEMEFIRT-

HAER
TR+ A=t+—H ' FrEELE
FEHRAEE(CEZF 8 o

MEABNEAWEREE EXKREZ
HigstE

REEFE » I EREGEM EHRRIZETF I
BOWHEHMEAKE HE BAEELTEA
RETEIETENEARE-

EEEH

N _E—F+ZA=+—H AEEEHR
4O RBRE (CE _TFE 1 474) - HE_Z
T—H+"BA=+—HIEFE #EETHRA
(BIEESEMS) #914,100,0008 T (ZEZ
T4 [ £918,700,000787T) - KEBESFEHTH
FONBCREH RS BRIk FRER—
oM EF EREELATFE - AEe BER
M R BB TEAT o R E B TR IR AN BE IR RE ST 81 1F
AEHERE ZEIMNIE o

AR

TR —F+ZHA=+—H ' RHEHEE
AR REAERS REFREND BMEE
EEZ W AI96.3% °

HOMARABHBEAZZE-NF=ZA+1H
ZEBRTINE AEHEBGTERBLHEER
ZRB R _E_—F+_HA=+—H'&
ERANEEEREZERAR (MRAAE)
EREHEERYERENERA+NATE
BEE=FT2EPERERBIE 85 5h
EREBNENEZEL R HEBREKER
fgo

Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2021



CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 7 March
2022, due to the change of government policy in the PRC on the
China 6 Standard imported motor vehicles, the PRC government
requires the parallel importers of motor vehicles to obtain EE
Certificate for China 6 Standard imported motor vehicles before
offering the same for sale in the PRC. As at 31 December 2021, the
Group obtained EE Certification for two types of China 6 Standard
imported motor vehicles, and the others are still in the Certification
Process. The Group has been closely monitoring the Certificate
Process for their imported China 6 Standard motor vehicles. The
Group expects the business performance of this segment will be
improved if more Group’s China 6 Standard imported motor vehicles
can be offered for sale in the PRC.

After the three years’ efforts since the implementation of the 13th
Five-Year Plan (2016-2020), the PRC has been reforming the
regulatory landscape in the pharmaceutical industry leading it has
a steady growth in the past few years, especially for major new
medicines development like the promotion of more lifesaving and
safe medicines to be listed and included in medical insurance.
Therefore, the Company decided to divert the Group’s resources to
invest in the new medicine development market in the PRC through
its investment in a limited partnership which can attain diversification
of the Group’s business.

The Group is optimistic and confident in the prospects of the China
and Hong Kong stock markets and will continue to develop other
businesses and seek opportunities to expand its revenue sources to
enhance the Group’s revenue.

| would like to take this opportunity to thank our shareholders, Board
of Directors, our staff and business partners for their continuous
support and commitment.

By order of the Board
Wang Jiawei

Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 March 2022
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Jiawei (Former name: Wang Xufeng), aged 35, has
been an executive Director, a member of nomination committee
of the Company since May 2013. Mr. Wang was also appointed
as the chairman and chief executive officer of the Company and a
member of remuneration committee of the Company with effect from
22 September 2015. He is a director of various subsidiaries of the
Group. Mr. Wang obtained a Bachelor of Science in Mathematics
at Imperial College London in the United Kingdom in 2009 and a
Master of Science in Finance at City University London in the United
Kingdom in 2010. From October 2010 to July 2011, he was a
market analyst of the investment department in Shenzhen Shouguan
Investment Co., Limited in the PRC. Since August 2011, Mr. Wang
has been a manager of Sinofortune Securities Limited, a subsidiary
of the Group. Mr. Wang is also the director of Victor Creation Global
Limited from August 2014 and Elpis Capital from September 2014.

Ms. Lai Yuk Mui, aged 52, has been an executive Director of the
Company since 1 August 2015 and she was appointed as a member
of remuneration committee of the Company with effect from 22
September 2015. She is a director of various subsidiaries of the
Group. Ms. Lai received her Bachelor of Arts Degree in Financial
Services from Edinburgh Napier University in Scotland. Ms. Lai
joined the Company on 14 July 2008 as the executive secretary and
has been promoted to the Head of Personnel and Administration
Department of the Company since 13 February 2009.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Liu Runtong, aged 48, was appointed as a non-executive
Director of the Company on 2 February 2010. Mr. Liu obtained
Bachelor Degree from Department of Chinese of Nankai University
in 1996. He also holds qualifications of economist, registered
securities investment consulting analyst and registered insurance
broker issued by various professional organizations in China. For
the past 23 years, Mr. Liu has held different positions in various
financial media institutions and financial services institutions
in Mainland China. During his tenure from 1998 to 2002 as a
responsible person for marketing the newspaper “Securities
Times”, he participated in establishing the “Panorama Network”
(www.p5w.net), a well-known securities website in China and acted
as its major responsible person. In 2000, he acted as consultant in
establishing and operating the program “Securities Times” produced
by “China Central Television”. From 2002 to 2007, he served as
“Program Supervisor” in “Shenzhen Stock Exchange Shenzhen
Securities Information Co., Ltd”, where he participated in setting up
and managing “Trading Day”, the 24-hour PRC program regarding
securities. Because of his outstanding performance, he was elected
as one of the “Ten Best Staff” of the “Shenzhen Stock Exchange”
in 2004. From 2013 to July 2015, Mr. Liu served Convoy China
Financial Services Holding Ltd as a Vice President. He was the
executive director of Shenzhen Qianhai CONVOY Asset Management
Co., Ltd. from 2013 to July 2015. Mr. Liu has found Shenzhen
Qianhai Yinyan Asset Management Co., Ltd. since 2014 and serves
as the executive director.
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ESZhREREEAERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Professor Zhang Benzheng, aged 82, has been an independent
non-executive Director of the Company since 30 September 2008
and he was appointed as a chairman of nomination committee and
a member of audit committee of the Company in 2008. He was also
appointed as a member and chairman of remuneration committee
of the Company in 2008 and 2011 respectively. Professor Zhang
graduated with a Bachelor Degree from the Faculty of Engineering
Physics of the Tsinghua University in 1965. He was a visiting
scholar in the Brookhaven National Laboratory of USA and the
Stuttgart University of Germany. He was the vice director of the
Tsinghua University R&D department and the general manager of
Tsinghua University Science and Technology Corporation. During
the period from 1999 to 2002, he held various senior positions in
two companies listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, namely
Tsinghua Unisplendour Limited and Tsinghua Unisplendour Guhan
Group Corporation. He was the chairman and legal representative
of Tsinghua Unisplendour Guhan Group Corporation and president
of Tsinghua Unisplendour Limited before he left these companies in
2002. He then joined Tsinghua Unisplendour (Group) Corporation
in 2002 and was its president until 2004. Professor Zhang was
the general vice president and secretary of the Beijing Non-
Governmental Science & Technology Entrepreneurs Association.
With his remarkable business leadership as well as exploratory
initiatives, Professor Zhang had made tremendous contribution to
the companies he worked for. He has not only gained compliments
from the society at large, but has also won a series of honors.
In 1997, Professor Zhang received the national prize of “The
Third Term Science and Technology Light Award for Outstanding
Scientific and Technological Entrepreneur”. In 2000, he won the
“Hong Kong Bauhinia Cup Outstanding Entrepreneur Award” and
the “Entrepreneurial Talent” award issued by the Beijing Non-
Governmental Science and Technology Entrepreneurs Association.
In 2002, he was selected as the first lot of “Zhongguan Village
Outstanding Entrepreneurs”. Professor Zhang is currently the Chief
Consultant of REERK (bR R EXEZERAR AT (transliterated
as Ronghui Future (Beijing) Technology Development Co., Ltd.).
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Mr. Li Jianxing, aged 64, has been an independent non-executive
Director, a member of audit committee, nomination committee and
remuneration committee of the Company since 28 March 2011. He
was also appointed as chairman of audit committee of the Company
with effect from 22 September 2015. Mr. Li graduated from Shanghai
Maritime University with a Bachelor Degree in accounting. He also
received a Master Degree in Business Administration from Canisius
College of Buffalo. Mr. Li has over 30-year experience working in
the field of accounting and corporate finance and has substantial
experience in management in various listed companies, investment
business, investor relations and project management. He was the
senior manager of both the investment department and finance
department of China Everbright Holdings Co., Ltd from April 1998
to June 2000. He served as the Chief Finance Officer for Intermost
Corporation from June 2000 to 2003. From April 2003 to May
2004, he was a General Manager of Investor Relations in China
Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd. He was a director of Concord
Investment Holdings Limited from 2004 to 2012. Mr. Li is currently
an independent non-executive director of Farnova Group Holdings
Limited (Hong Kong Stock Exchange Stock Code: 8153).
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Professor Chen Shu Wen, aged 67, has been an independent
non-executive Director, a member of audit committee, nomination
committee and remuneration committee of the Company since
23 September 2011. Professor Chen graduated from B ILE4
#KE (Dongbei University of Finance and Economics) with a
Bachelor Degree in Economics and obtained a Master Degree and
a PhD in Economics from FH#AZ (Jilin University). He was a
practising solicitor at FEERXGEENEFT (Liaoning Tianhe Law
Firm). Professor Chen has substantial management and leadership
experience serving in the PRC government. He commenced his
career as the deputy county chief of the Benxi Manchu Autonomous
County, Liaoning Province, PRC, in 1992 and became the director
(EF) of ZEFLEREGNEEZE DT (Benxi City Commission for
Restructuring the Economic Systems) from 1995. He was the vice
director general (BlFEE) of KEMBINSHEEZESIERZE T (Benxi
Foreign Trade & Economic Cooperation Committee) from 1998 until
2001. From 2001 to 2009, Professor Chen was the professor and
the tutor for doctorate students at KEIE T K2 EIEZLT (Faculty
of Management and Economics of Dalian University of Technology).
From 2010 to 2014, he was the dean at KEIE T KB QA HEEEL
B E % (School of Public Administration and Law of Dalian University
of Technology). From 2010 to 2020, Professor Chen was the
professor and the tutor for doctorate students at KEHIE T KENFH
BB REEPR (School of Public Administration and Law of Dalian
University of Technology). He was an independent director of &
EEERMHABRAT (Zhangzidao Group Co. Ltd.) (Shenzhen Stock
Exchange Stock Code: 002069) from 2013 to 2019, A& AEZERKR
&7 BR/A T (Dalian Dafu Enterprises Holdings Co., Ltd.) (delisted
on Shanghai Stock Exchange in December 2019 with stock code:
600747) from 2015 to 2020 and & OEFHRNDBR AT (Yingkou
Port Liability Co., Ltd.) (Shanghai Stock Exchange Stock Code:
600317) from Feb 2020 to Nov 2020. Professor Chen is currently
an independent non-executive director of Weigiao Textile Company
Limited (Hong Kong Stock Exchange Stock Code: 2698).
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The Directors are pleased to present their annual report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company
and the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

CORPORATE INFORMATION
The Company was incorporated on 24 May 2001 as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the
Company Law of Cayman Islands.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities and other particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set
out in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 98 to 99.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend nor
transfer of any amount to reserves for the year ended 31 December
2021 (2020: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group and the Company during the year are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out
in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands, the share
premium of the Company is available for distribution as dividends
to its shareholders subject to the provisions of its Memorandum
and Articles of Association and a statutory solvency test. In
accordance with Article 137 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, dividends may be declared and paid out of the profits of
the Company or from any reserves set aside from profits which the
Directors determine to be no longer needed. With the sanction of
an ordinary resolution, dividends may also be declared or paid out
of share premium account. Accordingly, the Company’s reserves
available for distribution was HK$Nil as at 31 December 2021.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were as follows:

Executive Directors
Wang Jiawei (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Lai Yuk Mui

Non-executive Director
Liu Runtong

Independent Non-executive Directors
Zhang Benzheng

Li Jianxing

Chen Shu Wen

In accordance with Article 87(1) of the Company’s Articles of
Association, the Directors retiring by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting are Ms. Lai Yuk Mui and Mr. Li Jianxing. Both
Directors are being eligible for re-election and will offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting. The
remaining Directors shall continue to hold office.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the employing
company within one year without payment of compensation other
than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2021, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) which were notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of
the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were
required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules,
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as
follows:

(@) Long positions in shares of the Company
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(a) MEATRGZEFE

Approximate

Number of percentage
Name of Directors Capacity shares held of shareholding
ESER 515 FRf5he i 8B FHRIBAHT S
Wang Jiawei Beneficial owner 2,102,255,935 27.13%
ITEE BmEAA
Lai Yuk Mui Beneficial owner 2,780,127 0.04%
REiE BaEEAA
Liu Runtong Beneficial owner 2,646,000 0.03%
= pESp i Em#EAA

(b) Long positions in underlying shares of the Company

Share option scheme of the Company

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on 21 June
2012 which complies with Chapter 23 of GEM Listing Rules.
As at 31 December 2021, no share option had been granted
under the share option scheme and none of the Directors and
chief executive have any share options to subscribe for shares
of the Company.
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(c)

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors or chief executive to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities
(including debentures) of, the Company or any other body
corporate and neither the Directors, nor the chief executive, nor
any of their respective spouses or children under the age of 18,
had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or
had exercised any such right during the year.

Short positions in underlying shares of the Company

No short positions of Directors and chief executives in the
underlying shares of the equity derivatives of the Company and
its associated corporations were recorded in the register or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Rule 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

(a)

(b)

Long positions in shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2021, the Directors and the chief executive
of the Company are not aware of any person (not being a
Director or a chief executive of the Company) who had an
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares
which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO.

Long positions in underlying shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2021, the Company had not been notified
of any person (other than the Directors whose interests
are set out in the section “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures” above) who had an interest or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company and was required
to be recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
336 of the SFO and/or was directly or indirectly interested in
5% or more of the issued share capital carrying rights to vote in
all circumstances at general meetings of any other members of
the Group.

(c)
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DETAILS OF THE OPTIONS GRANTED BY THE
COMPANY

Share Option Scheme of the Company

The Company has adopted a share option scheme under which the
Directors or employees of the Company or its subsidiaries or certain
other persons may be granted share options to subscribe for shares
of the Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated in the
scheme. The share option scheme adopted by the Company on 21
June 2012 which complies with Chapter 23 of GEM Listing Rules.

(1) Summary of the Scheme

(1)

(i)

Purpose of the scheme

The purpose of the scheme is to provide the people and
the parties working for the interest of the Group with an
opportunity to obtain equity interest in the Company, thus
linking their interest with the interest of the Group and
thereby providing them with an incentive to work better
for the interest of the Group.

Participants of the scheme

Pursuant to the scheme, the Company may grant share
options to (i) employees of the Company (whether fulltime
or part-time) or any of its subsidiaries or associated
companies; (ii) Directors (whether executive Directors,
non-executive Directors or independent non-executive
Directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or
associated companies; (iii) suppliers of goods and/or
services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries or
associated companies; and (iv) professionals engaged
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries or associated
companies.

ERESEERAERAR | 225K

DirRecTorRs’ REPORT
EETHRS

FARR LB EH

AT HEREE
RABERM—IEERESTE L AR
AXEMNBARCZEEHREEFTE THMA
TR R BIET E 2 IR R IR IR R A
URBEARRBZRM - ARBERZE—Z
EARNBZ+—HRMATEGEMLEMHRAE
23E R REETE) o

(1) ZEABZHE
() Z&EZHH
Zet B EERAETERMNZITE
ZATREFRHBEESERATR
BHE BRFZMNmBALRE
EA i EMBBRERE
EERKBEMND -

(i) Z&tE|z2HE
RiIEZsE > AR ATEUTA
ITREBERE ()IX2AFZEE
(FRAEBIFRBE) NERQF
EAMBARDNBELTZE
B (i) ARBRNEEFANEAF
MERBDZER (TRAAIT
EF FHTESFHHIIFNT
BF) (A2 REEMMER
B AR 2 Mk R
WMIERE ; K(iv)a 2B 3 B AR AT
BRBUAMERBDMEZRZEE
Ao

19



20

DirRecTors’ REPORT
EETHRS

(7ii)

(v)

(v)

Total number of shares available for issue under the
schemes

As at 31 December 2021, the total number of shares
available for issue under the share option scheme was
774,895,812 shares, representing 10% of the total issued
share capital.

The maximum aggregate number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the share option scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Group
must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares of the
Company in issue from time to time. No options may
be granted under any schemes of the Company (or its
subsidiaries) if this will result in such limit being exceeded.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The maximum number of shares of the Company issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
and to be granted pursuant to the scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company (including the
Pre-IPO Share Option Plan) to each participant in any
12-months period up to the date of grant of the options
shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue, save for those share options already
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Plan.

Option period

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the scheme at any time during a period of not more
than ten years to be notified by the Board of Directors
of the Company (the “Board”) to each participant which
period of time shall commence on the date on which an
offer of the grant of an option is accepted or deemed
to have been accepted in accordance with the scheme
and expire on the last day of such period as determined
by the Board. There is no minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised.

(i)

(iv)

(v)
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(vi)

(Vi)

(Vi)

Payment on acceptance by option offer

HK$1 is payable by the participant to the Company on
acceptance of the option offer as consideration for the
grant and received by the Company within 14 days from
the offer date or within such offer period of time as may
be determined by the Board pursuant to the GEM Listing
Rules.

Basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price per share of the Company under the
scheme is determined by the Board and notified to each
participant and shall be no less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in
the daily quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange
on the date of offer, which must be a day on which the
Stock Exchange is open for the business of dealing in
securities (“Trading Day”), (i) the average closing price
of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five Trading Days immediately preceding the date of offer,
and (iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company.

Remaining life of the scheme

The share option scheme will remain valid for a period
of ten years commencing on 21 June 2012 (save that
the Company, by ordinary resolution in general meeting
or Board may at any time terminate the operation of
the share option scheme) and in such event, no further
options will be offered but the provisions of the share
option scheme shall in all other respects remain in full
force and effect.

(2) Details of share options granted by the Company

As at 31 December 2021, no share option under the share
option scheme has been granted.
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DIRECTOR’S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme as described above and in
note 38 to the consolidated financial statements, at no time during
the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including
debentures) of, the Company or any other body corporate and
neither the Directors, nor the chief executive, nor any of their
respective spouses or children under the age of 18, had any right to
subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised any
such right during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2021.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE
There was no transactions, arrangements or contract of significance,
save as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements, in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

LITIGATION

Arbitration Application Filed by JFIIEEH TR EBHNERAR
(Transliterated as Shenzhen Sinofortune Education Investment
Consultancy Co., Ltd) (“Sinofortune Education”) Concerning
the Repayment of Refundable Earnest Money

As reported in the 2018 and 2020 annual reports of the Company,
the parties of this arbitration case, Sinofortune Education and
the five defendants of the arbitration case (collectively, “Five
Defendants”), including Yang Shunhong, Liu Zulin, Yang Rui, Zhai
Qingguo and R#EFHERBIRAE (transliterated as Mingin
Quantum New Energy Co. Ltd.) (“Mingin Quantum”) entered
into an arbitration settlement agreement in September 2020
(“Arbitration Settlement Agreement”) and applied to Shenzhen
Court of International Arbitration (also known as South China
International Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission) (“SCIA”)
for adjudication according to Arbitration Settlement Agreement. On
30 December 2020, SCIA made an adjudicated judgement in favour
of Sinofortune Education in terms of the Arbitration Settlement
Agreement (“Judgement”).
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The PRC legal advisor of the Company formed an opinion that
the Arbitration Settlement Agreement is legal and valid and the
Judgement is legally binding with all parties with effect from the date
of issuance.

As a result of Mingin Quantum’s failure to repay the refundable
earnest money of RMB20,000,000 to Sinofortune Education on or
before 31 December 2020 as adjudicated under the Judgement,
Sinofortune Education applied to Intermediate People’s Court of
Wuwei City, Gansu Province, China (“Wuwei Court”) in January 2021
for compulsory execution against the Five Defendants for not fulfilling
the obligations of the Judgement.

As at 31 December 2021, the Wuwei Court had frozen the 100%
equity interest of Mingin Quantum as well as the equity shares of
Yang Shunhong, Yang Rui and Zhai Qingguo in other companies.
During the execution process, the properties, machine and
photovoltaic power generation equipment in the factory and bank
accounts which under the name of Mingin Quantum were waiting
to be seized in accordance with the law, therefore they cannot be
handled due to the seizure.

Sinofortune Education has applied to the Wuwei Court for an inquiry
and evaluation of auction procedures for the 100% equity interest
of Mingin Quantum. Yang Shunhong had requested for more time
to look for a purchaser for the equity interest of Mingin Quantum
in order to pay off the outstanding amounts owe to Sinofortune
Education, however, he was unable to find purchaser with firm and
clear intention.

The PRC legal advisor of the Company formed an opinion that
since the Five Defendants did not fulfil the obligations under the
Judgement, Sinofortune Education has the right to apply to the
People’s Court for compulsory execution for the sale of 100% equity
interest of Mingin Quantum and has priority to be compensated from
the sale proceed generated therefrom.

Sinofortune Education is still in the process of taking steps to
execute the Judgement against the Five Defendants.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
The percentages of purchase and sales for the attributable to the
Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases

— the largest supplier 86.9%
— five largest suppliers in aggregate 64.7%
Sales

— the largest customer 37.7%
— five largest customers in aggregate 88.9%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
company’s share capital) had an interest in these major suppliers or
customers.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Directors were
not aware of any business or interest of each Director, controlling
shareholder (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) and the respective
associates of each that competes or may compete with the business
of the Group and any other conflicts of interest which any such
person has or may have with the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

COMPLIANCE WITH RULES 5.48 TO 5.67 OF THE GEM
LISTING RULES

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The Company’s Directors have complied with such
code of conduct and the required standard of dealings.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman lIslands which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance and a detailed corporate governance report is
set out on pages 28 to 41 of this annual report.

The compliance officer of the Company is Ms. Lai Yuk Mui whose
biographical details are set out on page 10 of this annual report.
Ms. Woo Man Yi is the company secretary of the Company.
She is an associate member of both The Chartered Governance
Institution (formerly known as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators) in the United Kingdom and The Hong Kong
Chartered Governance Institute (foremerly known as The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries).

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

We are committed to building an environmentally-friendly corporation
and minimising our impact on the environment. Discussion on the
environmental policies and performance is set out in the section
headed “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages
42 to 87 in this annual report. The discussion therein forms part of
the Directors’ Report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and to the best of the Directors’ knowledge, as at the date of this
annual report, there was a sufficient prescribed public float of the
issued shares of the Company under the GEM Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

At no time during the year and up to date of this report, there was
or is, any permitted indemnity provision being in force for the benefit
of the Directors of the Company (whether made by the Company or
otherwise) or any of its subsidiaries (if made by the Company).
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds raised from the issuance of the Company’s shares
on a subscription on 12 October 2018 (the “Subscription”) was
approximately HK$86,350,000. The net proceeds raised from the
Subscription, the utilisation and remaining balance of the proceeds
as at 31 December 2021 are set out below:

FRismIEA®
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As at 31 December 2021
RZ¥--f+ZA=+-H

Net proceeds

Percentage of raised  Utilised amount Remaining

Original intended uses Revised intended uses total amount (Approximately) (Approximately) balance

LEEEN  EENARRE
RNRERE BETRERR ARt BE () BREE (B e
HK$ HK$ HK$
AT AT AT

Development and expansion of the existing i) N/A 40% 34,540,000 i) 16,980,000 i) -

motor vehicle business of the Group i) General working capital of the ii) 17,560,000 i) -
Group (Note 2)
EBRRBAAEERANAEER ) FEH
i) AEEN—KEEET (H:12)

Investments including potential acquisitions of i) Settlement of the Group’s the 50% 43,175,000 i) 33,300,000 i) -
business related capital commitment in to limited partnership (Note 1) i) 9,875,000 i) -
the motor vehicle business of the Group i) General working capital of the

Group (Note 1)

RE OEBTWREAEEABERERN ) BEFEERERARCEN
£% BRAE (H31)

i) AEEN—REEES
iEa))

General working capital of the Group N/A 10% 8,635,000 8,635,000 -

FEEN-REEES B

Total 86,350,000 86,350,000 -

Bt

Note: MIE -

(1) With reference to the Company’s announcement dated 9 September 2019,
in view of the uncertainty created by the on-going Sino-US trade war and the
unfavorable market condition for the motor vehicles business of the Group, the
Group decided to divert its resources to invest in the new medicine development
market in the PRC through its investment in the limited partnership which can
attain diversification of the Group’s business.

(2) With reference to the Company’s announcement dated 8 October 2020, since
January 2020, the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic has impact on the global
business environment, the market conditions and the consumer sentiment of the

motor vehicles business and has adversely affected the motor vehicles business
of the Group. The situation has been worsen by the uncertainty resulting from the

on-going Sino-US trade war and the change of the PRC government policy.
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AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021 have been audited by CCTH CPA Limited.
CCTH CPA Limited was appointed on 21 September 2020 as the
independent auditor of the Company to fill the casual vacancy
following the resignation of CHENG & CHENG LIMITED on 24
August 2020. Save for the above, there were no other changes in
the Company’s auditor in the past three years. CCTH CPA Limited
will retire at the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution for reappointment
of CCTH CPA Limited as auditor of the Company will be proposed at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Wang Jiawei
Chairman
Hong Kong, 18 March 2022
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board assumes overall responsibility for the leadership and
control of the Group, including providing and setting the Group’s
directions and strategies in the interests of the Group. It believes in
good corporate governance and corporate governance practices
that promote investor confidence, development of the Group, and
transparency while having the long term interest of the Group and
enhancement of shareholders’ value as the ultimate objectives. It has
adopted the code provision numbering as set out in the amended
Corporate Governance Code (effective from 1 January 2022)
contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules (the “Corporate
Governance Code”). The Company has complied with the applicable
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code, except for the
following deviation:

CODE PROVISION C.2.1

Code provision C.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The division of responsibilities between the
chairman and chief executive should be clearly established and set
out in writing.

Mr. Wang Jiawei is the chairman and chief executive officer of the
Company. In view of Mr. Wang has extensive experience in project
management and securities investments and is responsible for the
overall corporate strategies, planning and business development
of the Company. Under the supervision by the Board which is
comprised of three independent non-executive Directors and a non-
executive Director, which represent more than half of the Board, the
interests of the shareholders of the Company will be adequately and
fairly represented.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

In respect of the standard of dealings required of Directors, the
Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings as set out in rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules. Having made specific enquires of all Directors, they
confirmed that they have complied with the Company’s code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions during the year.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Comprising of two executive and four non-executive Directors
(including three independent non-executive Directors), the present
board has an appropriate composition of Directors. The Company
has received from each of the independent non-executive Directors
an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09
of the GEM Listing Rules and is in the opinion that all independent
non-executive Directors are independent. The present board is
composed of more than one-third of independent non-executive
Directors.

The present board of Directors consists of:

Wang Jiawei (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Lai Yuk Mui (Executive Director)

Liu Runtong (Non-executive Director)

Zhang Benzheng (Independent Non-executive Director)
Li Jianxing (Independent Non-executive Director)

Chen Shu Wen (Independent Non-executive Director)

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 10 to
14 of this annual report.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management Profile” to this annual report, the Directors have
no other financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationships with one another.

The Board is mandated to determine and review strategic objectives,
appoint and supervise senior management, approve quarterly,
interim and annual reports, and review the principal risks of the
Group’s business to ensure that these risks are within manageable
limits. It is also mandated to approve any substantial investment,
acquisition or disposal by the Company. Major corporate matters
that are delegated to the management include the execution of
business strategies and initiatives approved by the Board and the
preparation of quarterly, interim and annual reports for the Board’s
approval.
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Responsibilities, accountabilities and contributions of the
board and management

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control
of the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All
Directors should take decisions objectively in the interests of the
Company.

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters relating
to policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
Directors and other significant operational matters of the Company.
Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board,
directing and coordinating the daily operation and management of
the Company are delegated to the management.

There were four board meetings during the year. The attendance of
Directors at the board meetings were as follows:

EFOREERZEE -HRMHUREK

EFCREERERENEARAT THER
EBEBESINEERATDEBMEERLF
WAt  2BEFRTEURAT A FR
RTE ©

EXSCQEREMAEEFE ERIK
HREE RBEAE ASEZERAR
BEBEARS FHEBHEG S KM EHR
) MBEN ZAEEFEREARFHMEKR
EEZH-FHETEFERAR -BERW
FAEREHBEEREENHEZRTERE
@ o

FARBTHREZFEER -EFZESF
GRHEROT

i3S

Attendance number
of meetings attended/
Number of meetings
during term of service

HEGERE
Members 54} EREITEERY
Wang Jiawei TEE 4/4
Lai Yuk Mui RE1g 4/4
Liu Runtong EApER 4/4
Zhang Benzheng SRAIE 4/4
Li Jianxing ERAT 4/4
Chen Shu Wen 19 4/4
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There was one general meeting during the year. The attendance of
Directors at the general meeting was as follows:

EXERRS

FARBT - RARRRG -EFIREAE
ZHBERINT

Attendance number
of meeting attended/
Number of meeting
during term of service

HEGERE
Members 541 EREITEERY
Wang Jiawei TEE 0/1
Lai Yuk Mui BEiE 11
Liu Runtong 2 H 18 0/1
Zhang Benzheng RAILE 0/1
Li Jianxing ZRAT 0/1
Chen Shu Wen R 11 >C 0/1

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to the Corporate Governance Code, all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their
contribution to the board remains informed and relevant.

During the year, Mr. Wang Jiawei, Ms. Lai Yuk Mui and Mr. Li
Jianxing have attended training courses conducted by professional
parties. The attended Directors have provided the Company
with their respective training records pursuant to the Corporate
Governance Code. All Directors were provided with reading materials
on relevant rules and regulatory updates.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has established a remuneration committee
(“Remuneration Committee”) with specific written terms of reference.
The present Remuneration Committee consists of a majority of
independent non-executive Directors.
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As at year end date, the present Remuneration Committee consisted
of five Directors, Professor Zhang Benzheng, Mr. Wang Jiawei, Ms.
Lai Yuk Mui, Mr. Li Jianxing and Professor Chen Shu Wen. Three
out of the five Directors are independent non-executive Directors.
Professor Zhang Benzheng, being an independent non-executive
Director, is the chairman of the committee. The Remuneration
Committee’s role and function includes making recommendations to
the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for remuneration
of Directors and senior management and on the establishment of
formal and transparent procedures for developing policy on such
remuneration. It also has the delegated responsibility to determine
the specific remuneration packages of all executive Directors and
senior management.

The Company’s remuneration policies are determined on the basis
of the contributions of staff and Directors. Long-term incentive
schemes for staff and Directors include share options and cash
bonuses.

The amounts paid to each Director for the year ended 31 December
2021 are set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the annual remuneration of the members of the senior
management (other than the Directors) for the year ended 31
December 2021 by band is set out as follows:

REZB BITHFNEESTHREEHR
ITERAEE - REBUET -FRTERERR
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BERHIBRRRE RMRILIEEMAS
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FZoMMEEGTERBRERRATES
REREBABZREFHFMTE-

ARABZHMBERDRE I REEPIEERM
HEEBE - BIRERZRAEBIE
ERERERIREICA -

BE_Z-_—F+"A=+—HILFEM
BESINMZRIE BN EE M BRRM T
11

RS ATAEE 5K RE-S - —

F+RA=+—HLEFESREEAS (&
ERN NEEFMIZEEHIIN T

Number of individuals

Remuneration band (in HK$) i EE (Bm) AE
Nil to 1,000,000 Z 21,000,000 2
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The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year and
the attendance of its members was as follows:

EXERRS
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Attendance number
of meeting attended/
Number of meeting
during term of service

HEGERE
Members 541 EREITEERY
Zhang Benzheng RAIE 11
Wang Jiawei FTEE 11
Lai Yuk Mui RN 11
Li Jianxing =T 1/1
Chen Shu Wen ek At 11

During the year, the Remuneration Committee’s work includes
conducting a review over the Company’s policy and structure for
remuneration. There was no Director’s service contract requiring
approval during the year.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has established a nomination committee (“Nomination
Committee”) with specific written terms of reference. As at year
end date, Nomination Committee consisted of four Directors,
Professor Zhang Benzheng, Mr. Wang Jiawei, Mr. Li Jianxing
and Professor Chen Shu Wen. Three out of the four Directors
are independent non-executive Directors. Professor Zhang
Benzheng, being an independent non-executive Director, is the
chairman of the committee. Thus the present Committee consists
a majority of independent non-executive Directors. The Nomination
Committee’s role and function includes, but is not limited to,
reviewing the structure, size, composition and diversity (including
but not limited to skills, knowledge and experience, gender, age,
cultural and educational background, or professional experience)
of the Board at least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes; draw up, review and update, as appropriate,
the diversity policy for the Board’s approval having due regard to
the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules, review and update the
objectives that the Board has set for implementing such policy, and
monitor the progress made; identifying individuals suitably qualified
to become Board members and select or making recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships based on the board diversity policy; and assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors.
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The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year and
the attendance of its members was as follows:

RUZEENFAERT—REH HL
ZHBERINT

il

Attendance number
of meeting attended/
Number of meeting
during term of service

HEERRE
Members 541 EREITEERY
Zhang Benzheng RAIE 11
Wang Jiawei FT=E 11
Li Jianxing FRAT 1/1
Chen Shu Wen ek At 11

On the nomination process, the Nomination Committee reviews
the suggested candidates for directorship having regard to the
candidates’ reputation and the specific skills or expertise that
these candidates can contribute to the Company in the light of the
structure, size, composition and diversity (including but not limited
to skills, knowledge and experience, gender, age, cultural and
educational background, or professional experience) of the board
of Directors. Only candidates who have integrity and can provide
specific contributions to the Company thereby enhancing the value
of the Company are considered for nomination to the board of
Directors by the Nomination Committee.

During the year, the Nomination Committee’s work includes
reviewing the structure, size, independence, composition and
diversity (including but not limited to skills, knowledge and
experience, gender, age, cultural and educational background, or
professional experience) of the Board and made recommendations
thereon. Drawing up, reviewing and updating, as appropriate, the
diversity policy for the Board’s approval having due regard to the
requirements of the GEM Listing Rules, reviewing and updating the
objectives that the Board has set for implementing such policy, and
monitor the progress made.
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Board diversity

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy setting out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Board with the aims of
enhancing Board effectiveness and corporate governance as well as
achieving sustainable and balanced development.

Board diversity has been considered from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service and any other factors that the Board may consider
relevant and applicable from time to time.

Selection of candidates will be based on the Company’s nomination
policy and will take into account the board diversity policy. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board. Having due regard to the
benefits of diversity on the Board and also the needs of the Board
without focusing on a single diversity aspect.

The Nomination Committee will monitor and review the
implementation of the board diversity policy, as appropriate,
to ensure the effectiveness of the board diversity policy. The
Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions to the board
diversity policy that may be required and make recommendation to
the Board for approval.

A copy of the board diversity policy has been published on the
Company’s website for public information. Currently, the Board
comprises six members and the Board composition and diversity are
as follows:

Capacity: Executive Directors, non-executive Director and
independent non-executive Directors

Gender: Male and female

Age: 35-82

Nationality: Chinese and American

Length of service: 7-13 years

Board expertise: Finance, law, accounting, investment,
engineering, economic, insurance, investment

consulting analysis
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (“Audit
Committee”) with specific written terms of reference. As at
31 December 2021, the Audit Committee consisted of three
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Li Jianxing, Professor
Zhang Benzheng and Mr. Chen Shu Wen. Mr. Li Jianxing, being
an independent non-executive Director, is the chairman of the
Committee. The Audit Committee’s role and function includes
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and to approve
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor;
review and monitor the external auditors’ independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards; develop and implement policy on the
engagement of an external auditor to supply non-audit services;
monitor the integrity of financial statements, annual reports and
accounts, half-yearly and quarterly reports of the Company, and
review significant financial reporting judgments contained in them;
review the Company’s financial controls, internal control and
risk management systems; and review the Group’s financial and
accounting policies, procedures and practices.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021
pursuant to the relevant provisions contained in the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing
Rules and was of the opinion that such statements had complied
with applicable accounting standards and that adequate disclosures
had been made in respect thereof.

The Audit Committee held five meetings during the year and the
attendance of its members was as follows:
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Attendance number
of meetings attended/
Number of meetings
during term of service

HEgEERE
Members 54} ERANEITEERH
Li Jianxing ZRAT 5/5
Zhang Benzheng SRAIE 5/5
Chen Shu Wen R 41 SC 5/5
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The Directors’ responsibilities for preparing the accounts and the
reporting responsibilities of the auditors are set out on pages 88 to
97.

The accounts for the year ended 31 December 2021 were
audited by CCTH CPA Limited whose term of office will expire at
the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that
CCTH CPA Limited be reappointed as the auditors of the Company
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision A.2.1. The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management, the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the GEM Listing Rules,
and the Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the remuneration paid to
the auditors, CCTH CPA Limited in respect of audit services and
non-audit services amounted to HK$600,000 and HK$100,000
respectively.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness. The
Board requires management to establish and maintain sound and
effective system of internal controls to safeguard the shareholders’
investment and the Group’s assets. The Board should conduct a
review of risk management and internal control system of the Group
at least annually, covering the material financial, operational and
compliance controls as well as environmental, social and climate-
related risks.
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Risk management

The Group has adopted a three-tier risk management approach to
identify, assess and manage different types of risks. At the first line
of defense, business units are responsible for identifying, assessing
and monitoring risk associated with each business or transaction.
The management, as the second line of defense, defines rule sets
and models, provides technical support, develops new system
and oversees portfolio management. It ensures risks are within
acceptable range and that the first line of defense is effective. As
the final line of defense, the internal audit function (either in-house
or outsourced) assists the Audit Committee to review the first and
second lines of defenses. With the assistance of the independent
internal control consultants, a risk register with risk rating and
risk owners were compiled by taking into account for continuous
risk assessment purpose. Risk owners are required to take
mitigating actions to address the identified risks and such actions
are integrated in the day-to-day activities and their effectiveness
is closely monitored. During the year, the risk register has been
circulated for discussion and assessed the ratings by key personnel
and management, by considering the likelihood and impact of each
identified risk. A written risks assessment report with the identified
key risks, evaluation of related risks and relevant mitigating actions
have been reported to the Audit Committee and reviewed by the
Board. The written report facilitates the Board in considering the
changes in the nature and extent of significant risks (including ESG
risks), the Group’s ability in responding to changes in its business
and the external environment, as well as management’s ongoing
monitoring of risks (including ESG risks) and of the internal control
system.
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Internal controls

The Group emphasises the importance of a sound internal control
system which is also indispensable for mitigating the Group’s key
risk exposures. The Group’s system of internal control is designed
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to manage and eliminate risks of failure
in operational systems and fulfillment of the business objectives.
The internal control system is reviewed on an ongoing basis by
the Board in order to make it practical and effective in providing
reasonable assurance in relation to protection of material assets
and shareholders’ interests. For any identified internal control
weaknesses or defects, the Group is committed to enhance
control measures to rectify such control weaknesses or defects.
The Group has implemented an effective control system which
includes a defined management structure with limits of authority,
a sound management system and periodic review of the Group’s
performance by the Audit Committee and the Board.

Review the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems

Through the Audit Committee, the Board has conducted annual
review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems for the year ended 31 December 2021 by
considering written reports prepared by the independent internal
control consultants, covering the material financial, operational and
compliance controls, which are considered effective and adequate.

Audit Committee has annually reviewed the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training and budget of the
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions as well as
those relating to its ESG performance and reporting.

INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company assesses the likely impact of any unexpected and
significant event that may impact the price of the shares of the
Company or their trading volume and decides whether the relevant
information is considered inside information and needs to be
disclosed as soon as reasonably practicable pursuant to Rules
17.10 and 17.11 of the GEM Listing Rules and the Inside Information
Provisions under Part XIVA of the SFO. Executive Directors have
responsibility for approving certain announcements and/or circulars
to be issued by the Company under powers delegated by the Board
from time to time.
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The Company has put in place on handling and dissemination of
inside information in a timely manner in such a way so as not to
place any person in a privileged dealing position and to allow time
for the market to price the listed securities of the Company with the
latest available information. The Company has appropriate internal
control and reporting systems to identify and assess potential inside
information. Dissemination of inside information of the Company
shall be conducted by publishing the relevant information on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company, according to the
requirements of the GEM Listing Rules.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Company is Ms. Woo Man Yi. The
Company Secretary assists the Board by ensuring good information
flow within the Board and that Board policy and procedures
are followed. She has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional trainings to update her skills and knowledge in 2021.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy, pursuant to which the
Company gives priority to distributing dividend in cash and shares
its profits with its shareholders. The dividend payout ratio shall be
determined or recommended, as appropriate, by the Board at its
absolute discretion after taking into account the Company’s financial
results, future prospects and other factors, and subject to:

the Articles of Association of the Company;

- the applicable restrictions and requirements under the laws of
the Cayman Islands;

- any banking or other funding covenants by which the Company
is bound from time to time;

- the investment and operating requirements of the Company;
and

- any other factors that have material impact on the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles and Associations of the
Company, any one or more shareholders holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the Company, to require
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Shareholders may put forward proposals at general meeting of the
Company by sending the same to the Company at the principal
office of the Company in Hong Kong ten days before general
meeting.

Procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders
may send written enquiries to the Board of Directors/Company
Secretary at the Company’s head office. For the avoidance of doubt,
shareholder(s) must deposit and send the original duly signed written
requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case may be)
to the Company’s head office and provide their full name, contact
details and identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’
information may be disclosed as required by law.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company adheres to high standards with respect to the
disclosure all necessary information to the shareholders in
compliance with GEM Listing Rules. The Company strengthens
its communications with shareholders through various channels
including publication of interim and annual reports, press release
and announcements of the latest development of the Company in its
corporate website in a timely manner.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there is no significant
change in the Company’s memorandum and articles of association.
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ABOUT US

Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group” or “we”), are the integrated
financial service and parallel-imported motor vehicles supplier in
Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China (“PRC” or “China”).
We are dedicated to creating a comprehensive financial services
platform which integrates services of financing, brokerage and
financial information.

The Group is principally engaged in the: (i) provision of securities
and futures contracts trading services in Hong Kong, (i) trading and
principal investments in Hong Kong, and (iii) sales of motor vehicles,
provision of agency services and accessories sourcing in the PRC.

ABOUT THE ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (‘ESG Report”)
summarises the environmental, social and governance (“ESG”)
initiatives, plans and performances of the Group and demonstrates
its commitment to sustainable development.

Reporting Period

Unless otherwise stated, the ESG Report covers the activities,
challenges and measures with respect to ESG aspects of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Reporting Period” or
“20217).

Reporting Scope

The reporting scope is consistent with the annual report and is
determined based on the materiality and revenue contribution of the
business segments under the Group’s direct operational control.
The ESG Report covers the overall performance, risks, strategies,
measures and commitment in five areas, namely, corporate
governance, environmental protection, employment practice,
operating practice and community investment of the Group’s
major subsidiaries in the PRC and the offices in Hong Kong. ESG
key performance indicators (“KPIs”) data are obtained from these
operations. We will continue to expand the scope of disclosure in the
future when the data collection system of the Group is more refined
and the sustainable development work is enhanced.
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Reporting Framework

The ESG Report has been prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG
Reporting Guide”) as set out in Appendix 20 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the GEM of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
Information relating to the Group’s corporate governance practices
can be found in the Corporate Governance Report from pages 28 to
41 of the annual report.

During the preparation for this ESG Report, the Group has applied
the reporting principles in the ESG Reporting Guide as follow:

Materiality: Materiality assessment was conducted to identify
material issues during the Reporting Period, thereby adopting the
confirmed material issues as the focus for the preparation of the ESG
Report. The materiality of issues was reviewed and confirmed by the
Board of Directors (the “Board”) and ESG task force (“Task Force”).
For further details, please refer to the sections headed “Stakeholder
Engagement” and “Materiality Assessment”.

Quantitative: The standards, methodologies and applicable
assumptions used in the calculation of KPIs data were supplemented
by explanatory notes.

Consistency: Unless otherwise stated, the preparation approach of
this ESG Report is consistent with the previous year for comparison.
If there are any changes in the scope of disclosure and calculation
methodologies that may affect comparison with previous reports,
explanations will be provided to the corresponding data.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
Dear Valued Stakeholders,

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the ESG Report
of the Group, which demonstrates our growing commitment to
improving our ESG performance in five aspects, including corporate
governance, environmental protection, employment practice,
operating practice and community investment.

In order to achieve sustainable development, the PRC government
implemented the “Limits and Measurement Methods for Emissions
from Light-Duty Vehicles” (China Phase 6) (GB 18352.6-2016)
(“China 6 Standard”) in July 2020, suggesting more stringent
emission requirements on motor vehicles in the PRC. In view of
uncertain factors such as policy change, the COVID-19 outbreak
and the ongoing Sino-US trade war, the performance of the
sales of motor vehicles segment of the Group has been seriously
affected. The Group will closely monitor the changes in the business
environment and policy, and capitalise on the opportunities brought
by the expansion of the demand for motor vehicles in time of China’s
economic recovery, so as to stimulate the sales and clear the stocks
of motor vehicles. With the aim of pursuing a sustainable business
model, the Group will also adjust and formulate appropriate business
strategies, strive to complete the process of obtaining certification
administered by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the PRC
(“EE certification”) for the sales of China 6 Standard motor vehicles.
To mitigate risks, the Group will also invest in and develop other
businesses to achieve the diversification of the Group’s business.

The Group believes that sustainable development is vital to the earth
and contributes to the long-term prosperity and development of the
Group’s business. Therefore, the Group also strives to formulate
a sound governance structure to effectively manage ESG matters
related to the Group. The Board must assess the potential impact
of ESG issues on the overall strategy of the Group, set out ESG
management approach and strategy, and supervise the Group’s ESG
issues. Information about the Group’s ESG governance structure is
stated in the section headed “ESG Governance Structure”.
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To identify and prioritise major ESG issues that have a significant
impact on our operations and stakeholders, we continuously
communicate with internal and external stakeholders. The Board has
delegated the Task Force and hired an independent third party to
conduct materiality assessments. Information about the stakeholder
engagement channels and the materiality assessment conducted
by the Group is stated in the section headed “Stakeholder
Engagement” and “Materiality Assessment” respectively. In order to
have a deeper understanding of stakeholders’ expectations of the
Group’s sustainable development, the Group will further strengthen
its communication with stakeholders and formulate relevant policies
and measures based on their opinions to improve the Group’s ESG
performance.

As an enterprise that upholds corporate social responsibility, the
Group acknowledges the importance of reducing its impact on
the environment. To fulfil the Group’s commitment to corporate
social responsibility and allow the Group’s stakeholders to better
understand the Group’s progress in improving ESG performance, the
Group has decided to set quantifiable environmental targets. These
targets cover aspects of energy conservation, emission reduction
and waste management, with the aim to align with the national
vision of carbon neutrality and enhance corporate reputation. To
achieve these targets, the Group actively implements the principles
of sustainable development and adopts relevant measures at
operational levels. The Board has delegated the Task Force to collect
relevant ESG data, track and review our performance, and evaluate
the Group’s progress towards the targets.

In closing, on behalf of the Board and the management team of the
Group, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to our valued
stakeholders for the persistent support, while also expressing my
appreciation to our employees for their valuable contribution to the
development of the Group. Looking forward, the Group will continue
to deepen the integration of ESG concepts into its business strategy
and management system, and operate its business in a more
responsible and sustainable manner in order to create sustainable
value for shareholders and pursue a sustainable future.

Wang Jiawei
Chairman
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ESG GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Group has developed an ESG governance structure to ensure
ESG governance aligns with its business strategy and to integrate
ESG management into its business operations and decision-making
process.

The Board holds the overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG issues
and sets out ESG management approach, strategy, priorities and
objectives. In order to better manage the Group’s ESG performance,
related issues and potential risks, the Board regularly evaluates and
determines ESG-related risks and opportunities of the Group, as well
as reviews its performance against ESG-related targets. The Board
is also responsible for ensuring the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems and approving disclosures
in the ESG Report.

To develop systematic management of ESG issues under the
Board’s delegations, the Group has established the Task Force. The
Task Force is composed of core members from various departments,
which facilitates the Board’s oversight of ESG matters. The Task
Force has the responsibility for collecting and analysing ESG data,
monitoring and evaluating the Group’s ESG performance, keeping
track of and reviewing the progress made against the Group’s ESG-
related targets, ensuring compliance with ESG-related laws and
regulations, assisting in conducting materiality assessment and
preparing ESG reports. The Task Force arranges meetings regularly
to evaluate the effectiveness of current policies and procedures, and
formulates appropriate solutions to improve the overall performance
of ESG policies. The Task Force reports to the Board periodically,
assists in assessing and identifying the Group’s ESG risks and
opportunities, ensuring the implementation and effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

As a responsible enterprise, the Group attaches great importance to
communication with stakeholders and their feedback regarding our
business operation and ESG affairs, while proactively developing our
business and improving profitability, to balance the interests of all
parties and foster sustainable development. Therefore, stakeholder
engagement plays an indispensable role in the Group’s continuous
improvement in sustainable development performance. To fully
understand, respond, and address the core concerns of various
stakeholders, we have been maintaining close communication
with key stakeholders, including but not limited to investors and
shareholders, clients, business partners and suppliers, employees,
community, non-governmental organisations (“NGOs”) and media.
We are dedicated to working with our stakeholders to improve
the Group’s ESG performance and create higher value for a larger
community.

By using the diversified cooperation methods and communication
channels shown in the table below, we bring the expectation of our
stakeholders into our operation and ESG strategies.

Stakeholders Communication channels
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Expectations

FinE BEEE HAZ

Investors and shareholders ° Annual general meetings and ° Disclosing the latest information in

KREEMKE other general meetings due course
REBFERGREMBKRRE H R Ak EEME

° Annual reports, interim reports °

and quarterly reports

FH - FHBERFERS

° Announcements and circulars

NERIBE
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Focusing on financial growth,
improving operation efficiency,
and creating stable returns
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° Complying with relevant laws and
regulations
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Stakeholders

w5

Communication channels

Expectations

Fin& BEEE HAEE

Clients ° Customer service hotline and ° Identifying client needs and

=R email improving product and service
ERIRB AR B quality

Business partners and suppliers

BEBH KRR
Employees
{[=3=]

Community, NGOs and media

HEF FFBUF B R R R

48

° Supplier meetings and events
HEE & &G E

° Business cooperation
2 75 78 B¢

° Regular management
communications and
performance review

EHNBIE@AM TERRTZ

° Email

5

° ESG reports
ESGH &

THRERPRTE FENSERKR
HER

° Respecting clients’ privacy and
protecting their interests
EERRMRE REZRFHE

° Forging partnership to grow
together
BUSEREGR ERAKE

° Providing safe workplace
REZ2TFIRE

° Respecting all employees and
ensuring fair treatment
BEMBEEL HBREAFFHSE

° Supporting career growth and
providing internal training

EETREFEE REAIE

o Giving back to society and
promoting self-reliance
CleEtt g B A BB

° Fulfilling environmental protection
responsibility
BITIRBERESE

o Raising awareness of
environmental protection and
helping the needy, nurturing virtue
and values
MR B TIRR MM AERR  BiIE
EEEE
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

In hope of understanding the views and expectations of stakeholders
on the Group’s ESG performance effectively, we adopt a systematic
approach in conducting the annual materiality assessment. With
reference to the Group’s business development strategy and
industry practices, the Group identified and determined a list of
material ESG issues, which covers five major areas: corporate
governance, environmental protection, employment practice,
operating practice and community investment. The Group prepared
a questionnaire based on the list and invited relevant stakeholders to
rate the potential material issues according to the level of importance
of the ESG issues and their impacts on the economy, environment
and society. The results of the survey were analysed and a materiality
matrix was developed. The materiality matrix and the identified
material topics were reviewed and confirmed by the Board and the
Task Force and disclosed in the ESG Report. During the Reporting
Period, the Group’s materiality matrix is shown below:
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INFLUENGCE ON STAKEHOLDERS
HEHE

ASSESSMENTS AND DECISIONS

The Group’s Materiality Matrix during the Reporting Period
AEE RSN 2 EE A EEE

& R IRRAH ENEEEE

ﬂ Emissions Control and Climate Change Adaptation 6 Improving Safety Awareness

HrEsRE e

Low SIGNIFICANCE OF ECONOMIC, ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACTS

© Customer Communication
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9 Waste Management @ Training Management @ Customer Privacy Protection @ Community Investment
BEEYER EIER FELBRE HERKRE

@ Use of Resources @ Prevention of Child and Forced Labour {§) Advertising and Labeling
HIRHRE P& T Roghlss T S RIS

o Employment @ Supply Chain Management @ Anti-corruption and Anti-fraud
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{® Prevention of Money Laundering
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During the Reporting Period, the Group confirms that it has
established appropriate and effective management policies
and monitoring systems on ESG issues, and confirms that the
disclosures meet the requirements of the ESG Reporting Guide.

CONTACT US

The Group welcomes opinions and suggestions from stakeholders.
You can provide your valuable advice on the ESG report or the
Group’s performance on sustainable development via:

Address:

Phone:
Fax:
Email:

16/F, CMA Building, 64-66 Connaught Road Central,
Hong Kong

(852) 2297 9900

(852) 2865 3888

info@sinofortune.hk

A. ENVIRONMENTAL

A1.

Emissions

The Group realises that the public and investors are
paying more attention to environmental protection and
corporate social responsibility. Therefore, we always
attach great importance to sound environmental
management and strive to protect the environment to fulfil
the Group’s social responsibility. To minimise pollution
and environmental damage arising from our daily business
operations, we actively review the Group’s environmental
policies and strive to improve the environmental
management in our business process through a series of
measures and comply with the applicable environmental
regulations and standards.

The Group has established environmental management
system and procedures for the business operations in
Hong Kong and the PRC to regulate the exhaust gas,
greenhouse gas (“GHG”) and non-hazardous wastes
generated during the operation in order to contribute
to environmental protection and to pursue the goal of
sustainable development.
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To comply with relevant local laws and regulations and
implement environmental policies, the Group keeps
track of the latest national and regional environmental
protection laws and regulations regularly, and uses them
as a basis to strengthen our environmental protection
measures. The Group strictly abides by the regulations
including the “Environmental Protection Law of the
People’s Republic of China”, “Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Water
Pollution”, "Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by
Solid Waste” in the PRC and “Air Pollution Control
Ordinance”, “Waste Disposal Ordinance”, “Water
Pollution Control Ordinance”, “Product Eco-responsibility
Ordinance” in Hong Kong and other legislations regarding
environmental protection in the PRC and Hong Kong.

During the Reporting Period, there was no incident of
non-compliance with the relevant local environmental
laws and regulations relating to exhaust gas and GHG
emissions, discharges of pollutants into water and land
and generation of hazardous or non-hazardous wastes
that have a significant impact on the Group.

Exhaust Gas Emissions

The Group’s exhaust gas emissions are mainly generated
from the consumption of petrol by vehicles. To mitigate
emissions, the Group will gradually reduce the total
exhaust gas emissions intensity over the next five years,
using 2021 as the base year. We actively execute the
following exhaust gas emission reduction measures:

° Regularly maintain and repair vehicles to prevent
them from generating excess exhaust gas emissions
from broken parts and other reasons; and

° Phase out unqualified trucks in accordance with the
local emission regulations.
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The Group has made preliminary improvements to its data
collection system and has therefore included exhaust gas
emissions disclosure to the ESG Report. The performance
of exhaust gas emissions is summarised below:
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FEBEEVNI ZTZHBERER
#t o AL ER R BIREMA
RESGIR & o A& B BIEE RN
RIBHAOT ¢

Type of exhaust gas Unit 2021
EERESE B i —=S_—5F
Nitrogen oxides (NOX) kg 8.61
aga1t% (NOx) /N
Sulphur oxides (SOx) kg 0.21
et (SOx) NN
Particulate matter (PM) kg 0.63
gErY (PM) /NI

GHG Emissions

The major sources of GHG emissions of the Group are
direct GHG emissions from the consumption of petrol by
vehicles (Scope 1), energy indirect GHG emissions from
purchased electricity (Scope 2) and other indirect GHG
emissions from employees’ business trips (Scope 3). In
line with the nation’s strategic development of overall
GHG emissions reduction to achieve the sustainable
development goal of energy-saving and carbon reduction,
the Group will gradually reduce the total GHG emissions
intensity over the next five years, using 2021 as the base
year. Also, the Group has been actively reducing GHG
emissions by reducing energy consumption, thereby
enhancing the Group’s reputation. With respect to the
emission sources mentioned above, we actively adopt the
following emission reduction measures:

° Actively adopt emission reduction measures on
vehicles, which is explained in the section “Exhaust
Gas Emissions” in this Aspect;

° Actively adopt environmental protection and energy-
saving measures, which is explained in the section
“Energy Management” in Aspect A2;

° Reduce the frequency of business trips through
electronic communication channels, such as
conference calls and WeChat conferences; and

o Post notices and posters with green messages at
prominent locations in the office to promote the best
practice of environmental management and raise
employees’ awareness of environment protection.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group has closed three
companies in Shenzhen and implemented work-from-
home arrangement, the fuel and electricity consumption
has thus reduced. Business travel by employees has
also reduced due to the impact of the pandemic. As a
result, the total GHG emissions intensity of the Group

BRI -HHERELSHRS

FEE RS HIRERE=ER
NAT > LEMAERTELH
MR R BEERMBL - R %
BRE EIBHBEIRITA A
Do BT T T BEMFLL ) &
EEEREREHNRERE TR

has decreased by approximately 44.31% compared to TH44.31% REFBRERE

2020. The performance of GHG emissions is summarised BERCERIBEM W T ¢

below:

Indicator! Unit 2021 2020

izt B (i —E-—% ST

Scope 1 — Direct GHG emissions

HE——BRAEREIK

e Fuel consumption by vehicles tCO2e 38.26 46.67
BRI EAE W —FEEE

Scope 2 — Energy indirect GHG emissions

HE—-fEREFBRERBHIK

e Purchased electricity tCO2e 42.18 92.39
SMEEE S WE—EEREE

Scope 3 — Other indirect GHG emissions

#HE= —HMEBRERBIEW

e Business travel tCO2e 8.07 13.85
MR MR EREE

Total GHG emissions (Scope 1, 2 and 3)  tCOze 88.51 152.91

BERBHREE @E— ZKk>) WE—EEREE

Total GHG emissions intensity tCO2e/employee? 1.81 3.25

RERBHIREERE _EbiREE EE?

Notes: e

1. GHG emission data is presented in terms of carbon dioxide 1. BEREHERENLE _ALRE

equivalent and are based on, including but not limited to, “The
Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A Corporate Accounting and Reporting
Standards” issued by the World Resources Institute and the World
Business Council for Sustainable Development, the latest release
of baseline emission factors for regional power grids in China, the
“Global Warming Potential Values” from the IPCC Fifth Assessment
Report, 2014 (AR5), “How to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix
Il Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock
Exchange and the “Sustainability Report 2020” released by HK
Electric.

2. As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the Group had a
total of 49 and 47 employees respectively. The data are also used
for calculating other intensity data.

T —F5R
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Sewage Discharge

Given the nature of the Group’s business, it does not
generate any industrial wastewater in the course of
operation, but only domestic sewage. Water supply and
discharge are solely controlled by the office building
management, of which it is not feasible for the Group to
obtain water consumption and discharge data or sub-
metering from the relevant management office. Therefore,
the Group cannot provide statistical data on water
consumption and discharge. However, we believe that
the domestic sewage discharge amount of the Group is
normal and reasonable.

Waste Management

The Group adheres to the principles of waste
management and is dedicated to the reasonable
management and disposal of wastes generated from our
business activities. The Group maintains a high standard
in reducing wastes, educates employees the importance
of sustainable development and provides them with
relevant supports to improve their skills and knowledge in
sustainable development.

Hazardous Wastes

Due to its business nature, the Group does not generate
any significant amount of hazardous wastes during daily
operation, and therefore no relevant targets have been
set. Nevertheless, we are devoted to waste reduction.
If any hazardous waste is generated, the Group must
appoint a qualified chemical waste collector to handle
such waste to comply with relevant environmental laws
and regulations. Besides, we reduce the generation of
e-waste by various methods, such as donating used
electronic gadgets to charitable organisations.
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Non-hazardous Wastes

The major non-hazardous wastes generated during
our operation is paper. In addition to requiring our
employees to properly dispose of such office wastes
and encouraging them to sort them before disposal, we
arrange for staff to handle them centrally. The Group will
gradually reduce the total non-hazardous wastes intensity
over the next five years, using 2021 as the base year.
With regard to paper consumption in the office, we have
implemented the following measures:

° Use more electronic documents and establish
electronic work processes;

o Recycle used paper;

° Try to avoid printing and copying documents; and

° Try to print or copy on both sides.

With the above measures, the employees’ awareness of
waste management has been raised. The performance of
non-hazardous wastes generation is summarised below:

R HTERELBHRS

HEEZEEY
HEEEBRRETEENTERESE
BEEMARR - BMBFTEKRE
THE=EZENRTRETEEER
DEBREN TLEHAEHR —E
BoAERBU_ZT_—FFE
EFE O ERAKREEZTREEE
EREEYFRE - HHWAEMER
MR KBS N5IEHE

e ZHHABFHE BEBIUBFL

ERAE 5

o RIRFEAME

s RBREBRIHKENXH;
Y4

s REFEAEEIENSFH-

il LEN RANE THE
EYEENERCEFRRES &
ERNTEEEEEYHRERR
BEIRAN T

Types of wastes Unit 2021 20208

EX W EE R B (i —E-—% —E_FES

Total non-hazardous wastes

mEEEYEE

e Paper tonnes 0.40 0.48
S 95

Total non-hazardous wastes intensity tonnes/employee 0.01 0.01

BEBEEVEERE Mg BE

Note: HBaE .

3. The Group has restated the 2020 data in unit of tonnes to improve 3. NEEEUMABENEI S ZF

consistency.
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Use of Resources

The Group strictly complies with relevant local laws and
regulations on environmental protection, formulated
various internal environmental protection guidelines and
measures, and cooperated with the rules of the buildings
where our offices are located, in order to achieve energy-
saving and consumption reduction, thus minimise the
negative environmental impact of our business operation.

We review the business operation process regularly, carry
out improvement measures for effective use of water,
electricity and other resources, reduce or even stop the
use of wasteful or environmentally polluting products,
with the aim of achieving greater energy efficiency and
reducing unnecessary consumption of resources.

Energy Management

The Group’s major energy consumption are electricity
consumed in office and petrol consumed by vehicles.
To uphold the Group’s commitment to energy
conservation, the Group will gradually reduce the total
energy consumption intensity over the next five years,
using 2021 as the base year. We will conduct annual
seminars and other activities to raise awareness of
energy conservation among our employees. Aside from
energy-saving measures for vehicles described in section
“Exhaust Gas Emissions” under Aspect A1, the Group
has established system to promote the green office
culture to achieve the objective of electricity-saving and
efficient use of electricity. Relevant measures are listed
below:

° Use lighting system with low energy consumption
feature, such as LED lamps;

o Limit the use of air-conditioning to lower electricity
consumption;

° Encourage employees to turn off their computers
when they are away for long periods and put them
on hibernating or sleeping mode when they are out
for lunch breaks; and

° Enhance the maintenance and repairment of air
conditioners and computers to ensure the best
condition of all electronic devices and the efficient
use of electricity.

A2.
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The Group will review the effectiveness of these measures
from time to time and make adjustments according to the
operation condition to improve the efficiency of the use
of resources. With these energy-saving measures, the
employees’ awareness of energy conservation has been
increased.

As the Group has closed three companies in Shenzhen
during the Reporting Period and implemented work-from-
home arrangement during the pandemic, the total energy
consumption intensity of the Group has decreased by
approximately 38.22% compared to 2020. The energy
consumption performance is summarised below:

B -HERELBRS

7 & B R A B AR 5 b 23 i RS
PR RS > I (A FE I B R T A PR
BoLEERABRERAUXN
B -ZEBZEMHAOMERIENR B
THHVERNEHRR[URES

MR AEEERN RS HABBAE=
BRIAT W% 15 B
ERIFLHE AEBRBERE
EREER-ZZEZFTEY
38.22% c AE BBV EETROHFERIR
B

Types of energy Unit 2021 2020

AeiRTELE E il —ZE_—F —_T_TF

Direct energy consumption

BEREEIRHRE

e Petrol MWh 139.41 170.05
U JK BB

Indirect energy consumption

25 TRH FE

e Purchased electricity MWh 64.90 147.22
SNEBEE JK R B

Total energy consumption MWHh 204.31 317.27

AERAEFER JK BB

Total energy consumption intensity MWh/employee 4.17 6.75

EREEERE KEEEE

Water Management KR EHE

The Group’s water consumption is mainly for domestic
use in the office area. Due to the geographical location
of the Group’s operations, the Group does not have any
issues in sourcing water that is fit for purpose.
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As most of the offices of the Group are solely controlled
by the building management in terms of water supply
and discharge, it is not feasible for such management
office to provide water consumption and discharge
data or sub-metering for an individual unit, and the
Group believes that only providing data for the individual
office of the Group does not reflect the actual water
consumption. Therefore, total water consumption data is
not disclosed in this ESG Report and the Group did not
set any quantifiable targets related to improving water
efficiency. To reduce water consumption, the Group will
conduct annual seminars and other activities to raise
the awareness of water conservation among employees.
From 2022, the Group will participate in activities such
as World Water Day annually and put up posters or other
promotional materials at prominent locations in the offices
to promote water conservation.

Use of Packaging Materials

Due to business nature, the Group does not sell any
physical product, and therefore, the Group’s business
does not involve the use of packaging materials.

The Environment and Natural Resources

Despite that the Group’s major operations do not have
a significant impact on the environment and natural
resources, we, as a responsible corporate, are committed
to minimising the negative impact of our business
to the environment by assessing the environmental
risks of our operations and formulating appropriate
environmental measures in the hope of contributing to
environment protection. In addition to abiding by relevant
environmental laws and regulations and the international
standards, we strive to achieve environmental
sustainability goals by incorporating the concept of
environmental and natural resource protection into our
internal management and daily operation activities.

A3.
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Raising Environmental Awareness

We are convinced that in addition to strictly requiring
employees to implement the environmental protection
measures formulated by the Group, we need to
proactively promote environmental awareness among
our employees to effectively enhance our environmental
protection standards. Therefore, the Group reviews
its Code of Conduct, issues environmental guidelines
and notices to its employees and shares relevant
environmental information such as green office from
time to time. We will also consider participating in more
feasible and appropriate activities to help our employees
increase their awareness of the environment and natural
resources.

Indoor Air Quality

The Group is dedicated to providing our employees
with a comfortable and green working environment by
constantly monitoring and measuring the indoor air quality
of the workplace. We have equipped the office with
air purification equipment, cleaned the air-conditioning
system, including air filters and air duct, and selected
products low or zero in volatile organic compounds, etc.
These measures can help avoid the blockage of vents
and exhaust pipes by filtering out pollutants and dust,
thereby maintain satisfactory indoor ventilation, indoor air
quality, and proper system operation.

ERESEERAERAR | 225K
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A4. Climate Change Ad. RIEREIE
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Climate change poses escalating risks and challenges to
the global economy, and such risks may negatively impact
the Group’s financial and motor vehicles business. As a
result, the Group is aware of the importance of identifying
and mitigating any major impacts caused by climate
change. Pursuant to the International Recommendations
from Task Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures
(“TCFD”) established by the Financial Stability Board,
the management of the Group has evaluated and fully
recognised the impact of climate-related risks on the
Group’s business and corresponding opportunities.
Based upon the evaluation, the Group has integrated
climate risks into its enterprise risk management
process to manage and review climate-related risks and
seize relevant opportunities. With reference to the risk
categorisation by TCFD, the identified climate-related
risks of the Group and corresponding actions taken to
manage them are as follows:

Physical Risks

The increasing frequency and severity of extreme weather
events such as extreme cold or extreme heat, storms,
rainstorms and typhoons, could lead to an increased
risk of power shortages, interrupt the supply chain and
damage the Group’s assets, disrupting the operation of
the Group’s offices and resulting in reduced revenue,
as well as increasing the cost of repairing or restoring
damaged assets. These events could also disrupt the
work of employees and even cause casualties. As a
countermeasure, the Group has formulated Disaster
Recovery Plan for emergencies so that loss can be
reduced or avoided when extreme weather events affect
the Group’s operating sites. The Group will identify these
risks and prioritise those that may have a significant
impact to take precautionary measures in the first place.
At the same time, the Group will examine the possibility
of a change of business model to reduce or avoid these
serious effects on business operations.
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Transition Risks

To achieve sustainable development, governments
are enacting climate-related legislation or tightening
regulations to support the global vision of decarbonisation.
For example, the PRC government has started to
implement the China 6 Standard, which imposes more
stringent emission requirements on motor vehicles in
the PRC and has seriously affected the performance
of the sales of motor vehicles segment of the Group.
The Group will closely monitor the changes in the
business environment and policy, and capitalise on the
opportunities brought by the expansion of the demand for
motor vehicles in a time of China’s economic recovery, to
stimulate the sales and clear the stocks of motor vehicles.
With the aim of pursuing a sustainable business model,
the Group will also adjust and formulate appropriate
business strategies, strive to complete the process of
obtaining EE certification for the sales of China 6 Standard
motor vehicles. To mitigate risks, the Group will also
invest in and develop other businesses to achieve the
diversification of the Group’s business.

Besides, the Stock Exchange has required listed
companies to enhance climate-related disclosures in their
ESG reports, which may result in increased compliance
costs. Failure to meet the climate change compliance
requirements may expose the Group to risks of claims
and lawsuits. Corporate reputation may also decline.
The Group will regularly monitor existing and emerging
climate-related trends, policies and regulations to avoid
reputational risks due to delayed response. In addition, in
order to reduce the Group’s environmental impact and to
comply with the requirements of the Stock Exchange, the
Group has set targets to reduce energy consumption and
GHG emissions. The Group will continue to assess the
effectiveness of the Group’s actions to address climate
change and enhance its resilience against climate-related
issues.

ERESEERAERAR | 225K

B -HERELBRS

BrRRE

RERIFESER SMBAHE
At 1 5T R 1% A8 BR 1L A IR BOR
R U F 2RI FE R o 5] 30
PEBFREEREIRE #
thEl BT B B AR B HE R
B EAEEBEESESENE
RRIBERFE - FEEREE
DIR A R IR R BURE L 18
BhEBEECHEER RAOSE
BREEE  RAEERBEAR
BEFE - REXRITRFENBEER
N AERTERERFESHE
BUR X RS BT BINIRE
AEERREDERERF LRE
RERAMES BRAEEE
BRZ b

SO0 BRI ER EHARE
HESGHR & s B m & E
RE MEBASRAEAEERAM
Ene Mk mEREEENS
REF AEEAESTEHBERE
MR EEEBHEEAAE
fEeoAEEK T EHERNER R
BEERNRERMEBSE K
REGER > U R R R EEE M
EYNEERRE U B A
EEHRENZERT OB
WEXR > XEBEEFIE R ER
HEMBEREHFRNER K
EEREETEAERRERE
BETHNANE LIEREIE
HRIEERABENES -

61



62

ENVIRONMENTAL, SociaL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

I8 1

" HERELBHRS

B. SOCIAL

B1.

Employment

The Group believes that human resources are the
Group’s most valuable asset and the core of its
competitive advantage, as well as the foundation for
corporate sustainable development. Therefore, we
are dedicated to improving our employment system in
order to attract, cultivate and retain talents. Besides,
the Group adheres to the people-oriented management
approach and has developed an Employee Manual to
standardise the employment policies and codes to ensure
that our employees clearly understand their rights and
responsibilities, and to respect and protect the legitimate
rights and interests of every employee. By creating a
harmonious and warm working atmosphere, the Group
makes every employee feel cared for and valued by the
Group.

The Group has complied with all laws and regulations
related to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare, including but not limited to the
“Employment Ordinance” of Hong Kong, the “Labour
Law of the People’s Republic of China” and the “Labour
Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China” and
other existing laws and regulations. During the Reporting
Period, the Group was not aware of any incident of
non-compliance with laws and regulations relating to
employment that had a significant impact on the Group.
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As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 49 full-time
employees and the composition is shown below:

R HTERELBHRS

BHE_S_—F+_-_B=+—
HA"EBBA R4 HIE
E-HEDWT :

Number of
employees Percentage
EE A BSH
By gender DU R E 3
Male B4 26 53.06%
Female pegics 23 46.94%
By age group MERARE 2
<31 <31 6 12.24%
31-39 31-39 9 18.37%
40-49 40-49 12 24.49%
50-59 50-59 10 20.41%
>59 >59 12 24.49%
By geographical location BUsth & &1 7
Chongging B5E 8 16.33%
Shenzhen 3] 23 46.94%
Hong Kong 5% 18 36.73%
By employee category LEEERIEI 5
Administrative staff THEEBAE 19 38.78%
Other staff HMBT 30 61.22%

Recruitment, Promotion, Remuneration and Dismissal

We value talents and regard them as our most valuable
and core assets, uphold the principle of fairness,
impartiality and openness employment in recruiting
talents to provide sufficient talent reserves for the Group’s
various businesses and strengthen the competitiveness
of our business. After employees’ appraisal, the Group
determines employees’ salaries, benefits and promotion
opportunities based upon their job nature, experience,
work performance, results and market condition. The
Group guarantees fair treatment of employees and
prevents discrimination based on gender, race, religion,
age, marital and family status, disability or any other
grounds.
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In accordance with related laws and regulations,
we clearly stated the remuneration packages of our
employees in our Employee Manual. Apart from basic
salary, the Group also offers employees with their benefits
and rights, which include but not limited to Mandatory
Provident Fund, social insurance, directors and officer’s
liability insurance and medical benefits, statutory and
additional annual leave, sick leave, parental leave,
allowance and severance pay. For employees in the PRC,
the Group pays “Five Social Insurance and One Housing
Fund” in accordance with the law, including endowment
insurance, medical insurance, unemployment insurance,
employment injury insurance, maternity insurance and
housing provident fund to protect employees’ social
insurance entitlements. In addition, the Group complies
with the relevant employment ordinance and guidance.
If employees need to be dismissed, we will follow the
procedures and provide reasonable compensation to
the dismissed employees. The relevant provisions on
termination of the employment relationship have been set
out in the employment contract of every staff.

During the Reporting Period, the employee turnover rate*
of the Group is 4.12% and the composition is shown as
follows:
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Notes:

4, The overall employee turnover rate is calculated by dividing
the total number of employees leaving employment during the
Reporting Period by the average number of employees at the
beginning and the end of the Reporting Period.

5. The employee turnover rate for each category is calculated by
dividing the number of employees leaving employment in the
specified category during the Reporting Period by the average
number of employees in the specified category at the beginning
and end of the Reporting Period.

Equal Opportunity, Diversity and Anti-discrimination

The Group understands the value of a diverse and
professional team of talents. We are dedicated to
developing and maintaining an inclusive and cooperate
workplace culture where all staff can thrive. The Group is
devoted to providing equal opportunity for all employees
and prevent any discrimination, physical or verbal
harassment in the workplace based on gender, race,
religion, age, marital and family status, disability or any
other grounds. To ensure a fair and equal protection for
all employees, the Group has zero-tolerate to any form of
workplace sexual harassment or bullying.

Communication Channel

The Group attaches importance to employees’
communication. Therefore, we have established various
communication channels to encourage employees
to express their views and facilitate communication
between management and employees. We also improve
business operation and management policies to
enhance operational efficiency. Also, we organise group
activities regularly such as staff dinner to strengthen
communication among employees and increase their
sense of belongings towards the Group.

Health and Safety

The Group’s operation does not involve any high-risk
activities. The Group highly values employees’ health and
safety and is devoted to protecting our employees’ safety
by providing a safe workplace. According to industry
practices and regulations, we formulate work safety
guidelines to ensure the cleanliness and tidiness of the
workplace, eliminate any potential health and safety risks,
and strictly implement relevant measures.
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We strictly comply with the “Labour law of the People’s
Republic of China”, the “Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Prevention and Treatment of Occupational
Diseases”, “Fire Control Law of the People’s Republic
of China” of the PRC, and the “Occupational Safety and
Health Ordinance” of Hong Kong and other relevant
laws and regulations. In the past three years (including
the Reporting Period), there was no significant incident
of safety and work-related fatalities or injuries. The
Group was not aware of any non-compliance with health
and safety laws and regulations that had a significant
impact on the Group relating to providing a safe working
environment and protecting employees from occupational
hazards.

Improving Safety Awareness

The Group complies with related working safety
guidelines and constantly educates and reminds
employees of the importance of work health and safety.
The Group provides employees with relevant information
on crime prevention and emergency response through
training, promotions, drills and regular safety inspections.
We also coordinate with other organisations and property
management company of the office building, and
participate in regular fire drills to raise employees’ safety
and fire prevention awareness. In addition, our Employee
Manual clearly states the working safety guidelines
which are in accordance with the law and regulations.
If there are any violations of the guidelines, we will take
appropriate disciplinary actions or legal proceedings
against the staff to raise employees’ health and safety
awareness during work.

Physical and Mental Health

We care for our employees, especially for their mental
health. We encourage our employees to achieve work-life
balance and promote team cohesion, relieve stress and
create a harmonious working environment through social
activities. Meanwhile, we provide our employees with
information about health and safety, aiming to improve
their health consciousness.
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Response to COVID-19 Pandemic

In response to the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic,
the Group has taken measures to enhance health and
safety precautions in the office to ensure the health of
employees, the Group’s internal safety and business
continuity. In addition to increasing the frequency of
cleaning and disinfection in the office areas, the Group
strictly requires staff to wear surgical masks in the office,
conducts stringent temperature checks, and remind
employees of the importance of maintaining personal
hygiene.

Development and Training

The Group believes that employees can facilitate the
Group’s sustainable development and maintain the
Group’s core value and competitiveness. Hence, the
Group is committed to foster employees’ growth and
development. We cater to the needs of employees at
all levels through diversified training models, including
induction and management training, in order to improve
the quality of service provided by employees. In addition,
we offer employees comprehensive and various on-
the-job training programmes and professional training
to improve their quality, qualifications and skills and
stimulate their potential. We also encourage our staff
to discuss with management and supervisors on their
promotion and career objective, and to attend business-
related training.

Training Management

The Group’s management is responsible to draw up
the training program annually and keep training records
in order to regulate training management and arrange
related professional training programs. The management
also conducts a regular review of the effectiveness of
different training programs to improve the efficiency
and quality of the Group’s training system and improve
employees’ working performances and efficiency.
The Group also provides subsidies and benefits to
encourage employees to participate in some external
training programs. In accordance with the annual training
program, the Group evaluates and monitors its training
programs and arrange suitable training courses for
different employees to help them reach their full potential.
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Training Programmes

The Group arranges professional training and
development programs, including expertise of financial
service and information technology, training on customer
service and product knowledge, regulatory seminars
and guidance, professional training on anti-corruption
and other relevant training programmes. We also highly
encourage the Directors and senior management to
participate in the training on the Listing Rules on the
GEM of The Stock Exchange and corporate governance
in order to continuously enhance the Group’s internal
control and corporate governance level. We also
encourage accounting and secretarial staff to update their
relevant professional knowledge regularly.

During the Reporting Period, the percentage of
employees trained® of the Group was approximately
55.10%, and the average training hours completed per
employee’ was approximately 3.12 hours. The breakdown
of the percentage of employees trained and the average
training hours by gender and employee category is as
follows:
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dividing the total number of employees who took part in training
during the Reporting Period by the total number of employees at
the end of the Reporting Period.

7. The average training hours completed per employee is calculated
by dividing the total number of training hours during the Reporting
Period by the total number of employees at the end of the
Reporting Period.

ZlfE B AR AFRUURE ARG RE
BA#EE-

7. BHRETAZRINFHERHER
S HIRAR R 8BS 2L PR DU &5 B R
BESAME-

Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2021



B4.

ERESEEEBRAF |

ENVIRONMENTAL, SociaL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

8. The percentage of employees trained by category is calculated
by dividing the number of employees in the specified category
who took part in training during the Reporting Period by the
total number of employees who took part in training during the
Reporting Period.

9. The average training hours by category is calculated by dividing the
number of training hours for employees in the specified category
during the Reporting Period by the number of employees in the
specified category at the end of Reporting Period.

Labour Standards

Prevention of Child and Forced Labour

The Group strictly complies with the “Employment
Ordinance” of Hong Kong, as well as the “Regulation
on Labour Security Supervision”, the “Labour Law of
the People’s Republic of China” and “Labour Contract
Law of the People’s Republic of China” of the PRC, and
has formulated internal guidelines and labour policies
with reference to international labour standards. The
recruitment process is closely monitored under the
Group’s human resources management scheme to
prevent any employment of child labour, forced labour,
or any discrimination by race, religion, age or disability
in the PRC and Hong Kong. The Group will conduct
investigations, punishment or dismissal of relevant
employees immediately when any non-compliance is
being discovered. If necessary, the Group will further
improve the labour mechanism against illegal behaviours.
During the Reporting Period, the Group did not identify
any significant non-compliance of laws and regulations
related to prevention of child and forced labour, and there
were no incidents of discrimination involving race, religion,
age, disability, etc.

The Group requires all new employees to provide true and
accurate personal identification information. All personal
information, including identity card and bank accounts,
will be strictly scrutinised by our recruiters. The Group has
established a refined recruitment process for checking
candidates’ background and formal reporting procedures
to handle any exceptional cases. The Group also
conducts self-audits and inspections on a regular basis to
prevent child labour and forced labour.
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In addition, the Group’s employees work overtime on
a voluntary basis to avoid any violation of the labour
standards and protect employee’s legal rights and
interests. The Group also prohibits any punitive measures,
management practices and behaviours involving
verbal abuse, physical punishment, oppression, sexual
harassment (including inappropriate languages, postures
and physical contact), etc. against its employees for any
reason. The Group also avoids engaging suppliers with
known records of using child labour and forced labour in
their operations.

Supply Chain Management

As the Group is principally engaged in finance-related
businesses, it purchased stationery, paper, computers
and other office stationery but did not enter into any long-
term or bulk purchase agreements with any suppliers
during the Reporting Period. It did not engage major
suppliers for the provision of products, raw materials and
services, nor did it take part in any negotiation between
its corporate or institutional clients and their suppliers.
Two of the Group’s subsidiaries purchased motherboards,
modules, display modules, batteries, cases and vehicles
from its suppliers.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has engaged
a total of 13 suppliers. The number of suppliers by
geographic region is as follows.
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To manage potential environmental and social risks in its
supply chain, the Group has established a stringent and
standardised procurement system and supplier selection
process, and has implemented relevant practices relating
to engaging suppliers to all suppliers within the reporting
scope.
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Procurement Mechanism

We promote fair and open competition and aim to
develop long-term relationships based on mutual trust,
and the Group’s subsidiaries have strictly complied with
the “Bidding Law of the People’s Republic of China”
and other related laws and regulations during the
procurement. Our suppliers are required to work in a
responsible manner, and comply all relevant regulations,
international treaties and contractual responsibilities.
Therefore, the Group closely monitors the procurement
made by our staff and forbids any practices that are
against business ethics.

The Group have a set of control procedures and codes
of conduct for the procurement process to monitor our
employees’ procurement activities and strictly prohibit
any practices that are against business ethics. We closely
communicate with our subsidiaries and require them
to carefully manage the relationship with suppliers and
business partners in avoidance of transfer of interests or
exploitation of suppliers.

The Group expects suppliers to meet its standards in
terms of environment, society, corporate governance,
business ethics, etc. The Group will evaluate the
environmental and social risks of suppliers’ operation
and business before entering into any long-term business
relationship with potential suppliers, to ensure suppliers’
compliance with trade laws, relevant environmental and
social regulations as well as the other requirements, and
to examine the supplier’s awareness in each of these
areas. The Group is concerned about the integrity of
suppliers and partners and will only select those with a
good business track record without any material non-
compliance or unethical behaviours.
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Additionally, the Group endeavours to support local
economies and prioritises the procurement from local and
regional suppliers to lower the carbon footprint during
transportation. The Group also gives priority to suppliers
that use environmentally preferable products and
services in the selection process, and strives to minimise
potential environmental and social risks in the supply
chain. The Group will continue to review its supply chain
periodically with regard to the suppliers’ performance and
environmental and social standards. Any material violation
of laws and regulations may lead to the termination of
supplier contracts.

Product Responsibility

The Group’s products and services include securities
and futures contracts trading service, and sales of motor
vehicles, provision of agency services and accessories
sourcing. As high-quality products and services can help
build a strong corporate reputation, we are dedicated to
maintaining high-level service and product quality through
internal control. We maintain on-going communication
with our customers to ensure that we understand
and meet their demands and expectation, as well as
understand their level of satisfaction to improve our
service quality.

We strictly comply with all relevant laws and regulations,
including but not limited to “Law of the People’s Republic
of China on the Protection of Consumer Rights and
Interests”, “Advertisement Law of the People’s Republic
of China”, “Interim Measures for the Administration
of Internet Advertising”, “Product Quality Law of the
People’s Republic of China” of the PRC, as well as
the “Trade Descriptions Ordinance” of Hong Kong on
customers protection. During the Reporting Period, the
Group was not aware of any material non-compliance
with any laws and regulations in relation to product
and service quality, and no material complaints were
received in relation to products and services. Customer
satisfaction has reached our expected level. Due to the
nature of the Group’s business, no recall of products due
to health and safety reasons is required.
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Customer Communication

The Group strives to provide our customers with
competitive products and services with standardised
service quality, humanised service process and regulated
service management. We stress the importance of clients’
needs and collect their opinions through our customer
manager, and regards them as the foundation for the
continuous improvement of our business. Customers can
submit their complaints via email, phone or in person.
The process is confidential to protect all parties’ interest
and ensure fairness and proper documentation of the
process.

The complaint handling procedures have been
established by the Group to allow relevant departments
to carry out a detailed investigation, actively monitor
handling process, coordinate and communicate with all
involved parties, and properly respond to complaints.
We strive to understand the truth and root causes
of complaints made by our customers and identify
responsible parties and areas for improvement in order to
enhance the Group’s service quality, as well as to retain
customers by earning their loyalty towards the Group’s
service and to facilitate the Group’s future development.

Customer Privacy Protection

Due to its business nature, the Group handles a large
amount of customer personal or corporate information.
The Group attaches high importance to safeguarding
clients’ interests and privacy and strives to maintain and
protect personal data. Through adopting a high standard
of security and confidentiality towards customer privacy
protection, we comply with regulatory requirements
regarding data privacy. We have formulated relevant
guidelines and handbook to regulate employees’ handling
of personal data of clients. We also arrange training
from time to time to raise the employees’ awareness
of privacy protection. According to our data protection
policy, we have to comply with the Private Policy
Statement and notify our customers the general policies
and practices of personal information collection, storage
and utilisation. The Group maintains and reviews all
customer communication channels to obtain feedback,
handle complaints in a timely manner so as to conduct
inspections and improve customer service system.
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Intellectual Property Rights

Despite intellectual property rights are not considered a
material aspect to the Group due to the Group’s business
nature, the Group has established relevant policies to
govern the information technology management within
the Group. The IT Department is in charge of securing
proper licenses for software, hardware and information
the Group uses in its business operation. Duplication or
downloading of information, software, and images from
the internet must be approved by relevant department.
Furthermore, the Group closely monitors and prevents
any infringement behaviour such as counterfeit
trademarks in the market. The Group will continue to
monitor to ensure that its intellectual property rights are
not being infringed upon.

Advertising and Labelling

Due to its business nature, the Group conducts limited
advertising campaigns and therefore does not involve any
significant advertising-related risks. Nevertheless, in terms
of the advertisement of products and services, we strictly
regulate and monitor products and services promotion
to ensure that they comply with advertising and
labelling related laws and regulations. Such marketing
and promotion must accurately reflect the quality and
performance of the Group’s products and services in
order to let clients to “get what they see”.

Anti-corruption

The Group believes that a clean corporate culture is the
key to our continued success. Therefore, we stress on
anti-corruption efforts and policy formulation, and strictly
prohibit any corruption activities. The Group strictly
complies with “Company Law of the People’s Republic of
China”, “Bidding Law of the People’s Republic of China”
of the PRC and the “Prevention of Bribery Ordinance”
of Hong Kong. During the Reporting Period, the Group
did not identify any material non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations of bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering nor any concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices.

B7.
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The Board adopts “zero-tolerance” attitude towards
corruption and fraud while such standard has been
outlined in our operation and employment policies. The
Group strictly complies with relevant laws and morale
standards of corruption and proactively maintains a good
corporate governance and risk control to protect the
interests of stakeholders and develop corporate culture
with integrity, openness and transparency.

Prevention of Money Laundering

To maintain the Group’s integrity and credibility, we
forbid any activities related to money laundering and
terrorist. The Finance Department is responsible to
evaluate the risk of money laundering in our business
operation annually, handle any suspicious cases of money
laundering, review all applicable policies and guidelines
published by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority and
other financial regulators on a regular basis and evaluate
the effectiveness on the enforcement of regulations in the
Group’s business operation.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has disseminated
the Hong Kong Companies Registry’s guidelines on anti-
money laundering and counter-terrorist financing to 6
directors via email. Such training familiarises them with
their corresponding roles and responsibilities in anti-
corruption and business ethics. The Group has also
provided a total of approximately 43.5 hours of training on
anti-money laundering to 19 employees to develop their
anti-corruption awareness and good professional conduct
and to comply with the regulations in Hong Kong and the
PRC.

Whistleblowing Mechanism

The Group educates all employees on anti-corruption
awareness and encourages them to report any corruption
or fraud activities. We promptly conduct inspections and
take necessary measures while protecting the identity
of the whistle-blower to prevent any conflict of interest
or behaviours that will bring harm to the Group and the
stakeholders.
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I8 1

B8.

" HERELBHRS

Community Investment

The Group is devoted to becoming a responsible
corporate citizen and offering appropriate resources to
the needy in the community. We believe that the Group
and our employees can build positive values through
charitable activities and become socially-responsible
citizens.

We encourage and support our staff to participate in
voluntary activities in their spare time and formulate
relevant internal guidelines to arrange environmental
and social service activities for the Group’s employees.
Through participating in those community activities,
we hope that our employees can contribute to the
communities, thereby enhancing the employees’ sense of
caring while developing a sense of social responsibility.

We donate to different organisations and engage in
social activities to fulfil our social responsibility as a
corporate citizen and develop a better public image.
During the Reporting Period, the Group has donated a
total of HK$43,535 to support the local economics and
provide social welfare. The Group seeks to cooperate
with different charitable organisations, and at the same
time be aware of the difficulties and needs of society and
vulnerable groups, aiming to give back to society and
promote social harmony.

B8.
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BRI -HHERELSHRS

THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX OF THE Wt FRESGIR&ISS|INAE5IR
STOCK EXCHANGE

Mandatory Disclosure Requirements Section/Declaration

34 1 1 52 3 IE B8 B

Governance Structure ESG Governance Structure

EIRARE ESGE AL

Reporting Principles About The Environmental, Social and Governance Report -
Reporting Framework

FEHR R A BARNRE-HERERRE —RSER

Reporting Boundary About The Environmental, Social and Governance Report —
Reporting Scope

P& ¥R &0 & ANRE - HEREARSE —REHE

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs Description Section/Declaration
BE-—REER
R B RIS AT it i L
Aspect A1: Emissions
BEAT : B
General Disclosure Information on: Emissions
— R = BE

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that

have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges

into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-

hazardous waste.

BERBRMAERBHN RN - EERES

BEEMNELEN .

(@ BR; R

b)) BETHETABEAZENHEBZERRM

&R
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Emissions — Exhaust Gas Emissions
B RAE IS IRAT A BEM B R ABRA BE I BUE © B — BE R BEIN
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RIE-HHEREGHRS

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs Description Section/Declaration
BE--—HREER

R A RIEE Rt 10 L

KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse Emissions — GHG Emissions

RISRAE RIS IRA1.2

KPI A1.3
RE SR 4E WIS 1ZEA1.3

KPI A1.4
PSRRI RAT .4

KPI A1.5
BRSNS 1RAT.5

KPI A1.6
PSR AE M5 1RA1.6

gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

B (#E1) REREE (@#E2) RERBIERE U
MEETE) & (MBER) BE WMUSESBE - BIERK
5TH) °

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).

FMEXBEEEEYES UEE8) REE-FMTEESR
EREEYRE LIEE) Rk WER) BE NS E
S8 -SERMEHEH) -

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and,
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

FMEEEEEEYEE UUEE) kK (MER) BE
WMUSESEA -FEREE) °

Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them.

PRI LB E B R KR A ETE LB R ERE
B2 B% o

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes
are handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set
and steps taken to achieve them.

B EEIE A E R EEEEYN G > RIEAMPFTET LAY
BEE R R AIETEEE BRI L 8o

HEY— R ERETR

Not applicable — explained
NERA-BmE

Emissions — Waste Management

R -BERERYEE

Emissions — Exhaust Gas Emission,
GHG Emissions
BERY) — BEREER R E REEHER

Emissions — Waste Management

Y- EREREE
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Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs

B —RKER
P R 4R RS 1R

ENVIRONMENTAL, SocIAL AND
18 1

Description

H it

GOVERNANCE REPORT
“HEREGHRS

Section/Declaration

1ipg L

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

EBHEA2 : BiR{ER
General Disclosure

— AR ER

KPI A2.1
R SR AR SN 5 1RA2. 1

KPI A2.2
PSRN 15 1RA2.2

KPI A2.3
PSR I51RA2.3

KPI A2.4
RE SR 4B WIS IZA2.4

KPI A2.5
BRI 1RA2.5

ERESEEEBRAF |

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy,
water and other raw materials.
BREAER (BEER K EMERERME) K-
Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g.
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in ’000s) and intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

BBV SNER KR FEZER (B [I0H) 42
HE UTEFRFNASE REE MMUSESE
BIERME) ©

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).

MEKEREZE MUSEE8B( SEREE) ©
Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them

BT U NEREANEERRAEIELEER
P ERER B9 25 B% o

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them.

i SR BUGE A ACR Er] BRI R > LU PrsT 89 A
KM B IR R A E EE B AR PR EN Y & 5 o

Total packaging material used for finished products (in
tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit
produced.

Sy mPTAEEMRNEE (UMEETE) & GER)
FEBLSE-

T —F5R

Use of Resources
BERER

Use of Resources - Energy
Management

BERERA-EREE

Not applicable - explained
TNER—BEE

Use of Resources — Energy
Management
BREA-ERER

Use of Resources — Water
Management

BRER-—KRERE

Not applicable - explained
TNER—BEE
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Subject Areas,
Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs

B —RKER
P R 4R RS 1R

Description

f it

Section/Declaration

1ipg L

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

BEA3 : RIARKXAEIR

General Disclosure
— R E

KPI A3.1
R S AR SN 15 1RAS. 1

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts
on the environment and natural resources.
BEETAHRERERABERSEMEATZENHE -
Description of the significant impacts of activities
on the environment and natural resources and the
actions taken to manage them.

Mt EBEHHRERRXABERNEAZERER
WEEBEBREZENTH

Aspect A4: Climate Change

EEA4 . mIREE
General Disclosure

— AR ER

KPI A4.1
RE S 48 WIS 1EAS 1

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant
climate-related issues which have impacted, and
those which may impact, the issuer.
HAREHEERIEEHBETAELERENEKX
RIZEASETHIBER

Description of the significant climate-related issues
which have impacted, and those which may impact,
the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.
BB A RAIEEHETAELERENEAREE
FEE REHTE-
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BRI -HHERELSHRS

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs Description Section/Declaration
BE--—REER
R A RIEE Hi it =108 L

Aspect B1: Employment

EmB1 : {Ef#

General Disclosure Information on: Employment
— AR 2R =44

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.
ERFNRERE - BELEA TIFENE REA-FF
e 2l - REGSUEREMFEREHN N :

(@ BR; &

b)) BIHIEGTABEAZENHRERRRM

BBk o
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type Employment
R #2485 1881 .1 (for example, full- or part-time), age group and {E{&

geographical region.
BRI EEEL (M2 R - FRE5RtE

BN EEEE -
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and Employment — Recruitment,
R /8 1512812 geographical region. Promotion, Remuneration and
R FRRANRMER SN EERKLEE- Dismissal

B1E—1BEE BT FEN & R
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RIE-HHEREGHRS

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs Description
BE--—MiEER
A SR G IR ik

Section/Declaration

1ipg L

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
EmB2: BEE%ZE

General Disclosure Information on:
— R E

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards.
ERRMHZE2TITFERERFREEEBRBELELS
B

(@ HHR; R

b) BTFTHETABERZEVERNERIEA

B o
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred
RA SR AR N5 1E2B2.1 in each of the past three years including the reporting
year.
BEZE QEEREE SERITHHARRL
Ko
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury.
R SR B I 1EB2.2 RITEEATEHE-
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety
i i B W15 18B2.3 measures adopted, and how they are implemented

and monitored.
W PR AN B E 2 R B 2 2 A U BRI AT &
BTGk

Health and Safety
BREZE

Health and Safety
BEEZS

Health and Safety
BREZE
Health and Safety
BREZE
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Subject Areas,
Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPls Description Section/Declaration
BE--—REER
R A RIEE Hi it =108 L

Aspect B3: Development and Training
EmEB3 : ¥R

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and Development and Training
— AR EE skills for discharging duties at work. Description of 2%/ B3|

training activities.
BRI EERT IIEBEN B R EREER - H
s BN E E o

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and Development and Training —
A S AR N5 1EB3. 1 employee category (e.g. senior management, middle Training Programmes
management). %R —E IR

BMRREESEN WEREER -PREER) 815
NEIEEFT DL -

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee Development and Training —
RE #2748 X 151EB3.2 by gender and employee category. Training Programmes
B REEERE D SR ESTAZIIN TGN 2 EEE 1512
2o

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[EEB4 : & T#8

General Disclosure Information on: Labour Standards
— R EE 2T AR

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.
BRBIEE T SAGIE T -

(@ HE; K&

b)) BITHETABEAZENHRERRRO

BB o
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment Labour Standards — Prevention of
R 248 151284 1 practices to avoid child and forced labour. Child and Forced Labour

wBtig TR E M E R U R B T kafbls T B ITEB-FLEETRBHIET
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices Labour Standards — Prevention of
A i B 15 18B4.2 when discovered. Child and Forced Labour

HHRAEZRRERBERFEGAEBBRARNNTS R STEA-HLEETRAFIZT
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Subject Areas,
Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs

B —RKER
P R 4R RS 1R

Description

f it

Section/Declaration

1ipg L

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

JETEBS : fifEHEIE

General Disclosure
— R E

KPI B5.1
3R R 48 30 15 12 B5 1
KPI B5.2

AR AN 15 12B5.2

KPI B5.3
SRR3R 15 12B5.3

KPI B5.4
RSN 1512B5.4

Policies on managing environmental and social risks
of the supply chain.
EEMHEENIRE Rt ERBEEE -

Number of suppliers by geographical region.
EER DN HEEREE -

Description of practices relating to engaging
suppliers, number of suppliers where the practices
are being implemented, and how they are
implemented and monitored

M ERERERENEG  mERNTERIEAN M
FEEEE  URAEMRITRERF £
Description of practices used to identify
environmental and social risks along the supply chain,
and how they are implemented and monitored.

Wit ERAHENEREESEIRANIRIERTE BB
B URERERITRERG A

Description of practices used to promote
environmentally preferable products and services
when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.
HMTTREHREEREELARRERKRBHNIE
Bl U ERARITRERF %
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Supply Chain Management
HEEESIE

Supply Chain Management
eI

Supply Chain Management —
Procurement Mechanism

HAEHEIE — B

Supply Chain Management —
Procurement Mechanism

MR EE —REH G

Supply Chain Management —
Procurement Mechanism

HAEHEEIE — B



Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs

B —RKER
P R 4R RS 1R

ENVIRONMENTAL, SociaL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

18 1

Description

H it

T HEKRES®RS

Section/Declaration

1ipg L

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

BHEB6 : EREIE
General Disclosure
— R E

KPI B6.1
R 8 48 2 15 1%2B6.1

KPI B6.2
[oR 5 48 30 15 1%B6.2

KPI B6.3
R S48 30 15 12B6.3

KP| B6.4
RE S 48 W5 12B6.4

KPI B6.5
B 58 45 30 15 1R B6.5

ERESEEEBRAF |

Information on:
(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling
and privacy matters relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress.
ERFMREERNBRTNREEZE BEE - BREK
TWREE AR ER !

(@ HHR; R
b)) BTIHIETABEAZENHRERRRM

&K o

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject
to recalls for safety and health reasons.
EENCEFEmMRBPRAZL2EBEEEAMA~R
WEI B DL

Number of products and service related complaints
received and how they are dealt with.
BEMNERKRBNEFEEUKREE %
Description of practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights.

i B 4 5 R AR PR AL 5 EE MR R RO A1) o
Description of quality assurance process and recall
procedures.

HMESRTEREREREIKER -

Description of consumer data protection and
privacy policies, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

HoH EE B RHRE R RER MU AER T &
Y abr i

T —F5R

Product Responsibility
EmaE

Not applicable — explained

NER-C#EE

Product Responsibility
EmEtE

Product Responsibility —
Intellectual Property Rights
EmEE-HHERE
Product Responsibility
EmET

Product Responsibility — Customer
Communication, Customer Privacy
Protection

EmEE-—FREBE -BRIERMR
&
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Subject Areas,
Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs

B —RKER
P R 4R RS 1R

Description

f it

Section/Declaration

1ipg L

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

BmEB7 : RE5
General Disclosure
— R E

KPI B7.1
R SR AR $5 1R BT A

KPI B7.2
PSR AE M 15 1RB7 .2

KPI B7.3
PSRN I512B7.3

Information on:
(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

BRI LEBEEE - $13 REE R R EER ¢
(a) HE; &
(b) BTHBTABERTZENERERRRG

&} o

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the
cases.
RERAAHETASHEEERELEEENES
FrERE MR B B A e iE R o

Description of preventive measures and
whistleblowing procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored.

WP SRR R REF > URBEARITERERR
& e

Description of anti-corruption training provided to
directors and staff.

HitmESKETRHENRESHE-

Anti-corruption
k&S

Anti-corruption
RES

Anti-corruption — Whistle-blowing
Mechanism
k&5 — BB

Anti-corruption — Prevention of
Money Laundering

R&5—Fhi %k
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BRI -HHERELSHRS

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs Description Section/Declaration
BE--—REER
R A RIEE Hi it =108 L

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[EmBS : HHERE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand Community Investment
— AR EE the needs of the communities where the issuer #tE&EE

operates and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’ interests.
B2 RTHREEMTHBEENRRH
EREBEEBEEF mAIBER -

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, Community Investment
R 32 B W15 1EB8.1 environmental concerns, labour needs, health, @& &

culture, sport).
SETERMEE NBEBE BREEE - HIERBE-
XA B8H) o

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the Community Investment
A $F & M5 1E2B8.2 focus area. HERE

EEIHBEMHAER WEENERE) -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
WIS

0,

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SINOFORTUNE FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

CCTH CPA LIMITED
RIEXEEAERAE

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
98 to 227, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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EEERAR (MERFE) REWBAR (4
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GHEmREMERBRARK GEREZS
BERGERERER  UKRGKEVHRE
B BEETE G EHRER-

ERA RN BRREBES BT
(TEEGMAE)) BEMNEEVHER
SR (IEAFBRESED) EEMAFH
ki SEER _Z_—F+_A=+—H
NGEaMBEREURESEZH EFEENER
EVFRERGERERE - TEERES
NEMERIBREE RS BRE -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
WIS

PRESFE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional RIEEEWEXYE BESHSEAES
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated BTZNAMBMNGEESHFRETEEENS
financial statements of the current period. These matters were ITE -ZEFRBECHESERZRESHER
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial ®RHEEREETEE MESLASHZ
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we HEIEEFERER

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Revenue recognition

Refer to note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Matter
B HIE

B2RGREMBREMEES-

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ESNENMAEIRMBEENSE

Revenue recognition is identified as a key audit matter
because of its financial significance to the consolidated
financial statements and is one of key performance
indicators of the Group. Accordingly, there may be
risks of material misstatements related to revenue
recognition.
NaMIEREMBERERELNEAYBELE B
#» BEEENFARRREEz — HEHEKRA—IERHE
RESTBE-FI IEFTAEMKEEENERRE
IR 2t B L e o

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
recognised revenue from motor vehicles trading
business amounted to approximately HK$23,293,000,
of which (i) approximately HK$21,573,000 was derived
from sale transactions in situations where the Group
acted as a principal and had the primary responsibility
for fulfilling the promise to provide the specified goods
to customers; and (ii) approximately HK$1,720,000
was derived from provision of agency and other
services for accessories sourcing where the Group
acted as an agent in arranging to provide the specified
goods to customers.
HEZ-_—F+-_B=+—HIFE> B£EER
OB HE XTI W 423,293,000 75 B
()%921,673,0008 7tk E BEEBEFERATIZEALEE
THEAREREEYNAXEEBETIEEANHER
5 5 &()%91,720,0008 kR E EEEFAERH
BEAFRBIFEEMNREREMEGHRER

ERESEERAERAR | 225K

Our procedures in relation to management’s revenue
recognition included:

EEAHEEERARENEFEE

- We obtained an understanding of and assessing the
design, implementation and operating effectiveness
of key internal controls in relating to revenue
recognition;

—  BETERITGLE R TS0 R P B S A 5%
ST BHREFARL

- We inspected agreements, on sample basis, to
identify terms and conditions which may affect
revenue recognition and assessing the Group’s
revenue recognition policies;

— BERHGEERTHERERUANTEREER R
MERAMRR R &G > U T SEENOWREES
R ;

- We performed analytical review on revenue and
gross margin by motor vehicle products categories
to identify significant or unusual fluctuation on
revenue;

— EEHRAEERENEDHNNREKRENZETD
MER UHANENKIERNAZE RS ;

- We tested on a sample basis, the supporting
documentation and the contractual terms of sales
transactions;

— CEREHEREERTHERXZINIAXHREHNK

2 -
N
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Refer to note 5 to the consolidated financial statements. (continued)

Key Audit Matter
RS2 E 5t R1E

REEFE (F
W ai BT ()
F2RGREGMBRRMES (&

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENBHUMEERBEHEE

The Group determined whether itself is acting
as a principal or agent required judgement and
consideration of all relevant facts and circumstances.
EEEETHEAGUTEASHERAEIHITER
BHERERFABEERAEE BRI

We focused on this area due to the significant
judgement involved in the assessment of
management’s determination of principal or agent for
the purpose of revenue recognition of motor vehicles
trading business.
EEMAZSENHNREEEM ABEHEEXB I GR
REETTEASHERRNESHOMNTEIREKRH
B o

We assessed on a sample basis, whether specific
revenue transactions occurred on or before and after
the end of the reporting date had been recognised
in the appropriate financial years by comparing
the transactions selected with relevant underlying
documentation, including customers’ receipts and
goods delivery notes;

EEXRMBREERBLEBEERZ REMX G (81
ZERWERE@RME)  sTHERIRE BEARSATE
ELENRETRGERZ TS ENBEMBHEENES;

We reviewed and discussed with management of the
Group a number of sales contracts with customers
and purchase contracts with suppliers, on a sample
basis, assessing the management’s conclusion
based on the specific facts and circumstances and
the applicable accounting standard; and
EERMEREEERLE SEEEEESNHER
PIIUMZEBEESHN UREHREBIIINSE
BEAHN THEEERBARSEEREBEAUKE
AEstERSHNER &

We evaluated whether the Group’s presentation of
revenue on a gross basis (as a principal) versus a
net basis (as an agent) was in conformity with the
applicable accounting standard.

EETE BEERREEEZ NG (EAEEA8
7)) HbRFEEEY Wam (FRAE 2238 R2
DEBRAES R -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Refer to note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Matter
RASEE st 518

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
WIS

REEFE (F
BRATFEAARHEZEMEEZATE
m2RGRGMBRRMEES-

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEENENAEIRMBENSEE

As at 31 December 2021, the Group held unlisted
equity investment in a limited partnership with carrying
amount of approximately HK$10,854,000 which is
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss. This financial asset does not have a quoted
market price in an active market.
R_ZT_—F+-RB=+—H> BXEERABREEE
TEFBIFLTRERSE ZRE(EN10,854,0004%
T HEB D EARATESABGRZEMEE %/
BERFRETS L EMIBERE-
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Our procedures in relation to the fair value of Group’s
unlisted equity investment (classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss) included:

EEy ESEEZIFLITRERE DER/BRAFTESA
EHRZEMEE) 2 ATEMRRNZEFEE

We assessed management’s evaluation in relation to
the financial assets based on the Group’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial
assets;

EERE EEXEEESHBEECZEFEARERH
BEZENRESRERE THEEEHESHNEE
258 ;

We reviewed management’s assessment for the
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and the irrevocable election to designate investment
in equity instruments that would be measured
subsequent changes in fair value in profit or loss;
EEBERNEEBMBEATESABRZEMEER
UAE B EZIEERATARE 2 & F
KREBBZ ATEHEHRENIBERSE

1
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(continued)

Refer to note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

(continued)

Key Audit Matter
FAREEE

REEFE (F
BRATFEAARHRZEMEEZATE (&

FR2RGRAGMBRRM 25 (@)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ESNBEHNMEEMRENEN

The fair value valuation of the unlisted equity
investment is complex and requires the application of
significant judgment by the management.
MIFLTREREETATEGLENFEERE BEE
KEEBERERBEAHE-

We focused on this area due to the magniture of this
unlisted equity investment and significant judgement
involved in the assessment of management’s
determination of fair value of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss.
EEMIZATEHARNZRERENEZREEREE
BEERAFTESAEaZEREEZ A TFERZT
&% e B KA o

We enquired the management and assessed the
appropriateness of methodologies and the key
assumptions and parameters used in fair value
measurement based on our knowledge of the
unlisted equity investment; and
BENEZEHFLTREREZDH EERNEERE
B R RFESTEZMAR EURBRERS
BEZEEN &

We checked, on sample basis, the accuracy and
relevance of the input data used such as comparing
key underlying financial data inputs to external
sources and investee’s financial statements and
management information as applicable.
EEHEREEMARABR 2 ERE RETY > F
WLEERASR BRI B BRI RE R MUK L&
REENVBMREEEER (WEA) o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
WIS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) BBt FIHE (&
Impairment assessment of deposits paid for acquisition of MENSHETEHE ZBTREREFE

motor vehicles for resale

Refer to note 26 to the consolidated financial statements

Key Audit Matter
ik e

EoBGaHBRENE6

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENENMAEIRMBENSEE

The Group had paid deposits for acquisition of
motor vehicles for resale totalled approximately
HK$123,536,000 as at 31 December 2021 which
were included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables.

NZ_Z2-—F+"A=+—H> E£EMERSE
ETHEZBNEES5514123,536,000/8 70> st ATE
IFRIE ~ 12 5 B HLfh FE USRRIE o

Management has performed impairment assessment
of the deposits paid for acquisition of motor vehicles
for resale based on purchase records and information,
including advance payments history, delivery of motor
vehicles, suppliers’ credit profile, on-going business
relationship with suppliers and underlying economic
conditions.

EIRE B RB IR0 i BT ARG 8%~ A E
FEREE MR R BN FEEBAG RERLH
ﬁ%@%iﬁﬂ%ﬂ%ﬁyﬁﬁi&ﬁ%%zem‘%%‘i’iﬁﬁﬁ
=) o

We focused on this area due to the significant amounts
of deposits paid for acquisition of motor vehicles
and the impairment assessment of the deposits paid
involved significant management judgments and
estimates.

EEMIZAE AR MERSEZEM BTN TER
EARHEMNRSETRENE ESREEBNE
K H BT R 5 o
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Our procedures in relation to the impairment assessment
of deposits paid for acquisition of motor vehicles for resale
included:
Egﬁtﬁéﬂyﬁﬁi‘%ﬁ%%251@?&@1‘%%5)&%#%&%
B) .

- We obtained an understanding of the key controls
that the Group has implemented in relation to the
acquisition of motor vehicles for resale;

— EETHR SEENERSEETHEEMNRAR
EHIET

- We checked, on a sample basis, the deposits paid
for acquisition of motor vehicles for resale to the
underlying purchase contracts, payment records and
other related information;

— BERMBREERTUMERSEETEHE BMNR
T HEBRARE SN IR REMERER ;

- We reviewed the relevant documents for the
purchases of motor vehicles subsequent to 31
December 2021 for which the Group had paid
deposits as at that date and assessed any of these
purchases were cancelled and the deposits paid are
not refundable to the Group;

— TYEBER-_Z”Z—F+-A=+—Hzk &
EER I EZ BB REN A BEREAERR ik
Wi EZERBESENERENREEE TR

- For the deposits paid as at 31 December 2021 for
the purchase of motor vehicles and purchase of
motor vehicles not completed subsequent to that
date, we reviewed the relevant correspondences and
made enquiry of management, on a sample basis,
regarding the status of the suppliers to which the
Group had paid deposits and the Group’s on-going
business relationship with these suppliers; and

- BRAR-_E_—F+"B=+—HHETE:H
ABERBRNZHBRTHRAAERE B F %
BREEHN SEEMEZTRESOEEEARTIU
R EEEEAZEFHEENSEZER G EMER
BT R EEEFLAM ; &

- We assessed the appropriateness of the impairment
assessment made by the Group, examined the
key data inputs on a sample basis to assess their
accuracy and completeness, and challenging the
assumptions, where necessary.

— ETEMME EEEMERENGNETY MR
ETEZHAMBUTHHEERE R TBU TN HKE
BFE &R RRE -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Hith&EH

EFFHHMENES HMWENBSEFR
PREMIFMAER GG BREREEN
ZEEMER F RSN o

ESHEGMBRENERTIARERMSE
e EETAHEMBENEREMTEANE

[EA /=i
58 A e o

EEEELRGMBERR EENEAER
REHMER FlBERED  TEHEMER
ERAREMBRRNESESRBREDH
THRNBERAEEREE NEUFAEEKRHE
RRA-BEREFEHTHIF IRES
BAHMBENAEAHRRE  EFHER
TREBE-AENH EFTRAEEAKRS

EFRERRMGSHMBRRAREN
BE

ESRCERBEEBEAMAGRMHNES
M BREERE R R BRGIAIH E R E 5
BEEMAFTHGEEMHFERE THERR
mEEEMBRRNBE N FEBARRGER
$H 52 T 5 2 BY B8 K $8 5R R AL Pl 0 7 B9 PO BB 4
&g

RRFEEEMBERRF EFA8HE B
EEFECENEN TEBRBR TIRE
HFEEERRANEER URERFELE
~HEAER RIFESFAER ESEEFE
WELEE R EEMBERNEA S ER

EEENMBREREF-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

ERESEERAERAR | 225K

I % AT RS

RHEMMBZESMBRRABNRE

ESHNER EHERGOMBRERES T
FHERRGFHRARMERHEMELRER
AR SERE THAGEESERN
RS - RIBZBE BEFER BT
(FRER) BREEFENER BRIz E
BENNEHMBEN EFTERAREHA
AREAMEMALTE ESEBEERSE

GEFRBEBKTHRE EFERERS
AEZENETHNEZERE -—BEAERRML
FAERFARAE SR IR o SAER IR AL AT LR BRSF S 88
BRI MR SEEH E AR S EBER
B EREMBRREAEMFHREE
RIE BB ERRA P RRIFE KR

TREEEEZEAETEZNBERES
ETEABEE REBEEREE T
IR -

4 DM

o HBIMIT BN IRGFERMER A
EMBRERFEEARERRANELR
RETRATEZEF UEHBLERR
UREBERENBENEZERER  FH
EEERNER - I IREFRIES Kk &
mARE BERER ERRL SRR
PRAERES 2 £ AL R AE S RAMGF
B RHE A HERBRAE A R LR A
HHERME B ARIER R BYER S

=5
=) °

o TREBZAERBANIIES URE
ENEZERF EENTIESR S5H
WEERIAMEERRR

e EEEMRASHHEENEEER
fEH gt NEAREENN G E
Mo

85



96

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
WIS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats and safeguards applied.

BHEMMBRZESMBRRABNRE

(&)

e HEFERARELKEEHERNGE
MR AR o IRIBPTIS BB IZREE 2 R
EREFREESFEAUBEREBRNERKN
THEEM MAkEN SEEFHECE
WENBHERRE - WREEIRF
HEERTEEN  AECEEZHMME
SRRFEAENEROMBRETHN
BRI EE R - RE AR E
BT E AEEABHAESFNER-
EENEREENBERZYMKREA
IEFRERIS BY B 12 /& 58 « 2R » RARF M
WERFIEER BEETEMEER
BIgg o

o FEBEREMBRERNERIBS &
BORE SEREEN UkGEY
BREESATRMIZFMEE-

e T EEERZRERNEBITBNOM
BENESRENE RS UGS
MBEREERER -BEFRAEEHEE
BEERYT BEEENERIF-EF
ARNEENERERKERME -

ESREAEBREMINEZLE KHZ
P EABREREFR GEESEEX
HARS) 38 B! H P9 BRAE I BY 1R R B R ERPE ©

EETHEZZEERXERH RAEFE
NEAMBULMEZHEAERENR LEKSE
BEAT R EMKIAEXEETER UM
ZARERMBKREMEER LUk (MBER) HE
Z B g E
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

CCTH CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 18 March 2022

Lee Chi Hang
Practising Certificate Number PO1957

Unit 1510-1517, 15/F., Tower 2,
Kowloon Commerce Centre,

No. 51 Kwai Cheong Road,

Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong
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CoNsoLIDATED STATEMENT OF ProFIT OR Loss AND OTHER CoMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SelEahkEMZEWAHRREK

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE_ T —F+_A=+—HLEE

2021 2020
—EZ—fF == 3
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
B 5% FET BT
Revenue & 5 24,182 69,069
Other income and losses, net HMUW A & E18 558 7 (6,064) (6,544)
Changes in inventories BaaFEE 2 &5
of finished goods 22 (21,527) (63,093)
Other direct costs HMBEZR A (182) (263)
Employee benefit expenses BEBNEZ 10 (14,081) (18,668)
Depreciation of property, M B REREITE
plant and equipment 16 (2,125) (2,658)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets  FREEEFTE 18 (1,456) (362)
Amortisation of intangible assets mEE#HE 17 (3) (33)
Impairment loss on trade deposits BN EZEREK
paid and other receivables H I 2 RE
reversed/(recognised) EE1E#E Rl (FER) 26(a)&(c) 3,844 (10,841)
Reversal of provisions B R 32 - 4,248
Other expenses Hx 9 (14,622) (12,396)
Finance costs GBI 8 (250) (201)
Loss before income tax PRPAEIRAIRET 1B 9 (32,284) (41,742)
Income tax credit TSIk %R 13 182 182
Loss for the year FREE (32,102) (41,560)
Other comprehensive income Hih2mKkA
Item that may be subsequently HEOSEEN THEE B m
reclassified to profit or l0ss: ZIHE
Exchange differences arising on BEBNEBELZ
translation of foreign operations bE 7 =28 4,109 9,921
Other comprehensive income FRHEMEEmUBA
for the year, net of tax [SEik 4,109 9,921
Total comprehensive loss FANEERIE
for the year ek (27,993) (31,639)
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CoNsoLDATED STATEMENT OF ProFIT OR Loss AND OTHER CoMPREHENSIVE INCOME
e lEashEMZE KR AHRREK

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #EZE"Z”-_—F+"A=+—HIFE

2021 2020
—Eg_-—F == 3
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FET BT
Loss attributable to: FE{LESIE -
Owners of the Company KRBEB A (32,090) (41,399)
Non-controlling interests JEPERG (12) (161)
(32,102) (41,560)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income EREEZEH
for the year attributable to: (F538) W A48%8 .
Owners of the Company KABHEB AN (27,987) (32,021)
Non-controlling interests JEERE (6) 382
(27,993) (31,639)
2021 2020
—Eg-—F —ECEE
HK cent HK cent
Al A1
Loss per share SREBE 14
Basic loss per share BREAREIE (0.41) (0.53)
Diluted loss per share SREEEHE N/A B H N/A 58 F

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PosiTioN
mEMBNRRER

As at 31 December 2021 R_ZE_—F+_F=+—H

2021 2020
—$-—-F C"3-=&
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5k FHT AT
Non-current assets ERHEE
Property, plant and equipment ME- B REE 16 24,791 26,849
Intangible assets mEEE 17 - 3
Right-of-use assets FREEE 18 1,244 2,646
Statutory deposits and other assets SEEL &R HEHME E 19 405 405
Interests in associates REE QB ZER 21 682 -
Financial assets at fair value through % AFEFABHE Z
profit or loss THEE 25 10,854 17,199
Rental and other deposits paid BHEkEMZE 26 1,707 1,660
39,683 48,762
Current assets MEIEE
Inventories E8 22 42 144
Trade receivables FEW E 5 #hI1E 23 2,172 15,835
Financial assets at fair value AT ESAERZ
through profit or loss THEE 25 1,448 1,198
Prepayments, deposits FBNMIE TR
and other receivables Hh WA 26 130,893 66,914
Pledged deposits [SEiaiibeE 27 60,971 -
Bank balances and cash IRITHEFRRIRE
— trust accounts i = 28 6,116 16,256
Bank balances and cash IRITHEFRRIRE
- general accounts —— AR P 28 54,242 93,556
255,884 193,903
Current liabilities ik R=Ri
Trade and bill payables ERNEZHERERE 29 69,703 16,313
Contract liabilities X OI=RE 30 19,237 -
Other payables and accruals HMMENRIE R ESTRIE 31 1,458 1,798
Provisions g 32 12,700 12,350
Bank and other borrowings IR1T R HAMER 33 - 186
Lease liabilities HEaE 34 1,282 1,410
104,380 32,057
Net current assets MENEERE 151,504 161,846
Total assets BEEEERTHER
less current liabilities 191,187 210,608

Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2021



CoNSOLIDATED STATEMENT oF FINANCIAL PosiTioN
mEMBRRER

As at 31 December 2021 RZZE_—F+_"_FA=+—H

2021 2020
g% =F=FE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FET BT
Non-current liabilities ERHEE
Bank and other borrowings IR1T R HAMER 33 10,000 -
Lease liabilities HE&ARE 34 - 1,246
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEA R 35 2,563 2,745
12,563 3,991
Net assets BEFE 178,624 206,617
Capital and reserves BeZs R fE
Share capital i 36 77,489 77,489
Reserves Gz 100,915 128,902
Equity attributable to TATHEE AELIES
owners of the Company 178,404 206,391
Non-controlling interests JERERG R 220 226
Total equity WS 4REE 178,624 206,617

The consolidated financial statements on pages 98 to 227 were S$98EE227TEMGZESHBREKLEETERN
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 18 —ZE - _F =8+ /\ Bt EREETE T

March 2022 and are signed on its behalf by: BABUTALTRARREE

Wang Jiawei Lai Yuk Mui

T=E RES

Director Director

EE EE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated  BEMIBIMI sE B AL I E 45 & T AR AV — =6
financial statements. e
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CoNsOLIDATED STATEMENT oF CHANGES IN EaquiTy

=
AT

For the year ended 31 December 2021

EREEHER

HE_ T —F+_A=+—HLEE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

FRARAAER
Fair value
through other Share-based Non-
Share Share  comprehensive Special Statutory  Translation compensation  Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium  income reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
(Note 37()  (Note 37(i)  (Note 37(ii)
(atam)  Cesor) (W)
BATEIA
AfteE
BE  RWEE  WABE  BRRR iEER ERGE ROBREE  RnbR 45 GeRER  RR4E
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T T TiEn T TEL T
Balance at 1 January 2020 RBZEE-A-RA7EH 77489 1,678,299 - 4119 3912 (20,600) 21604 (1521959 238,548 7428 25,976
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - - - 41,309 (41,399) (161) (41,560)
Other comprehensive income for the year EREMRERA - - - - - 9,378 - - 9378 543 9921
Total comprehensive income/(oss) for the year EREMZERA/ ( - - - - - 9,378 - (41,309) 32,021) 38 31,639)
Transferred to accumulated losses upon lapse EREXUREEEZH
of share options - - - - - - (21,624 21,624 - - -
Fair value gains on financial assets at fair value WAZEHEEL
through other comprehensive income - - 1,106 - - - - - 1,106 58 1,164
Transferred to acoumulated losses upon
disposal of financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income reserve - - (1,106) - - - - - (1,106) (58) (1,164)
Acquistion of aditonal inerest in subsidiaries WERBAZBMER - - - - - - - (13) (136) (7,584) 7720
Balance at 31 Decemoer 2020 end RIBZRETZAZT-BR
1 January 2021 5 -F-B-HzEB 11489 1,673,299 - 47119 3912 (1,222) - (1,541,866) 206,301 26 206,617
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - - - 32,090) (32,090) (1) (32,102)
Other comprefensive income for the year EREMRERA - - - - - 4103 - - 4103 6 4,109
Total comprehensive income/{oss) for the year FREMZENL/ (BR 48 - - - - - 4108 - (32,090) (27,987) (6) (27,999
Balance at 31 December 2021 RIBZ-F+ZAZt-H2ER 71,489 1,673,299 - 4719 3912 (1,119) - (1,573,956) 178,404 20 178,624

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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2021 2020
—E-—F === 5
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FET BT
Operating activities REES
Loss before income tax FRETS AT 18 (32,284) (41,742)
Adjustments for: LTI BIEHE .
Depreciation of property, MEKIBRREITE
plant and equipment 2,125 2,658
Gain on disposal of property, HEVE BB RRE
plant and equipment Z = - (55)
Amortisation of intangible assets BT EEEH 3 33
Unrealised fair value loss on JEFEMRERES
unlisted equity investment FEIW N FEEIE 7 6,735 15,732
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 1,456 362
Written off of property, M2 ~ 1 28 S 5% B 8
plant and equipment 17 252
Reversal of provision for loss on BEENEEEERLD
onerous contracts - (4,248)
Unrealised fair value (gains)/losses i85 B8 2 REIRAFE
on securities trading (=) B8 (250) 180
Impairment loss on trade deposits B EZHEE K
paid and other receivables HAth eI R IE 2 BB R 18
(reversed)/recognised (BEE) R (3,844) 10,841
Gain on lease termination HEA KRG - (1,720)
Gain on lease modification HEETT WS - (735)
Interest income FEUWA (326) (1,269)
Dividend income & B A - (100)
Finance costs BB A 250 201
Operating cash flows before SEETEHAIZ
movements in working capital RERE RS (26,118) (19,610)
Decrease in statutory deposits and A ER SR EMEER D
other assets - 100
Decrease in inventories FERLD 106 56,327
Decrease in trade receivables FEW B 5 ZE R 14,193 18,388
Increase in prepayments, FERIE - B R EMEW
deposits and other receivables FIEE N (57,887) (51,090)
Decrease/(increase) in bank IRITE R —EsEERP EL
balances — trust accounts (1gH0) 10,140 (10,516)
Increase in pledged deposits BEIRFEFE LM (60,100) -
Increase in trade and bill payables  FE{TE ZIBREHIE N 51,939 10,110
Decrease in other payables H 1t FEAT FR I8 K FE 5T
and accruals IER D (401) (24,315)
Increase/(decrease) in contract BHaEEm Ol
liabilities 18,963 (680)
Cash used in operating activities RETHHB 2 IRE (49,165) (21,286)
Interest received BUF 2 326 1,269
Net cash used in operating RETEHHHAZIREFE
activities (48,839) (20,017)
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2021 2020
—E-—% —ETE2HF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5E FET FAETT
Investing activities "B IEE
Acquisition of property, EEYE SRR E
plant and equipment (22) (2,619)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEY2 %25 K%
plant and equipment RAEPT1ERIE = 380
Deposit from disposal of a subsidiary 7~ BB E HE —FH
refunded by the Group WB B ziEE - (1,000)
Repayment of loans receivable FEWERZER = 2,857
Dividend received [=1tdi 35 - 100
Proceeds from redemption B AFESTABER
of financial assets at fair value EREEPENRIE
through profit or loss = 7
Acquisition of interest in associates ~ UXBEHH = AT 2 3 (673) -
Acquisition of additional interests IS B A B 2 §A MM E =
in subsidiaries - (8,080)
Proceeds from disposal of financial ~ HE 32 AFEst A HAth
assets at fair value through other 2HEWRAZ EMEE
comprehensive income P18 7018 = 11,161
Net cash (used in)/generated BEEE (#3R) EEXZ
from investing activities R&EFE (695) 2,806
Financing activities A& EE
Proceeds from secured REBIRFEMBERZ
other borrowings FRigsn1a 41 10,000 1,140
Repayment of lease liabilities HEaBEZEN 41 (1,526) (2,558)
Repayment of bank borrowings RITEMZIER 41 (186) (2,191)
Repayment of other borrowings HMERZER 41 - (1,140)
Interest paid BAHE (153) (52)
Net cash generated from/ MEEEESE  (FHA) 2
(used in) financing activities REFE 8,135 (4,801)
Net decrease in cash and HEkFAEEEEERLVFE
cash equivalents (41,399) (22,012)
Cash and cash equivalents at FYzRERIREEEER
beginning of the year 93,556 113,059
Effect of foreign exchange rate EEXEH s E
changes 2,085 2,509
Cash and cash equivalents ERZBEERRESFEEB
at end of the year 54,242 93,556
Analysis of cash and FRZAERREEEH
cash equivalents at IBR 9 R
end of the year
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBFRRIRE
- general accounts ——REER 54,242 93,556

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited (‘the Company”) was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability in
the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands. The Company’s registered office is situated at Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, Cayman lIslands. The Company’s principal place of
business is situated at 16th Floor, CMA Building, No. 64-66
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the ultimate
controlling party of the Company is Mr. Wang Jiawei, the
Chairman and executive director of the Company.

The Company’s shares are listed on the GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Stock Exchange”).

The Group, comprising the Company and its subsidiaries, is
principally engaged in (i) provision of securities and futures
contracts trading services in Hong Kong, (ii) trading and
principal investments in Hong Kong, and (i) sales of motor
vehicles, provision of agency services and accessories sourcing
in the PRC.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong dollar
(“HK$"). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars as management of the Company
considered it is more beneficial to users of the consolidated
financial statements. All values stated in these consolidated
financial statements are rounded to the nearest thousands
Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000), unless otherwise stated.
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2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective

for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied amendments

to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified

Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time, which are

mandatorily effective for the annual period beginning on or after

1 January 2021 for the preparation of the consolidated financial

statements:

HKFRS 16 (Amendment) Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions

Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform —
Phase 2

HKFRS 9, HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and
HKFRS 16 (Amendments)

The amendments to HKFRSs in the current year had no
material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

EREEMBERSEN ((FRME
WREEA) Z1E5T %
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 17

HKFRS 16 (Amendment)

HKFRS 3 (Amendments)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

HKAS 1 (Amendments)

HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 (Amendments)

HKAS 8 (Amendments)

HKAS 12 (Amendments)

HKAS 16 (Amendments)

HKAS 37 (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

Insurance Contracts and

the related Amendments'’
Covid-19-Related Rent

Concessions beyond

30 June 20214
Reference to the

Conceptual Framework?
Sale or Contribution

of Assets between

an Investor and

its Associate or

Joint Venture®
Classification of

Liabilities as Current

or Non-current and

related amendments

to Hong Kong

Interpretation 5 (2020)"
Disclosure of Accounting

Policies’

Definition of Accounting
Estimates’

Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single
Transaction’

Property, Plant and
Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost
of Fulfilling a Contract?

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-20202

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
s Effective for annual periods beginning or after a date to be determined
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021
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2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned
below, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of these new and amendments to HKFRSs, which
are not yet effective, will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2
Disclosure of Accounting Policies

HKAS 1 is amended to replace all instances of the term
“significant accounting policies” with “material accounting
policy information”. Accounting policy information is material if,
when considered together with other information included in an
entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy information
may be material because of the nature of the related
transactions, other events or conditions, even if the amounts
are immaterial. However, not all accounting policy information
relating to material transactions, other events or conditions
is itself material. If an entity chooses to disclose immaterial
accounting policy information, such information must not
obscure material accounting policy information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements
(the “Practice Statement”) is also amended to illustrate how an
entity applies the “four-step materiality process” to accounting
policy disclosures and to judge whether information about
an accounting policy is material to its financial statements.
Guidance and examples are added to the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position or performance
of the Group but may affect the disclosures of the Group’s
significant accounting policies. The impacts of application,
if any, will be disclosed in the Group’s future consolidated
financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates

The amendments define accounting estimates as “monetary
amounts in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty”. An accounting policy may require
items in financial statements to be measured in a way that
involves measurement uncertainty — that is, the accounting
policy may require such items to be measured at monetary
amounts that cannot be observed directly and must instead be
estimated. In such a case, an entity develops an accounting
estimate to achieve the objective set out by the accounting
policy. Developing accounting estimates involves the use of
judgements or assumptions based on the latest available,
reliable information.

In addition, the concept of changes in accounting estimates in
HKAS 8 is retained with additional clarifications.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).
For the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements, information is considered material
if such information is reasonably expected to influence
decisions made by primary users. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (‘GEM Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments, which are measured at fair values,
as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable
or estimated using another valuation technique. In
estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the
asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment,
leasing transactions that are accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 16, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.1

ERESEEEBRAF |

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (continued)

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair value
and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is
to be used to measure fair value in subsequent periods,
the valuation technique is calibrated so that at initial
recognition the results of the valuation technique equals
the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
The principal accounting policies are set out below:

3.2 Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Basis of consolidation (continued)

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
Optional concentration test

The Group can elect to apply an optional concentration
test, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, that permits
a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The concentration
test is met if substantially all of the fair value of the
gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single
identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable assets.
The gross assets under assessment exclude cash and
cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill
resulting from the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If
the concentration test is met, the set of activities and
assets is determined not to be a business and no further
assessment is needed.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies
and recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price
first to financial assets/financial liabilities at the respective
fair values, the remaining balance of the purchase price
is then allocated to the other identifiable assets and
liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at the
date of purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise to
goodwill or bargain purchase gain.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HEZZ - —F+_F=+—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Basis of consolidation (continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(continued)
Business combinations
Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment
at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below);

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are measured in accordance with that
standard; and
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HEZZ-—F+"/8=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. FEEHHE #E
3.2 Basis of consolidation (continued) 3.2 REEE (&
Business combinations or asset acquisitions EHESHASEWE (&
(continued)
Business combinations (continued) EBESH (B)
e lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the e HMESBEEFHFHEEMNM
present value of the remaining lease payments (as (EEREBUHEREE

defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were
new leases at the acquisition date, except for leases
for which (a) the lease term ends within 12 months
of the acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset
is of low value. Right-of-use assets are recognised
and measured at the same amount as the relevant
lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable or
unfavourable terms of the lease when compared
with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at
acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the net amount
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are initially measured at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HEZZ - —F+_F=+—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries
Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying
amounts of the Group’s relevant components of equity
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries,
including re-attribution of relevant reserves between the
Group and the non-controlling interests according to the
Group’s and the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets
and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling
interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (i) the carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
attributable to the owners of the Company. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) or, when applicable,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.3
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Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting, except when the
investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as held for
sale, in which case it is or the portion so classified is
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations. Any
retained portion of an investment in an associate that
has not been classified as held for sale continues to be
accounted for using the equity method. The financial
statements of associates used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an
investment in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the associate. Changes in net assets of the associate
other than profit or loss and other comprehensive income
are not accounted for unless such changes resulted in
changes in ownership interest held by the Group. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate exceeds
the Group’s interest in that associate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of
the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.3

Investments in associates (continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for
using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate, any excess of the cost of the
investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss
in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with
its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised
is not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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Investments in associates (continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of
the entire interest in the investee with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. When the
Group retains an interest in the former associate and the
retained interest is a financial asset within the scope of
HKFRS 9, the Group measures the retained interest at
fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its
fair value on initial recognition. The difference between
the carrying amount of the associate and the fair value
of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
of the relevant interest in the associate is included in
the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the
associate. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that associate on the same basis as would
be required if that associate had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by
that associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on
the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss
(as a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial
disposal of the relevant associate.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the
proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the
associate that are not related to the Group.

T —F5R

4 A
17107 O = |

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Rt #5 ¥ &= MY 5E

BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

3. FEEGHHEE (&

3.3

REEQRNKRE (@)

EAEETBEE —BHELTE
BEAXENR AIARII BT
ERERREENZH ¥ B
IWEENEBRIBmES - HMA
EERERAMBEATD ZEDR
ZRERm AT BMBREEL
BORBENZERMEE  BIARE
EERNZERATEAERER
m MZAFERRHR DR
BEZAFE -BEABZKRE
BEREREANREEDZRHERBE
AEEEED 2 ERAEMIER
FEBZEZE ERETLER
BMEBEABZWENEERF AR
o AEEGR AR EEME
BEWAGZBEARRBZAAE
THEAKR EERZBMENTE
BRHEHREENRRMEREE
FAE o AL > 8 2B E AR LRI B
P E M 2 T RO FE BB 2 W S S
B gRHEHEMEERNERR
BEMOREREm - AEEENE
& 8o P EARRR B E A B B
WmNEEREREN D EER
m (FREMDERE) -

A ERBRERBERE 2P
EREmmMAEEERRXAEDR
FoERBIBPIEREGARZ
WmNEEEN L ERREEN
BEREMOBERD  AEAE
E &R oAl 25 HAith 2 E WA
BZERBmEEEBIERD

5 )
HEEmeo

EEEEREAERZHEQNT
ETRSR AEHBERATRS
PREEE@ERNBERRZED
BEAEEERE ARNAEEZ
e IRARES

IO



120

NoTes To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 A

R

For the year ended 31 December 2021

3.

=

Bt %5 ¥ &= MY 5E

HE_ T —F+_A=+—HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.4 Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents goods or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series
of distinct goods or services that are substantially the
same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one
of the following criteria is met:

° The customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

° The Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o The Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct goods or
services.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.
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NoTeEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.4 Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the
same contract are accounted for and presented on a net
basis.

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts
the promised amount of consideration for the effects of
the time value of money if the timing of payments agreed
(either explicitly or implicitly) provides the customer or
the Group with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer. In those
circumstances, the contract contains a significant
financing component. A significant financing component
may exist regardless of whether the promise of financing
is explicitly stated in the contract or implied by the
payment terms agreed to by the parties to the contract.

For contracts where the period between payment and
transfer of the associated goods or services is less than
one year, the Group applies the practical expedient of not
adjusting the transaction price for any significant financing
component.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.4 Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or
services to a customer, the Group determines whether
the nature of its promise is a performance obligation to
provide the specified goods or services itself (i.e. the
Group is a principal) or to arrange for those goods or
services to be provided by the other party (i.e. the Group
is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified goods
or services before that goods or services is transferred to
a customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is
to arrange for the provision of the specified goods or
services by another party. In this case, the Group does
not control the specified goods or services provided
by another party before that goods or services is
transferred to the customer. When the Group acts as an
agent, it recognises revenue in the amount of any fee or
commission to which it expects to be entitled in exchange
for arranging for the specified goods or services to be
provided by the other party.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

Revenue from contracts with customers

(@@ Commission income from securities and futures
brokerage is recognised at point in time on a trade
date basis.

(b)  Service income is recognised at point in time when
the relevant services have been rendered.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.4 Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Principal versus agent (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

©

Revenue from sales of motor vehicles is recognised
at point in time when the customer obtains control
of the promised goods or services in the contract.
If the products are a partial fulfilment of a contract
covering other goods and/or services, then the
amount of revenue recognised is an appropriate
proportion of the total transaction price under the
contract, allocated between all the goods and
services promised under the contract on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis.

Agency income recognised at point in time from
trading of motor vehicles and accessories sourcing
is recognised on a net basis, when the agency
services have been rendered.

Other revenue, other income and gains

©

ERESEEEBRAF |

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method. When a loan and receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to
its recoverable amount, being the estimated future
cash flow discounted at the original effective interest
rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding
the discount as interest income. Interest income on
impaired loans and receivables is recognised using
the original effective interest rate.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

Government grants and subsidies

Grants and subsidies from the government are
recognised at their fair value where there is a
reasonable assurance that the grant or subsidies
will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Realised fair value gains or losses on securities
trading are recorded on a trade date basis whilst
unrealised fair value gains or losses are recorded on
change in fair value on the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.5 Lease

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after
the date of initial application or arising from business
combinations, the Group assesses whether a contract is
or contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date,
as appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed
unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed. As a practical expedient, leases
with similar characteristics are accounted on a portfolio
basis when the Group reasonably expects that the effects
on the consolidated financial statements would not differ
materially from individual leases within the portfolio.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract
For a contract that contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option. It also applies the recognition
exemption for leases of low-value assets. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis
or another systematic basis over the lease term.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3.
3.5 Lease (continued)

FTEGHEEK B
3.5 {E (&

The Group as a lessee (continued)
Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use assets includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

° an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in the cost of
right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.5 Lease (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease liabilities (continued)
The lease payments include:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as
at the commencement date;

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets) whenever:

° the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.

° the lease payments change due to changes in
market rental rates following a market rent review/
expected payment under a guaranteed residual
value, in which cases the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using the initial discount rate.
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The Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more underlying
assets; and

° the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability,
less any lease incentives receivable, based on the lease
term of the modified lease by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use assets. When the modified contract
contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price
of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone
price of the non-lease components.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.5 Lease (continued)

Changes in the basis for determining the future
lease payments as a result of interest rate
benchmark reform
For changes in the basis for determining the future lease
payments as a result of interest rate benchmark reform,
the Group applies the practical expedient to remeasure
the lease liabilities by discounting the revised lease
payments using the unchanged discount rate and makes
a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets. A lease modification is required by interest rate
benchmark reform if, and only if, both of these conditions
are met:

° the modification is necessary as a direct
consequence of interest rate benchmark reform;
and

o the new basis for determining the lease payments
is economically equivalent to the previous basis (i.e.
the basis immediately preceding the modification).

Covid-19-related rent concessions

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Group has
elected to apply the practical expedient not to assess
whether the change is a lease modification if all of the
following conditions are met:

o the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the
lease immediately preceding the change;

° any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June 2021;
and

° there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.5

3.6
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Lease (continued)

Covid-19-related rent concessions (continueq)

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts
for changes in lease payments resulting from rent
concessions the same way it would account for the
changes applying HKFRS 16 if the changes are not
a lease modification. Forgiveness or waiver of lease
payments are accounted for as variable lease payments.
The related lease liabilities are adjusted to reflect the
amounts forgiven or waived with a corresponding
adjustment recognised in the profit or loss in the period in
which the event occurs.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise, except for exchange differences on
monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign
operation for which settlement is neither planned
nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net
investment in the foreign operation), which are recognised
initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified
from equity to profit or loss on disposal or partial disposal
of the Group’s foreign operations.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.6 Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange
rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Income and expenses items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case
the exchange rates at the date of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserve (attributed to
non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
associate that includes a foreign operation of which the
retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that does not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all
other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates
that do not result in the Group losing significant
influence), the proportionate share of the accumulated
exchange differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign
operation are treated as assets and liabilities of that
foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.7 Borrowing costs
All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

3.8 Employee benefits

(a)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement
benefit plans are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees in Hong Kong who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the
MPF scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully within the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Retirement benefits to employees in the PRC are
provided through a defined contribution plan.
The Group is required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. The Group is required to contribute
certain percentage of its payroll costs to the
central pension scheme. The contributions are
charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions
after payment of the fixed contribution.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.8 Employee benefits (continued)

(b)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of
the employee services received in exchange for the
grant of the options is recognised as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted:

° including any market performance conditions
(for example, an entity’s share price);

o excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability, sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity over a
specified time period); and

° including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for
employees to save).

Non-market performance and service conditions
are included in assumptions about the number of
options that are expected to vest. The total expense
is recognised over the vesting period, which is
the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to vest based on the non-marketing
performance and service conditions. It recognises
the impact of the revision to original estimates,
if any, in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.8 Employee benefits (continued)

(b)

(c)

ERESEEEBRAF |

Share-based compensation (continued)

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net
of any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital.

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant
date fair value, is recognised over the vesting
period as an increase to investment in subsidiary
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity
in the parent entity accounts.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment
is terminated by the Group before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits
at the earlier of the following dates: (a) when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises costs
for a restructuring that is within the scope of HKAS
37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets and involves the payment of termination
benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are
measured based on the number of employees
expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due
more than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period are discounted to their present value.

T —F5R

4 A
17107 O = |

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Rt #5 ¥ &= MY 5E

BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

3. FEEHEE &E
3.8 EE®EH (&

(b)

(c)

RE#HE (&)
RBREETER  AQF
GETHRMD BUWFATEM
BB ERNERBERZ K
& BARA

TABDRAFERNWEAEE
EREIRETTHRZER
BoOIDRBBEERA-ER
ZRBERBZATEDZE
REUBZAFEFE TN
BEANESSEREAR
REZENN UREATE
RIRE 2 RE R AR
LER

BERETEFY
WAEERESESRAKAE
HaRIELERERAESNES
BEXERERUBNZS
B REEEG T RERE
HoeAEBMETLUTHHR
FEMDERERN (@EX
EEEERLEREHRZE
B ko) EEREREAE
P (BB G5t ERISE379E
BR EEERIBEE
ELER) WP K2 BERAR
) o fid 2 tH— IR B A9 LU B
BREE R BUBER 2’12
FHRERENZEEHE
EB-ARTHAREBIR12M
AXAEMNRMREHER
&

133



134

NoTes To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 A

R

For the year ended 31 December 2021

3.

=

Bt %5 ¥ &= MY 5E

HE_ T —F+_A=+—HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.9 Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit/loss before
income tax because of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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NoTeEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.9 Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the
same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.10 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes. Property, plant
and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of assets less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis, as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings
Leasehold improvements

25 years
3 to 5 years, or over
the term of leases

if shorter
Office equipment and furniture 3 to 5 years
Computer equipment 3 years

Motor vehicles 3 to 10 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.

3.11 Intangible assets

(a) Trading rights
The Group’s intangible assets represent eligibility
rights to trade on or through the Stock Exchange
and on the Hong Kong Future Exchange Limited. The
trading rights are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.
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The software has a finite useful life and is carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate the cost of software over its
estimated useful life from three to ten years.

3.12 Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-

of-use assets, and intangible assets other than
goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, intangible assets with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indication that
these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, and intangible assets are
estimated individually. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to the relevant cash-
generating unit when a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be established, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be established. The recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit or group of cash-
generating units to which the corporate asset belongs,
and is compared with the carrying amount of the relevant
cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.12 Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-

of-use assets, and intangible assets other than
goodwill (continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group compares
the carrying amount of a group of cash-generating units,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group
of cash-generating units, with the recoverable amount
of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the
group of cash-generating units. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit
or a group of cash-generating units) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.13

3.14

ERESEEEBRAF |

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in first
out method for the finished goods (motor vehicles) and
the weighted average method for accessories of motor
vehicles. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured
using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of
those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of
money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to
settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a
third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is
virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and
the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Onerous contract

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are
recognised and measured as provisions. An onerous
contract is considered to exist where the Group has a
contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting
the obligations under the contract exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received from the contract.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.15 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”")) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income which are derived from the Group’s
ordinary course of business are included in other income
and losses, net.

3.

FTEFHEE (&
3.15 €@ T A

EEEERAATIARGNKRXZ
MNA I ENEERER
BE-FMEERAXNBERNLE
THMEEHERZ HER LHES
MEIEESE -BRAIANEER
BERREBER BB R ERE
RAETH EXNEEZEME
ENEE-

THEERTMEBERINIEAT
BFtE MEZRANELNRE
WEZRERBEBEMBRE2E
A1 T st E- BB E
TEREERETRER (BAT
Bt ABEZ (TBAFEFAR
m)) NEmEENERE AR
ERBBANRZHRAEMEL
THIAKNETHREENTMER
(WER) BAFEHRF O
HBEERATES ARG TR
EENERMERERBRZRS
BRI R IR m PR o

BERMNXEZESHEEREENS
fl & R Y8 85 Bl A K FE AR B A
DEMBWBAMAMEZHANE
EoBREMERHARREZHA
MR (BEXYIWERBRAE
ERMMBC BRBRME X
5 B A3 A0 H th e (8 53T $0 B AE AR
) B st RS R B ER
BEFE BEEMEENATHE
RRTEHEIR S (NEA) BEH
B BT ERITBOVAEK -

RAEENEEEHBRPES
BOBR B WA 85 EL A U A e A5 4R
B

Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2021



NoTeEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M EHRER M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HEZZ-—F+"/8=+—HILFE

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at initial recognition of a financial
asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment
in other comprehensive income if that equity investment
is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to
which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.

ERESEERAERAR | 225K

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 3. XFEGHE
3.15 Financial instruments (continued) 3.15 I A (&
Financial assets THEE

EHEENTEREETE

TE TR EREERLRR
BRI AT E

s TREEUEFTRAFA>
HENRWEBREHNERE M
g8,k

s BHRRNIEEHMBELR
ERE ZREREERX
TAREZERTENRTZNF
I%\ ©

HEUTHRENEREEBRR
ATESAEMEEHRA (MEA
FEFARMEERAL FE

s EHMEEA—EHFEEREAR
RFAE HERRBBLER
WEREMREAEMER
Y4

s GHRFNIETEAHREELR
EhE ZREREERX
TREERSENSTSNF
/%\ ©°

FFEREMERMEERREATE
StABmEtE EHZFERR
BN FFHFEERRKRWBE SN
ERVBREENEIREES
HATBERZEH G HPREEHNWR
ARRME RIS BB R4 5 SR
THMEEZ BRI REEMEER
Hth2EWRAF2IEaRER
FENHEZEEH-

141



NoTes To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBERRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HEZZ - —F+_F=+—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.15 Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)
A financial asset is held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at the
amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing
so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.

()  Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost and debt
instruments/receivables subsequently measured at
FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit-
impaired.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.15 Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)
(i) Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the fair value through other comprehensive
income reserve; and are not subject to impairment
assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will not be
reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity
investments, and will be transferred to accumulated
losses.

Dividends from these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the
Group’s right to receive the dividends is established,
unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery
of part of the cost of the investment. Dividends are
included in the other income and losses line item in
profit or loss.

(i)  Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair
value gains or losses recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “other income
and losses”.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.15 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets
(including trade receivables, rental and other deposits
paid, other receivables, pledged deposits, bank balances
and cash — trust accounts and bank balances and cash
— general accounts) which are subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-months ECL (“12m
ECL”) represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessments
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current conditions at the reporting date as
well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of
a default occurring since initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.15 Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant decrease
in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.15 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (continued)
For loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts, the date that the Group becomes a party
to the irrevocable commitment is considered to be
the date of initial recognition for the purposes of
assessing impairment. In assessing whether there
has been a significant increase in the credit risk
since initial recognition of a loan commitment, the
Group considers changes in the risk of a default
occurring on the loan to which a loan commitment
relates; for financial guarantee contracts, the Group
considers the changes in the risk that the specified
debtor will default on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk and revises them
as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable
of identifying significant increase in credit risk before
the amount becomes past due.

(i) Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.
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NoTeEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2-&- P

For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.15 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events of default that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of that
financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable
data about the following events:

(ii)

ERESEEEBRAF |

(@)

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties;
or

the purchase or origination of a financial asset

at a deep discount that reflects the incurred
credit losses.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.15 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(iv)  Write-off policy
The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined
with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is
required to make payments only in the event of a
default by the debtor in accordance with the terms
of the instrument that is guaranteed. Accordingly,
the ECL is the present value of the expected
payments to reimburse the holder for a credit loss
that it incurs less any amounts that the Group
expects to receive from the holder, the debtor or any
other party.
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NoTeEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.15 Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v)

ERESEEEBRAF |

Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

For undrawn loan commitments, the ECL is
the present value of the difference between the
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group if
the holder of the loan commitments draws down the
loan, and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive if the loan is drawn down.

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts or on
loan commitments for which the effective interest
rate cannot be determined, the Group will apply
a discount rate that reflects the current market
assessment of the time value of money and the risks
that are specific to the cash flows but only if, and to
the extent that, the risks are taken into account by
adjusting the discount rate instead of adjusting the
cash shortfalls being discounted.

Lifetime ECL for trade receivables are considered on
a collective basis taking into consideration past due
information and relevant credit information such as
forward looking macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

o Past-due status;

o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

o External credit ratings where available.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HEZZ - —F+_F=+—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.15 Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue to
share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition
to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve is
not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to
accumulated losses.
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Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity instruments in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and bill payables,
other payables and accruals, provisions, bank and
other borrowings and lease liabilities) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit
or loss.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following are the critical judgments and estimation
uncertainties that the directors have made in the process
of applying the entity’s accounting policies and that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

(a) Impairment of trade and other receivables and
deposits paid
Provision for expected credit losses (“ECLs”) of
trade receivables
The Group measures loss allowance of trade receivables
on the basis of life time ECLs. The Group uses a
provision of matrix approach to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The determination of default rates takes into
account historical data and forward-looking information
that is receivable and supportable available without undue
cost or effort, which involves a significant degree of
management judgement.

The provision of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and of forecast general economic
conditions. If the financial condition of the customers or
the forecast economic conditions were to deteriorate,
actual loss allowance would be higher than estimated.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND 4.
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(continued)

(a)

(b)

Impairment of trade and other receivables and
deposits paid (continueq)

Impairment for other receivables and deposits paid
The Group measures the loss allowance of other
receivables and deposits paid on the basis of 12
months ECLs. Management of the Group assessed
the recoverability of other receivables and deposits
paid based on the financial background of the debtors,
collateral and the historical settlement records, including
past due dates, default rates, forward-looking information
that is reasonable, supportable and available without
undue cost or effort.

Impairment for deposits paid for acquisition of
motor vehicles for resale

The Group evaluates the loss allowances of deposits
paid for acquisition of motor vehicles for resale based
on purchase records and information, including advance
payments history, delivery of motor vehicles, suppliers’
credit profile, on-going business relationship with
suppliers and underlying economic conditions, which
involves a significant level of management judgment. If
the financial conditions of the suppliers or the forecast
economic conditions were to deteriorate, actual loss
allowance could be higher than estimated.

Impairment of interests in associates

The Group has made substantial investments in
associates. The Group conducts impairment reviews
of these assets whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may
not be recoverable.

Determining whether interests in associates are impaired
requires an estimation of the recoverable amounts
of the interests in associates. The Group recognised
the impairment of interests in associate based on
an assessment of future economic benefits of the
investment that will flow to the Group. The associate
ceased its business due to the policy review by the PRC
government, and such review has not yet completed up
to present. Where the review of the policy is completed
and the expectation is different from the originate
estimate, such difference will impact the interests in
associate in the period in which such estimates has been
changed.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(continued)
(c) Estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

The useful lives of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment are estimated at the time of purchase of
these assets after considering business developments
and the Group’s strategies. The Group performs regular
review to assess the appropriateness of the depreciation
policy of the Group’s property, plant and equipment,
including the estimation of their useful lives. Such review
takes into account any unexpected adverse changes in
circumstances or events, including declines in projected
operating results, negative industry and economic trends.
The Group extends or shortens the useful lives and/or
makes impairment provisions according to the results of
the review.

(d) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in certain overseas
jurisdictions and Hong Kong. Significant judgment is
required in determining the provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period
in which such determination are made.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY 4. BEARGHIEREGEAFEEEZE

SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

(e)

Determining the basis on impairment relating

to refundable earnest money paid for proposed
business acquisition in previous year

The Group has paid the refundable earnest money of
RMB20,000,000 (approximately HK$24,388,000) for the
proposed acquisition for the entire registered capital of &
HEFFIERAR AT (transliterated as Mingin Quantum
New Energy Co. Ltd.)(“Mingin Quantum”) in January
2015. The Group has received the collateral which are
the entire shares of Mingin Quantum from the vendor.
The proposed acquisition terminated in May 2015 and
the Group filed an arbitration application to South China
International Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission
for the repayment of the overdue receivables.

Although the final judgment ordered the vendor to repay
the refundable earnest money to the Group, the vendor
did not return the said deposits to the Group. On 6 June
2017, the PRC legal advisor of the Company received the
execution judgment (the “Execution Judgment”) issued
by Intermediate People’s Court (the “Court”) of Suining
District, Sichuan Province dated 25 April 2017. According
to the Execution Judgment, the Court terminated the
compulsory execution of repayment of the said deposits
from the vendor and the Court concluded that the vendor
owns no executable assets after he pledged his shares of
the Mingin Quantum to the Group. The Group continued
to communicate with its PRC lawyer to follow up the
judgment from the Court but the status was not changed.
The management had made an impairment of refundable
earnest money paid for the proposed acquisition of
Mingin Quantum in the year ended 31 December 2017.
Based on the facts and circumstances described
above, the management considers the recoverability
of refundable earnest money paid for the aforesaid
acquisition is remote.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

(f) Revenue recognition in respect of motor vehicles

trading business

The Group assesses its business relationship with
suppliers and customers in respect of the trading of
motor vehicles business to determine whether the Group
acts as a principal or agent. The factors taken into
account by management in assessing whether the Group
acts as the principal or agent include:

(i) Whether the Group has the primary responsibility for
fulfilling the promise to provide the specified goods
or services.

(i)  Whether the Group has inventory risk before the
specified goods or services has been transferred
to a customer and whether the Group is exposed
to significant inventory risk. The Group considered
that it has minimal inventory risk in respect of
situations where the Group concluded that it itself
is just an agent in arranging goods to be delivered
to the customers. In those situations, the Group
only places purchase orders to suppliers after it has
received sales orders from customers. On the other
hand, where the Group concludes that it itself is
a principal, it is mainly relating to situations where
the Group has significant inventory risk regarding
trading of the motor vehicles which the Group did
not receive any sale orders from customers before
purchasing the motor vehicles from the suppliers.

(i)  Whether the Group has discretion in establishing
the price for the specified goods or services
and whether the Group is exposed to significant
price risk. The Group basically agreed the price
of the motor vehicles with the customers before
purchasing the motor vehicles from the suppliers
in situations where the Group concludes that it
itself is an agent while the Group has discretion in
establishing the price for the motor vehicles with the
customers or exposure to significant price risk for
the sales transactions where the Group concludes
that it is a principal.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

(f)

(9)

Revenue recognition in respect of motor vehicles

trading business (continued)

(iv)  Whether the pre-agreed sales contracts with
customers are legally binding especially in
circumstances where only insignificant deposits
are received from the customers before the Group
settling the entire purchase amounts with the
suppliers and whether the Group is exposed to
significant credit risk.

Based on the management assessment, the Group
acted as principal in the trading of motor vehicles
transacted during the current year and the proceeds
from sales of motor vehicles amounted to approximately
HK$21,573,000 for the year have been recognised as
revenue of the Group.

Provision for loss on onerous contracts

Management estimates the provision for loss on onerous
contracts, which are related to situations where motor
vehicles have not been delivered to the Group but
purchase agreements were entered into before 31
December 2021, being the present obligation of the
unavoidable costs less the economic benefits expected to
be received under the non-cancellable purchase contract
of motor vehicles. The expected economic benefits are
estimated based on estimated future sales and selling
price taking by reference to existing market condition and
estimated number of motor vehicles to be sold under
the existing market condition while unavoidable costs
are estimated based on the motor vehicles purchase
contracts that the Group is obliged to settle.

Management conducted an assessment of the market
condition and subsequent sales price and the estimates
and assumptions contained therein are reviewed
regularly. As at 31 December 2021, provision for loss on
onerous contracts remained outstanding amounted to
approximately HK$12,700,000 (2020: HK$12,350,000).

ERESEERAERAR | 225K

BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

EXEHAEREHFREEZE
ERE (#)

(f)

(9)

SEHEEBZWHEE (7

(v) HREEAEREMERE
HEERaRBERIRR  ERE
FPWELERENERT
HERRELAMENHESR
MERAERORNDKREE
BESAREREERR-

RIEEEBITE KEBNAE
ERABEESHTEITZTEAS
MRERNBEEREMRMSHRIEN
21,573,000 T EERALER
Yo

BFRESHERER
EERBMGAABRANR T —F
TTR=+ BRI RER
BEROAEERMVAENEE
GHEREBHTIBREREZ
REEERFERRES A B
BB S WA B W
TR E M m I ER2RIBTS
M AR RIFE R EBUKIR
BROMRASEHAEREE
A5 A B8 e A% A Rl 4% IR
FEBREENAERBEGNMG
5te

BEEBHTRIUKEENEEE
T BESEEESREN
et RBRH - RN B —F+ =
B=+—H WEiEBEZEES
#E5 1B B 5 4912,700,00058 7T (=
T4 112,350,000 7T) ©

157



NoTes To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HEZZ - —F+_F=+—HIEFE

5. REVENUE 5. W=
Disaggregation of revenue 15 &5 40 3
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by BRIEESARBEIPNEREL
major products or service lines is as follows: WA -
2021 2020
—g-—F —EERE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHTT FAETT
Revenue from contracts with ERMBEREERE159
customers within the scope of HEANER &SR
HKFRS 15
Disaggregated by major products BFEEmIRBARE D
or service lines
Commission income from securities EEMEKARE 2
and futures brokerage services EEAVON 796 851
Sales of motor vehicles where RERBRBETEIEASHZ
the Group acts as principal REIHE 21,573 62,702
Agency and service fees income from ZRBERHREZRER
accessories sourcing AR5 & WA 1,720 5,098
24,089 68,651
Revenue from other sources KEHMKEZWE
Interest income from securities and KRBTSR E K AR
futures brokerage services ZF) B 93 418
Total revenue W 4B 58 24,182 69,069
Disaggregated by timing of revenue BEMBIRESERFE155%
recognition within the scope &1 Bl 1 W e e 58 s B 4 9
of HKFRS 15
Over time eindis s - -
At point in time ¥4 055 ) B 24,089 68,651
24,089 68,651
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by rEmBE s zER MW DA
geographical markets is disclosed in note 6. BR B 5RO B2 o
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION
The executive directors of the Company (the “Executive
Directors”) are regarded as the chief operating decision-maker.
The Executive Directors review the Group’s internal reporting in
order to assess performance and allocate resources. Operating
segments were determined based on these reports.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments are as follows:

1. Brokerage and securities margin financing services —
provision of brokerage and securities margin financing
services

2. Trading and principal investments — securities trading

3. Sales of motor vehicles, provision of agency services

and accessories sourcing — trading of motor vehicles,
provision of agency and related services

ERESEERAERAR | 225K
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. EEH (B
Segment revenue and results D EBUN R FE 4B
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results UTABAERZAIRSDIE2HIUL
by reportable segments: m R EEDT
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE_E-_—S4+-A=+—HLHE
E
Sales of
motor
Brokerage vehicles,
and provision of
securities agency
margin  Trading and  services and
financing principal  accessories
services  investments sourcing Total
FCERY HERE
EHREE EER RESERS
B R BERE - REMFLHE EaHy
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Segment revenue AEU R
External sales INEREHE 889 - 23,293 24,182
Inter-segment sales DEEHE - - - -
889 - 23,293 24,182
Segment (loss)/profit N (E518) /BF (1,185) (3,361) 491 (4,055)
Interest income FIEMA 291
Other income and losses, net HW AR BB TR (6,846)
Unallocated expenses RAEEY (21,424)
Finance costs RIE R A (250)
Loss before income tax BRETSIAIEE (32,284)
Income tax credit PrZIRIER 182
Loss for the year EREE (32,102)
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. EEHR (E
Segment revenue and results (continued) DEME R F 4R (B)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z - ZHF+"H=+—HILHF
E
Sales of
motor
Brokerage vehicles,
and provision of
securities agency
margin Trading and  services and
financing principal accessories
services investments sourcing Total
&k HERE
EHRES BER RERERZ
RBERS BERE  REHAE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TAT FTAT
Segment revenue DE MR
External sales SNERSHE 1,269 - 67,800 69,069
Inter-segment sales DEEHEE - - - -
1,269 - 67,800 69,069
Segment loss DEEE (1,562) (5,486) (1,867) (8,915)
Interest income FIBWA 802
Other income and losses, net HW AR &8558 (12,183)
Unallocated expenses RPEHY (21,245)
Finance costs MEMA (201)
Loss before income tax BREEHAIESE (41,742)
Income tax credit FrERiE%E 182
Loss for the year FREE (41,560)

The measure used for reporting segment profits or losses is
adjusted loss before interest and income tax. To arrive at the
adjusted loss, the Group’s loss is further adjusted for items
not specifically attributed to individual segments, such as
unrealised fair value loss on unlisted equity investment, finance
costs, certain interest income and head office or corporate
administration costs.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. 7EEH (E
Other segment information is as follows: HittpIENUWT -
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-_ZE-_—S+=-A=+—HLE#E
E
Sales of motor
Brokerage vehicles,
and provision of
securities agency
margin Trading and  services and
financing principal accessories
services investments sourcing Unallocated Total
"k HERE
HHRES HER REKERS
&R BERE REH#KE FAE hy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TFHET TET FER
Additions to property, plant and equipment NE BERRERE 14 - 8 - 22
Depreciation and amortisation TEREE 1 - 178 3,395 3,584
Unrealised fair value gains on securities trading HHEEZRERATENE - (250) - - (250)
Unrealised fair value loss on unlisted equity investment 3 LR IERE 2 REBATEEE - - - 6,735 6,735
Reversal of provision for loss on onerous contracts BRANFEEERD = = = = -
Impairment loss on trade deposits paid and ENERREREMBRTEL
other recelvables reversed REEEED - - (3,135) (709) (3,844)
Written off of property, plant and equipment MEREREZENE - - - 17 17
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment  HENE ER B HE () /BB - - - - -
Gain on lease termination REL W - - - - -
Gain on lease modification AEET - - - - -
Interest income FIBMA - - (35) (291) (326)
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. EEHR (E
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE_ZT_ZF+_HBA=+—HI=E
E
Sales of motor
Brokerage vehicles,
and provision of
securities agency
margin Trading and services and
financing principal accessories
services investments sourcing Unallocated Total
FER) HEREN
HEREE EER RERERE
RHERY BERE REH#RE FRE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHT TER TET TER
Additions to property, plant and equipment NE BBRRERE - - 5 2,614 2,619
Depreciation and amortisation TEREHE 13 - 556 2,484 3,053
Unrealised fair value losses on securities trading EHBEZAERNTEFE - 180 - - 180
Unrealised fair value loss on unlisted equity investment ~ 3E LR ERE 2 REBATERE - - - 15,732 15,732
Reversal of provision for loss on onerous contracts BRANBEEARE - - (4,248) - (4,248)
Impairment loss on trade deposits paid and ENESRERAMERTEL
other receivables recognised REBEED - - 10,841 - 10,841
Written off of property, plant and equipment ME - BRRRENE - - - 252 252
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment  HEYE B RRE @) /B8 - - (186) 131 (55)
Gain on lease termination AEL I - - (24) (1,696) (1,720)
Gain on lease modification REBITWE - - - (735) (735)
Interest income FIEBA @ - (465) (802) (1,269)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6.

HE_ T —F+_A=+—HLEE

The segment assets and segment liabilities of the Group as at
31 December 2021 and 2020 are analysed as follows:

DEEH (F

AEBER B —FR-P-BF
+oA=+—BWABEERSHE

BEAWMAWT :
Segment assets 2021 2020
SFEEE —E-—%F TECE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Brokerage and securities margin B hFBHRBEMERT
financing services 26,676 38,679
Trading and principal investments BEMEBERE 1,600 1,190
Sales of motor vehicles, provision HERE N REMRIERS
of agency services and KECHHE
accessories sourcing 198,787 78,762
Total segment assets DEEERE 227,063 118,631
Unallocated assets APOECEE 68,504 124,034
Total consolidated assets CEEBEERE 295,567 242 665
Segment liabilities 2021 2020
DEaE —E-—5F —BC=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Brokerage and securities margin Rl RBHREBETHERT
financing services 6,582 16,506
Trading and principal investments BEENEEKRE - -
Sales of motor vehicles, provision HEAE N RHAERE
of agency services and KBRS
accessories sourcing 95,385 12,656
Total segment liabilities DE B ERE 101,967 29,162
Unallocated liabilities Pl =R 14,976 6,886
Total consolidated liabilities ReEaEeE 116,943 36,048
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment assets consist primarily of certain property, plant
and equipment, intangible assets, right-of-use assets,
statutory deposits and other assets, certain inventories,
trade receivables, certain prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, pledged deposits, certain financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and certain bank balances and
cash.

Segment liabilities consists primarily of trade and bill payables,
certain other payables and accruals, contract liabilities, bank
and other borrowings, provisions and lease liabilities.

Geographical information

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and the PRC.
Revenue from external customers are allocated based on the
geographical areas in which the customers are located.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and non-current assets
(excluding financial assets) by geographical location are as
follows:

6.

e MR RMNE

BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

SBWEH (&
DHEETZCERIVDE KB
RE-BLEE CRAREE EAER
EREMEE-ETEFE BWRESM
T8~ BR ) TR RRIA ~ 3% K H MR WK
BEBREETRETRATFES AR
mZEREEN RS DIRITERRIR
4o

NEEREIZEEBNESZMEARE
B EDEMBENIMBARESRE &
WER RITREMMER BERHURE
E&fk-

HE R
AEETBREBRPEEE RS
REE 2 W REF B S o

AERIZMIBMAE S W mE RIER
HEE FTRESRER ON0T :

2021 2020
—E-—f ==
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAET
Revenue &

Hong Kong 5% 889 1,269
The PRC == 23,293 67,800
24,182 69,069

Non-current assets (excluding ERHEE (FEIE

financial assets) EREE)

Hong Kong P 23,166 24,881
The PRC H 5,663 6,682
28,829 31,563
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical information (continued)

The geographical location of non-current assets (excluding
financial assets) is based on the physical location of assets
(in the case of property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use asset), the location of the operations to which they are
allocated (in the case of intangible assets, statutory deposits
and other assets, rental and other deposits paid), and location
of operations (in the case of interests in associates).

Information about major customers
Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the Group
revenue is as follows:

SBWEH (E

HEEX (8

HRME - RERRFEREREEE
FERBEENBETREE) ZHIEQ
ENEREENERMUEME BN E
REE - ZERERAMEE-BNUHE
ERHEMZE  HMIB U BT ERHEFR
REBEMME BNNBMEQLT Z#
m o RIEREEHME

FEERZEN
HAREBMBFEI0O%NU EZ2F A W=
I

2021 2020
—E-—& 2=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAEIT
Sales of motor vehicles, provision $H&SHE IRMEREBERFER
of agency services and AR
accessories sourcing
Customer A ZHA 9,112 N/A 38 Rt
Customer B ZFB 6,944 N/A 58
Customer C EEC 2,684 N/A 8 At
Customer D ZFD N/A &R 38,296
Customer E ZFE N/A FER* 28,790

The customer D and customer E did not contribute over 10% of the
Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2021.

# The customer A, customer B and customer C did not contribute over 10%

of the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2020.

BEADREREREBE_ZE_—F+_1
“+—BALEFEMRGEAEBRMBENI10%
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7. OTHER INCOME AND LOSSES, NET 7. HthWBEAREIRSEE
2021 2020
—E-— —ECEF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHT BT
Other income Hhlg A
CCASS fee income RREERGERWA 21 21
Interest income from bank deposits RITERFEWA 54 60
Other interest income (Note a) HnFd] BUA (Mfsta) 272 1,209
Dividends from financial assets at BATESFAERZ
fair value through profit or loss ETHEENRKRE - 100
Deposits received on disposal of BUEGEHERB AR
subsidiary forfeited FT I ER 932 & - 710
Government grants and subsidies (Note b) BT # Bh K #8845 (FfsEb) - 4,922
Sundry income HEIE U A 118 175
465 7,197
Other gains and losses H{thih &5 R B518
Fair value gain/(loss) on financial assets AT {EtAEFEZ
at fair value through profit ETHEEZRFE
or loss Wz, (B518)
Unrealised fair value gain/(loss) BEEBRENR
on securities trading NEEWER, (B8) 250 (180)
Unrealised fair value loss on unlisted JFLTRERE S
equity investment (Note 25) FER N T ERBE
(FF5E25) (6,735) (15,732)
(6,485) (15,912)
Exchange losses, net PE R 51875 %8 (27) (87)
Gain on lease termination HE& WS - 1,720
Gain on lease modification HEEST W= - 735
Gain on disposal of property, HEYFE HBIRZERR
plant and equipment - 55
Written off of property, WD EE 128 KRR I EE
plant and equipment (17) (252)
Other losses, net HunE518 558 (6,529) (13,741)
Other income and losses, net HMW A R ERFEE (6,064) (6,544)
Notes: fyEE :
(a) The other interest income of the Group arose from the short-term (a) AEENEMFABRARBAEERNRE

PUKRBADBE=ZARENERZR BE
BEMRZFENE2EEE-

advances made by the Group to its customers and certain third parties,
which were fully repaid up to the end of the reporting period.

FEBBEERESHFRE N E BT B KA
BREYIS 1

(b) The conditions for the government grants and subsidies have been fulfilled (b)
by the Group up to the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HEZZ - —F+_F=+—HIEFE

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. BEMZE
2021 2020
—E-—& —E2TEg
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHT FAET
Interest on bank borrowings IRITIERZF R 1 45
Interest on lease liabilities HEasZME 97 149
Interest on other borrowings HttEm 22
— Secured —BEF 152 -
— Unsecured (related party) — IR (BREEA D) - 7
250 201
9. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. [RFRIGMAIRSIE
2021 2020
—E-—5F —ECE
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHTT T
Loss before income tax has been FRPTISIAIES 18
arrived at after charging: B TIEIE
Auditor’s remuneration % & BB &
— audit services — ZBARTS 600 600
- non-audit services — IR BARTS 100 80
Legal and professional fees FRRBEEER 607 840
Consultancy fees HBHEER 3,838 929
Exhibition and marketing fee RERTSHEEER 580 1,753
Transportation, accessories and storage EB&#H - KE#E 101 25
The above expenses are included in other expenses presented LS AGEEaREMEEK
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other ABRKEINEMBESZ

comprehensive income.
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10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4 A
17107 O = |

10. ES@\ARAX

2021 2020

—E-—& —EEHF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Wages and salaries ITE&ERHE 13,693 18,177

Pension costs — defined contribution BT —EREHEAREE

schemes 388 491
Employee benefit expenses including EERHHS BEEHE

directors’ emoluments (Note 11) (FFsE11) 14,081 18,668

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had no forfeited
contributions, which arose upon employees leaving the
defined contribution schemes, and are available to reduce the
contribution payable in future years (2020: Nil).

RESHR AEBTERNESERRET
FRMLRRET B M AROR W > X BT ARSI R
REEZEAER (CEZZF 1 H) o

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 11. EEM=E
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BHE_Z-_—F+"H=+—HIHF
E
Salaries, Employer’s
allowances,  contributions
and benefits to pension
Fees in kind scheme Total
E
Name of director BYR BBz
EEi% s EMHE EEHR @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FART FAT FET
Executive Directors BTES
Mr. Wang Jiawei (Chairman and IER%EE
Chief Executive Officer) (FERTELER) - 1,800 18 1,818
Ms. Lai Yuk Mui REBLL - 600 18 618
Non-executive Director FRTES
Mr. Liu Runtong 2BmEE - - = =
Independent Non-Executive BlUERiTES
Directors
Professor Zhang Benzheng RAEHR 130 - - 130
Mr. Li Jianxing FRTEE 125 - - 125
Professor Chen Shu Wen BRI SR 120 - - 120
375 2,400 36 2,811
ERSEEEARAD | ZEZ—FFRH
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

11.

& M w R MW

HE_ T —F+_A=+—HLEE

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 11. EHME &
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE_Z_ZF+_HB=+—HI=E
E
Salaries, Employer’s
allowances, contributions
and benefits to pension
Fees in kind scheme Total
e
Name of director EMR BAsHEZ
BENS ne BEWF @ (SRS st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TAT TET AT
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Wang Jiawei (Chairman and IEREE
Chief Executive Officer) (FERTHER) - 1,800 18 1,818
Ms. Lai Yuk Mui REBELT - 600 18 618
Non-executive Director FRITES
Mr. Liu Runtong Epel b - - - -
Independent Non-Executive BULEHTES
Directors
Professor Zhang Benzheng RAEHR 130 - - 130
Mr. Li Jianxing FRITEE 125 - - 125
Professor Chen Shu Wen B SR 120 - - 120
375 2,400 36 2,811

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office (2020: Nil). None of the
directors waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during

the year (2020: Nil).

FRAERTERES M EAME
B2 W 5| 00 B8 =X 7S 0 B8 2 & B By 2 2%
BRIFRERBE C222F 1 8)
FR TEEFREXNRSRFEE N
T(CEIZTF E)
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12. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year include two (2020: two) directors of whose
remuneration are set out in note 11.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2020:

Nil).

The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other three
(2020: three) highest individuals (other than the directors) are

For the year ended 31 December 2021

12. ABEREHAL

BEMIEE11 0

TE | o

FREEERLAR
(ZZ2ZZTF M) EF REZM

BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

EHATEERS

FR-AERTERLRRSHALX
BN < (E 2 IR 5100 B8 5 7S AN B3 A<
SRR EBNFABRRBME (CTTZ

Hih=% (CZ2-ZF : =%) R #
AL BFRESSIN B EREIMT

as follows:
2021 2020
—®¥-—-% C—z-=H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Salaries and other emoluments e R EMME 3,560 4,840
Retirement schemes contributions BRIRET SRR 18 30
3,578 4,870
The emoluments of the three (2020: three) individuals with the = (CEISFE =L REHF AT
highest emoluments are within the following bands: Bt T 5 EE
2021 2020
—E—%f —EEF
Number of Number of
individual individual
A A
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = %1,000,0007% 7T 2 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 T E
2,000,000 7 - 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 TE
2,500,0007 7T 1 1
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—Z-—F+-"A=+—HILFE
13. INCOME TAX CREDIT 13. FRiSIESR
2021 2020
—E-—F B EF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAETT
Current tax BIHATR I8 - -
Deferred tax credit (Note 35) RERIBIE % (FI5E35) (182) (182)
Income tax credit FriSfRig % (182) (182)

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax and PRC enterprise
income tax has been made in the consolidated financial
statements as the group companies incurred tax losses for the
year (2020: Nil).

The income tax credit can be reconciled to the loss before
income tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as follows:

HRERARNAFEEEREESR
E&Iﬂtﬁfﬁéﬁﬂ“iﬁ%qﬂ?f*%ﬂ
MEPEEXEFASRERER (CTZ
TEHE) o

TS 70 1 %2 Al 22 mREMERE
WARKZERFTISHA uZEﬂEﬁEEQD
T

= A
7 g =]

2021 2020

—E-—& —EIERF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHT FHET

Loss before income tax FRETISI AR 18 (32,284) (41,742)

Tax calculated at domestic tax rates in BEREMBaEHEERE

respective tax jurisdiction STHEZIRIE (6,617) (8,819)

Income not subject to tax HIERR WA (13) (694)
Expenses not deductible for MRIEBEBEN AR 2

tax purposes 1,947 6,172

Unused tax losses not recognised RERBZ RABARIEREIE 2,215 1,559

Tax losses not allowable TEFAZRIEEE 2,389 1,862

Prior year’s tax losses utilised BREZETFEREBRIE (190) (515)

Temporary differences not provided IEEHRER 87 253

Others HA1th - -

Income tax credit TSIk R (182) (182)

Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2021



(a)

NoTeEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= AH
17107 O = |

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Rt #5 ¥ &= MY 5E

BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

14. LOSS PER SHARE 14. SREHE
Basic loss per share (a) SRELREIE
The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to KAB)EB ANEHEREKREIR
owners of the Company is based on the following data: ZETEERUTEIE
2021 2020
—E=—f i
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHTT FAETT
Loss for the year attributable to ZiN/NETEZE =N
owners of the Company FE{L RS 8 (32,090) (41,399)
2021 2020
—E-—-%F —ETEF
’000 000
T T 5%
Number of shares RiZ8H
Number of ordinary shares forthe Gzt EESRELRBEZ
purpose of basic loss per share ZEKREE 7,748,958 7,748,958
Diluted loss per share (b) ERIEHEEE

15.

ERESEEEBRAF |

(b)

The computation of diluted loss per share for the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 do not assume the
exercise of the Company’s share options which had anti-
diluted effect and would result in a reduction in loss per
share for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

No diluted loss per share for both of the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020 is presented as there were no
potential ordinary shares in issue for both of the years

ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors of the Company do not recommend any payment
of a dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2021

(2020: Nil).

T —F5R

15. B2
EARBDEEITEZENBE_T_—F
TZA=+—HLEFERTEARKRE

ai—V —_EEEZ—V —;EEE
+ZA=+—BHLEEFEENSKE

BEREZFABRIERKRAATZ
BREETE 2EEREARSR

RBEGYEARERBE"F
——ERZFIFFLA=T
BiEFENSRERRL -

WARBINEE S _—ER_F
—EFE+_A=Z+—HIEmESE
EzeREEHEE ERAHE

EIFRIZIZF+TH
=T—HLEMEFEDBEZEITE
EEZER o

(ZEZZF  H|) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE—Z-—F+-"A=+—HILFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. ME - -HBR=2HE

Leasehold Office
land and Leasehold equipment Computer Motor
buildings improvements  and furniture equipment vehicles Total
HE WAER
TiRiEFT HAEVERE Rfxfih BiERE HE th
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET THET THET TAT TAT
At 1 January 2020 RZ§-%%-A-AH
Cost A& 40,327 1,569 3,934 716 5,861 52,407
Accumulated depreciation RitE (14,383) (899) (3,360) (639) (5,201) (24,476)
Carrying amount REE 25,944 676 574 7 660 27,931
Year ended 31 December 2020 HEZZ-ZE
1z H =+-HLEEE
Carrying amount at 1 January 2020 RIEZZE-F-HZEKEE 25,944 676 574 77 660 27,931
Additions, at cost HE RAA - 373 647 - 1,599 2,619
Currency translation difference BERAEEDR - ©) (564) - 107 (466)
Disposals and written off HE R - (218) (184) - (175) (577)
Depreciation charge TERX (1,619) (389) (264) (36) (356) (2,658)
Carrying amount at RIBZZE+ZB=+—HZKEE
31 December 2020 24,331 433 209 4 1,835 26,849
At 31 December 2020 RZEZEF+ZRA=+-AH
Cost fﬁfh 40,327 1,187 1,300 716 5,889 49,419
Accumulated depreciation ES i (15,996) (754) (1,091) (675) (4,054) (22,570)
Carrying amount REfE 24,331 433 209 4 1,835 26,849
Year ended 31 December 2021 HE-S--&
+ZB=+-ALEE
Carrying amount at 1 January 2021 RZE_—-F-F—-HZKAE 24,331 433 209 H 1,835 26,849
Additions, at cost AEERAE - - 8 14 - 22
Currency translation difference BRAEER - 9 4 - 49 62
Disposals and written off HE B8 - - - = (17) (17)
Depreciation charge FEEY (1,613) (136) (124) (26) (226) (2,125)
Carrying amount at RIBZ-F+_A=+-RAZKAEE
31 December 2021 22,718 306 97 29 1,641 24,791
At 31 December 2021 HZ¥Z-£+ZRA=+-H
Cost %S 40,327 1,198 1,146 730 5,640 49,041
Accumulated depreciation KEHE (17,609) (892) (1,049) (701) (3,999) (24,250)
Carrying amount REE 22,718 306 97 29 1,641 24,791
Note: B sE

As at 31 December 2021, leasehold land and buildings in Hong Kong under
long lease with the carrying amount of approximately HK$22,718,000 (2020:
approximately HK$24,331,000) was pledged to secure the bank and other
borrowings of the Group (Note 33).

RIZZI—F+ZA=+—H > RERBHALHLHR
EASAREEAL22,718,0008 T (ZE-Z
£ 1 4924,331,0008w) 2HETHRIEFER
EABRBARERZIRIT REMMERIERR (s
33) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HEZZ-—F+"/8=+—HILFE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. BB E
Software Trading rights Total
B RAtE Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
At 1 January 2020 NW-E-Z§—HA—H
Cost [B&N 104 3,224 3,328
Accumulated amortisation and impairment £ 5118 4 & B (& (69) (3,224) (3,293)
Carrying amount IREE 35 - 35
Year ended 31 December 2020 HE-_E-_EF+-A=+—HLEE
Carrying amount at 1 January 2020 RZEZZF—-F—HZREE 35 - 35
Currency translation difference BB ERE 1 - 1
Amortisation charges #igmEY (33) - (33)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2020 RIZEZEF+ZA=+—HZKHEE 3 - 3
At 31 December 2020 R-E_EE+”-A=+—H
Cost Bl A 104 3,224 3,328
Accumulated amortisation Rty (101) (3,224) (3,325)
Carrying amount IREE 3 - 3
Year ended 31 December 2021 HE-_E-—&5+-B=+—HLEE
Carrying amount at 1 January 2021 N _E_—F—A—HZKHEE 3 - 3
Amortisation charges s (3) = (3)

Carrying amount at 31 December 2021 NZEZ—F+ZA=+—HzZKHE - - -

At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—-%+”"HA=+-H

Cost A 104 3,224 3,328

Accumulated amortisation Rty (104) (3,224) (3,328)

Carrying amount REE - - =

Notes: M5E

[0 The amortisation charge for the year is presented in the consolidated 0] FEREERXNGRERaREMEEBA
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income separately. WRNE/ED

(i) The trading rights as at 31 December 2021 represent two (2020: two) (ii) RIBZ-—F+ZRA=+—HZX 5%
trading rights on the Stock Exchange and one (2020: one) trading right on MEBE(CTZRF MR BXPAR5 8K
the Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited. —E(CZIZE R IEEHRERS

FRBERABRZXZ -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HEZZ - —F+_F=+—HIEFE

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

18. ERAEEE

Office premises

MAEME

HK$’'000

FHET

Carrying amount at 1 January 2020 RNETEF—HA—HZEKRAEE 463

Additions, at cost =R NN 2,945

Lease termination EE&IE (549)

Depreciation charged for the year FRITERS (362)

Exchange realignment b 2 eH 149
Carrying amount at 31 December 2020 and N ZEIEFFZA=F+—HK

1 January 2021 2 F—-HF—HZEKAEE 2,646

Depreciation charged for the year FRFERS (1,456)

Exchange realignment bE 52 5 2 54

Carrying amount at 31 December 2021 W _EBE_—F+_HA=+—H

ZBRMEE 1,244

2021 2020

—Eg-—F “BEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHT FHET

Total cash outflow for leases HEZRE& ML BLE 1,526 2,558

For both of the years presented, the Group leases office
premises for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into
for fixed term of one to two years, but may have extension
and termination options. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain different terms and conditions. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length of the
non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a
contract and determines the period for which the contract is
enforceable.

RETZ27IMEBEFE  ZEBIREE
HERAEYE -HESIEEHR
m—EMF BREAEERKILEE
B-HERRRENEEER #B T
B R B 5% 1 o PO FE E AR HA XL ST A /T
HWISFRRER  AEBBAGHNNE
FAH BT S AP SR B ATTHVEAR ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #EZE"Z”-_—F+"A=+—HIFE

19. STATUTORY DEPOSITS AND OTHER ASSETS

19. ZEBEREMEE

2021 2020
—E—& 2R
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHT FAET
Hong Kong Securities Clearing BEEFPREEBRAE
Company Limited (“‘HKSCC”) (T&EB&HEHED
Contribution fund deposit REETEE 100 100
Admission fee deposit WANE 7 & 100 100
The Stock Exchange of ERBMERZMBRAR
Hong Kong Limited
Compensation fund deposit EEESRE 100 100
Fidelity fund deposit BERETEE 100 100
Stamp duty deposit ENTEM T & 5 5
405 405

ERESEERAERAR | 225K
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

20.

& M w R MW

HE_ T —F+_A=+—HLEE

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
The following is a list of the Company’s principal subsidiaries
as at 31 December 2021 and 2020:

Name of subsidiary

WEAR AR

Place of incorporation/
establishment and
kind of legal entity
S Itk
EEBRER

20. RIBARZIRE

Particulars of issued
share capital/
registered capital
ERiTRE,/
HMEREE

MFTARZE-_—FER_E-_ZFF
+ZR=+—HZARBEIERBA
B%E !

Sinofortune Financial
Holdings (BVI) Limited

Sinofortune Financial
Holdings (BVI) Limited

Stockmartnet Limited

TRABRAT

Sinofortune Securities Limited
(“Sinofortune Securities”) (Note 1)

EREFARAE (ERES)

(M5E1)

IFN-GT Financial Holdings Limited

IFN-GT Financial Holdings Limited

Sinofortune Property Limited

ERUEBRAD

Aceview International Limited

RRERERAD

GoHi Holdings Limited

GoHi Holdings Limited

British Virgin Islands,
limited liability company
ERRELEE BRAR

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

&8 BRAR

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

British Virgin Islands,
limited liability company

RERYES BRAR

Hong Kong, limited
liability company
B8 BRAF

British Virgin Islands,
limited liability company
EREEHE ERAT

British Virgin Islands,
limited liability company
ERELEE BRAR

611,700 ordinary shares
of US$1 each
611,7008%
SREBIZETZEER
HK$3

3BT

HK$77,000,000

77,000,000 7T

1 ordinary share
of US$1 each

1RERERIZT
2 BBR

HK$1

&7

1 ordinary share
of US$1 each
1REREEIET
ZEBR

35,000 ordinary shares
of US$1 each
35,000 B REEIETT
BB

Attributable equity
interest
and voting power
held by the Company
FARFHEE
REEERIRTE
As at
31 December
®+=R=+-H Principal activities and
2021 2020 place of operations
—2Z-F "T°ZTHF  IEEBREEMA
% %

100 100 Investment holding
100 100 RERk
100 100 Investment holding
100 100 RERK
100 100 Securities and futures
brokerage and securities
margin financing services
in Hong Kong
100 100 REBUSZESKBAE
KL REFRESRH
BR%
100 100 Investment holding
100 100 RERk
100 100 Property holding in
Hong Kong
100 100 REBRENE
100 100 Investment holding
100 100 REER
100 100 Investment holding
100 100 REZK
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HEZZ-—F+"/8=+—HILFE

20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20. MMBARZIRE (&

B

Attributable equity
interest
and voting power
held by the Company
FRRFAERS
BEEmRERE
. . . . As at
Place of incorporation/  Particulars of issued 31 December
establishment and share capital/ o
kind of legal entity registered capital ®+=R=+-H Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary AL/ LB R BETRE 2021 2020 place of operations
WEARAE EEERER AMESHE —F--F “T°ZF TEEBREE MY
% %
FNEBHAREZHBIRAE  PRC, foreign wholly- Registered capital 100 100 Provision of education
(transliterated as Shenzhen owned enterprise of RMB40,000,000 information and
Sinofortune Education consultancy services
Investment Consultancy in PRC
Company Limited)
(“Sinofortune Education”)
MIEEYERELABRAE  FE HNEEELE SAMELRR 100 100 RPEREAEER
(FEE#E)) A %40,000,0007¢ KBRS
FYERBEESSBELEERAT  PRC, limited Registered capital 95 95 Precious metals
(transliterated as Shenzhen liability company of RMB20,000,000 brokerage
Guoyin Brilliant Precious Metals and spot trading in PRC
Limited) (“Guoyin”) (Note 2)
MIEREEEEBLEERAE FE ERAH AMERS 95 9% RHRARFETELL
(TEIsR)) (Rf5E2) AE#20,000,0007 RHRERS
EERAARERESZERAE  PRC, limited Registered capital 99.67 99.67  Sales of motor vehicles,
(transliterated as Chongaing liability company of RMB150,000,000 provision of agency
Sheng Yu Hong Jia services and accessories
International Trading sourcing in the PRC
Company Limited
(“Sheng Yu Hong Jia") (Note 3)
EERANEEREZERAE  FE BERAH SAMELRR 99.67 99.67 RAEHESE
(M&aahz)) (izE3) AR %150,000,0007 RAURERE
RE#RE
FNEBEMREERABRAT  PRC, foreign wholly- Registered capital 100 100 Investment holding
(transliterated as Shenzhen owned enterprise of HK$50,000,000 in the PRC
Huayi Biotechnology
Group Company Limited
(*Huayi Biotechnology”)
MIERENMVEERBRRE  FE HEBERE AMELRR 100 100 RAERERR
(FEERENHR) 50,000,000/ 7t
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Bt %5 ¥ &= MY 5E

BE"Z—

T+ ZA=t+—HLEFE

20. RtBABRZIRE (&

Attributable equity
interest
and voting power
held by the Company
FRRFAERS
BEEERIEERE
. . . . As at
Place of incorporation/  Particulars of issued 31 December
establishment and share capital/ o
kind of legal entity registered capital ®+=R=t+-H Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary AL,/ B R BETRE/ 2021 2020 place of operations
WEARAE EEERER AMESHE S —T-ZF TEEBREENY
% %
FIEERBEYREBRAT  PRC, limited Registered capital 20 90 Inactive
(transliterated as Shenzhen liability company of RMB5,000,000
Huayi Health Biotechnology
Company Limited
(‘ Huayi Health”)
FEEREEMREBRRE  FE ERAH HMELRS 20 90 BEH
(FEERRE)) A& #5,000,0007T
ZREEXE (R BRAT PRC, limited Registered capital - 51 Inactive
(transliterated as Huayi liability company of RMB5,000,000
International Culture (Shenzhen)
Company Limited
("Huayi Culture”) (Note 4)
ERERE (R BRAF HE BIRAE AMERS - 51 BEH
(MR L)) (i5t4) A E 15,000,000
Notes: B -
1. Sinofortune Securities allotted 10,000,000 new shares to its holding 1. EEHFN _E—FN\AZ+EOBEHEHE

company on 24 August 2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, Sinofortune Education, a
wholly owned subsidiary, acquired an additional 15% equity interest in
Guoyin for a consideration of approximately RMB1,000,000 (approximately
HK$1,090,000). The excess of the attributable net asset value of the
15% equity interest in Guoyin over the consideration paid, amounted to
HK$5,418,000 was credited to accumulated losses of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, Guoyin, a 95% equity-owned
subsidiary, acquired an additional 6.67% equity interest in Sheng Yu Hong
Jia for a consideration of approximately RMB6,410,000 (approximately
HK$6,990,000). The excess of the consideration paid over the attributable
net asset value of 6.67% equity interest in Sheng Yu Hong Jia amounted
to HK$5,554,000, was charged to accumulated losses of the Group.

Huayi Culture was deregistered on 9 July 2021.

2R /N B EC #£10,000,0008 #1 A& 19

2. HEZ

TTEE+RA=+—HILEFE

2EWE AT ERANS WIS R
15% %1 » B4 AR #1,000,0007T (49

1,090,000 7T)

o BliR16%REFEEEEF

BEEHENAENETE#5,418,0008 7T
BstATEEREE

3. BE_Z_EF+_RB=+—HLEE>
KRB EEISW R 2 I B A BRI E
BASh R ERING.67%RIE  NENARE

6,410,0007% (496,990,000 7T) °

BNRE

FBH AL E6.67%RIEEGEEZEN
EEE 55,554,000 0 ERAEBERHE

Bk

4. ERXIENRZZE_—FtBNBAFEH-
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HEZZ-—F+"/8=+—HILFE

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affect the results or assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

RBARZIRE (&

LRI EERARHEAERERAE
EENIBEZEZNBAT -EF
o N EMNB AR ZERRENR
BERITR

length.
2021 2020
—g-—F S
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHTT AT
Company’s commitment to provide KABREREB B AT
funding to subsidiaries if called REEEZ KA 30,243 32,253

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, there are no contingent
liabilities relating to the Group’s interest in the subsidiaries.

Material non-controlling interests

The total non-controlling interests as at 31 December 2021 is
approximately HK$220,000 (2020: approximately HK$226,000),
of which approximately HK$379,000 (2020: HK$367,000) is
attributable to Guoyin and HK$280,000 (2020: HK$271,000)
attributable to Sheng Yu Hong Jia. The non-controlling interests
in respect of each of other subsidiaries are not material.

Summarised financial information on the subsidiaries
with material non-controlling interests

The following table lists out the information relating to Guoyin
and Sheng Yu Hong Jia, subsidiaries of the Group which have
a material non-controlling interests. The summarised financial
information presented below represents the amounts before
any inter-company elimination.

ERESEEEBRAF |

— = —

——

—FFR

R_E_—FR_Z_ZTF+_-AH
=B UEAEAEERHE AT
ZHEmZHRE R

BEARIEZERE RS
N_E-—F+ZB=+—8> JEE
fE R 4REEA9220,0008 T (ZE - &
£ £9226,000587T) > EHEIRELA
379,000 7T (ZE _Z 4 : 367,000
7T) K B% A 5h 3 FE15280,0008 7T (Z &
=4 1 271,000 7T) o A EEMZM
BABMIFERER L RE Ko

BEXRIFERESZMBAR ZME
BRHE

TR AEEMBHEE ERIFER
BazWBARBERKREAMLREZE
Bl "X 25 ZzMBEMBREERNA
BIEEE R4S
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20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20. MMIBARZIRE (&
Summarised financial information on the subsidiaries BEEXRIEERERZB AT ZMT
with material non-controlling interests (continued) BREBE &

Summarised statement of financial position HER R E
Sheng Yu Hong Jia Guoyin
BAhE ER
2021 2020 2021 2020
—E--§ ZZIZHF —E-—F = S
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T#ET THET FET FHET
Current 8
Assets BE 197,954 94,499 12,286 11,944
Liabilities &% (113,921) (12,514) (328) (338)
Total net current assets MEEELFE 84,033 81,985 11,958 11,606
Non-current JERE
Assets BE 832 314 7,813 7,597
Liabilities =X = (144) - -
Total net non-current assets FERBEELFE 832 170 7,813 7,597
Net assets EEFE 84,865 82,155 19,771 19,208
Capital to be contributed by FEREREIACER
non-controlling interests - - (1,219) (1,186)
Capital to be contributed by the Group ~ AEEFTIAZE R - - (10,975) (10,672)
Non-controlling interests FEER R 280 271 378 367
Summarised statement of profit or loss and other B REMEENAFEEE
comprehensive income
Sheng Yu Hong Jia Guoyin
BAhE E R
2021 2020 2021 2020
—EC--F ERIERE —EC-fF “ZCZE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T#ET THET FET FET
Revenue Wt 23,297 67,800 - 81
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETSRMATER (B518) 378 (2,005) 23 (134)
Income tax expense PREMA % - - = -
Profit/(loss) for the year ERiEH,/ (8 378 (2,005) 23 (134)
Other comprehensive income Htz2mlA 2,332 5216 199 1,021
Total comprehensive income EQ Nt 2,710 3,211 222 887
Profit or loss allocated to ENEEFERERZIER
non-controlling interests 1 (5) 1 (5)
Total comprehensive income ENEEFERERY
allocated to non-controlling interests ZHERALE 9 12 11 46

1 82 Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2021



NoTeEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M EHRER M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HEZZ-—F+"/8=+—HILFE

20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20. MMBARZIRE (&
Summarised financial information on the subsidiaries BEXRFERESZB AR ZME
with material non-controlling interests (continued) BREEE &)

Summarised statement of cash flows BEREXTE
Sheng Yu Hong Jia Guoyin
BiaihE Eif]
2021 2020 2021 2020
—E_—-&§ —ECEREF —E-—-F “ERIEE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT TET FET TET
Net cash (used in)/generated from R @A) S EE
operating activities Z2R&FE (8,277) 2,433 (208) (92)
Net cash (used in)/generated from REEZH @H EXE
investing activities ZHEFE (681) 109 212 6,739
Net cash generated from/(used in) REEZHEL/ (FA)
financing activities ZIREFE 2,128 (168) - -
21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 21. RBEATZERE
2021 2020
—E—%F —ETEF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FAEIT
Cost of unlisted investments in REE QB ZIF LTREMA
associates 23,851 22,700
Share of post-acquisition losses DI EBEIE M
and other comprehensive income Hitt2mU A 1,270 1,270
Impairment loss recognised EERRERBE (23,180) (23,180)
Exchange realignment FE R R E (1,259) (790)
682 -
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& M w R MW

HE_ T —F+_A=+—HLEE

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 21. REEARZED (&
Particulars regarding the associate are as follows: BEBE/B ZHBHIANT -
Attributable equity
interest
and voting power
held by the Company
T RRRAHES
REEaRigRiE
Place of As at
. 31 December
Incorporation/ _
establishment and Particulars of ®+=A=t+-H Principal activities and
Name of associate kind of legal entity registered capital 2021 2020 place of operations
SRR P
WEQARAE BRiEEERER HAMEFHE —T--F “Z°ZTF TEZBRER MY
% %

FFBEZEREERRZHL  PRC, limited Registered capital 38 38 Provision of trading
BRRAR liability company of RMB100,000,000 platform for precious
(transliterated as Shenzhen HE BRAE AELA metal and provision of
Qianhai First China AE100,000,0007¢ related consultancy
International Commodities services in the PRC
Exchange Centre Limited) ROEREESBRS
(“Qianhai First China”) T & RS ARE

AIFEEZERERR S0
BRAR (TAIREZE)

MIBHERFRHNEERAR PRC, limited Registered capital 40 - Inactive
(transliterated as Shenzhen liability company of RMB50,000,000 BEE
Si Te Ecotechnology Company ~ H1E] AR AT HAMELS
Limited) (Note 1) A #50,000,0007T

FIBERFRREERAT
(Ft5t1)

Note: M sE

1. The associate was incorporated on 29 March 2021. The Group’s ZMERANR 2 —F=ZAZ+h1H

commitment to contribute registered capital of this associate, if called, at
31 December 2021 amounted to RMB19,440,000 (2020: RMBNIl).

SR AEEBR - —F+Z8
=t+—BABHZHEATNEMER W
WER) HE AR®19,440,0007 (ZEF =
TEAREZT)
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21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 21.
Qianhai First China

REEQRZz#E=s (@)
ABEE

Summarised financial information of Qianhai First China

FIBEEZHMBEHEE

2021 2020
—EZ—F === 5
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET AT
Current assets MNEE 36,466 58,400
Non-current assets EREEE 203 1,314
Current liabilities P =R (36,299) (35,949)
Net assets BEFE 370 23,765
2021 2020
—E-—F —ERIEE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHTT BT
Revenue W = 13 571
Loss for the year FREE (23,725) (1,303)
Aggregate amounts of translation RgBHE QB 2
reserve arising from translating of the BAFIREMELEZ
associate’s financial statements PEREBEESRE 330 1,515
Total comprehensive (loss)/income M| (BB) A LLLE (23,395) 212
Unrecognised share of (loss)/income S RFESBENL (B518) WA
for the year (8,890) 81
Cumulative unrecognised share of loss stk FERE(LESE (22,559) (13,669)

ERESEERAERAR | 225K
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21.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 21.
Qianhai First China (continued)

Summarised financial information of Qianhai First China
(continued)

Reconciliation of the summarised financial information to the
carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised in

the consolidated financial statements:

REEQRZz2#Ex (&

AIBEE (&

FIBEEZHBEEHBE (7

MBENBEERRES

AR P HESD

ZIRBERAR Z o 2 BREENHR !

2021 2020
—E-—£F —E2IEF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET TFAETT
Net assets of Qianhai First China FIBEEZEESE 370 23,765
Proportion of the Group’s ownership in ZNEBRAIEEEZ
Qianhai First China FREDHT 38% 38%
The Group’s share of net assets of AEBEGLAIBEEES
Qianhai First China BETE 140 9,030
The Group’s unrecognised share of REBFRNRETDEIGZEE
loss for the year 8,890 -
Goodwill on acquisition included in FARBBERBD A2
cost of investment in associate WiEmE 14,150 14,150
Impairment loss recognised on interest FREAE AT 2~
in associate (Note) EREREREE (M) (23,180) (23,180)

Carrying amount of the Group’s interest ZE BRI BEEZEH
in Qianhai First China REE

Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2021
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
Qianhai First China (continued)
Summarised financial information of Qianhai First China

(continued)
Note:

In the prior year ended 31 December 2017, Qianhai First China suspended its
business operations as a result of the implementation of review by the PRC
local government of the laws and regulations governing the operations. In this
regard, impairment loss on interest in this associate was fully recognised in the
consolidated financial statements for that year, and the Group ceased to account
for the associate using the equity method of accounting.

Up to the end of the reporting period, the PRC local government’s review of
the laws and regulations is still in progress, accordingly, no adjustment on the
impairment loss previously recognised on the interest in associate is considered
to be made in the consolidated financial statements of the current year.

Cumulative share of loss of this associate amounted to HK$22,559,000 (2020:
HK$13,669,000) was not recognised as impairment loss on interest in this
associate was made in the consolidated financial statements.

Litigation against Qianhai First China

As at 31 December 2021, Qianhai First China has some
unresolved legal cases relating to the contracts dispute with
some investors and involving the total claimed amount of
approximately RMB2,924,000 (approximately HK$3,566,000)
(2020: approximately RMB3,853,000 (approximately
HK$4,569,000)). According to the legal opinion obtained
from the Group’s PRC lawyer, the PRC lawyer opined that
from recent judgments, the courts tends to rule in favour
of the investors in claims of similar nature, therefore it is
likely Qianhai First China may have to compensate these
investors accordingly. The Group considers that the associate
has sufficient financial ability to compensate the claim from
investors, therefore no further provision of liabilities needed to
made by the Group.

Commitments in respect of Qianhai First China

21.

e MR RMNE

BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

REEQRZz#E=s (@)
ABEE (&
FIBEEZMBEHFE ()

B -

BE_Z—tF+_A=+—HLBEEE A
PAREM T AN E EEE R A RERET
FE O RBEHEUEACEEY -RILEMS > N &
BMERARNZREZ AEBERENZEENREH
BERRTURD MAEETBRAREGZE
HBE AR ETERE

BEERSHR PEMABFDEBEERER
At REBRAFEZ GV BREINABE
PR EE AR 2 Bm R 2 BRI LR

FE(LZ S A B 2 RetF51822,559,0008 T (ZF
T4 113,669,000 7)) WA ThE B4R
EMBRRFHZHE AT 2R 2 HERBIE

sHHEAIEEEZFR
W_E-_—HF+_A=+—H aE
BEFAETMABAZHETRES
ENMMERRNERES TS KA
REBEFHNARE2,924,0007T (89
3,566,000587m) (ZEZF I AR
#3,853,0007T (494,569,000 75) ) < 1R
BEEAERNTEEMREZEZEER
RO EEMBAE BERAHA R P
FEUEERRS  AREEPMMEREF
REEEENHR AL E EROTEE
BEEEEZEREE AEERAH
ENPABENYRENUEERE
BRE ALEAEEEEE—THIRES
B

BRI BEEZRIE

2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET AT
Group’s commitment to provide funding 2% B 72 2 K B [0 711 /8 B FE IR
to Qianhai First China if called B 2K 23,169 22,531

T —F5R
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22. INVENTORIES 22, 78
2021 2020
—E—& —E2TEg
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET
Finished goods X G 42 144
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an BRARSIILSABRZEETED
expense and included in profit or loss is as follows: M
2021 2020
—E—% === 5
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FAETT
Amount of inventories sold BEFETEH 21,527 63,093
23. TRADE RECEIVABLES 23. BEWEZHRE
2021 2020
T —F —EEE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET AT
Trade receivables arising from BHRULEBMES
securities brokerage business: FEW B Z 708 -
Margin clients REBEER - 2,433
Cash clients ReEER 41 1,099
Hong Kong Securities Clearing ERAPREEERAT
Company Limited (“HKSCC”) (net) (TEBHEHE) BB 214 466
Trade receivables arising from AEBSMES
trading of motor vehicles FEUN & 5 =18 1,917 11,837
2,172 15,835
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TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Receivables arising from margin clients

Trade receivables from margin clients at 31 December 2020
are repayable on demand, bearing interest at prevailing market
rates and are secured by clients’ pledged securities which
are listed on the Stock Exchange with a total market value
of approximately HK$15,457,000 as at that date. The Group
considers that the credit risk arising from the receivables from
margin clients is significantly mitigated by the client’s pledged
securities.

Receivables arising from cash clients and HKSCC

The settlement terms of the receivables arising from cash
clients and HKSCC are one or two trade days after the trade
execution date.

Aged analysis of receivables arising from securities brokerage
business is not presented as management of the Company
considers that the aged analysis does not give additional value
in view of the nature of this business.

Receivables from trading of motor vehicles
The receivables from customers in respect of the trading of
motor vehicles are due in 120 days from date of billing.

The trade receivables amounted to approximately
HK$1,917,000 (2020: approximately HK$7,447,000) from
customers arising from trading of motor vehicles that were
past due but not impaired at 31 December 2021. Management
of the Group is of the view that the related customers had a
good track record of credit with the Group. Based on past
credit history and its financial background, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances are still considered to be fully
recoverable.

Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk
arising from trade receivables are set out in note 43.

T —F5R

23.

e MR RMNE

BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

BWE S HE (&

FBlREEERMRIE

R _E_EFE+ A =+—HNEW
RESCFPZEWESHNIBEBBREK
BE RRTMBHNESE  TURE
RERZFT Lz BiHES (RzANE
ME#Y15,457,00058 70) fEHEIF o K&
ERARWREEELRBEBREEN
EERBEATENERESMALR

/N
Mo

BWREERRERGHZMIE
BRREERREBEEZRANE
TREARE—IMERZBAZM -

ENBHELCEFZME AR EE
JE 58 %% BR e 70 A7 b BRAE AT BEIMB (B >
KERIZEBREEZRKRIEZ
AREC AT ©

B SEE SmMIE
MAEBZRRERRNBESHHRE
HHEREST120B M EIHT

BREEZESEDN1,917,00087T (ZF
T 497,447,000 70) MBI E B
BEREBR _E_—F+-_/A=+—
HEAAERFHE AEBRSTEER
AERERERAEEHERTFERT
HRoBBEBTNEELRENAETHES
S EEERAHRNEEERIREE
BAREE BERDERATURE2U
[B] > [A It % 55 7L 52 5 45 6R 5T IR R B
o

ERMAEREERRKEWE 5 HIE
FTEEEERRZE—DFBEHIH
51430
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23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
The following is an aged analysis of the trade receivables
arising from trading of motor vehicles based on invoice dates at
the reporting period:

23.

FEWE % ™RIE (&
REAEESZERBESRERRSE
HIERERAMZREDTIOT

2021 2020

it p St 2

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAET

0 to 30 days 0ZE30H - 3,132
31 to 90 days 31E90H - 316
91 to 180 days 91&180H - 7,148
181 to 365 days 181&365H 1,917 800
Over 365 days 365H U k& - 4441
1,917 11,837

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the
reporting period is the carrying amount of trade receivables.
Other than the amounts receivable from margin clients, the
Group does not hold any collateral as security in respect of its
trade receivables.

The carrying amount of the Group’s trade receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

RB|EPR > RREERRAEKES
MIAZREE RERFRRETEPARE
Sy REBMEMERWRE ZHIERA
EEIIE IR G (R HE4R o

FEERBEZREZREEZAT
E85E :

2021 2020

—E—%f === 5

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHT AT

Hong Kong dollars BT 255 3,998
RMB AR 1,917 11,837
2,172 15,835
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24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

4. BAFEFAARMZEKRAZER

BE
2021 2020
—E-—F === 5
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# T T T

FFEHRERE

Unlisted equity investment

Movements in unlisted equity instruments are as follows:

JFEMRETIRZEFHWNT

2021 2020

—E-—£ B TEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHT FAETT

At 1 January W—HB—H - 9,997
Gain on change in fair value REEEH W - 1,164
Disposed of during the year FRHE - (11,161)
At 31 December R+ZB=+—H - _

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group acquired
30% equity interest in MIREMEITER (R BRAR
(Nan Rui Biotechnology Group (Shenzhen) Company Limited)
(“Nan Rui Biotechnology”) for a consideration of RMB9,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$9,997,000). Nam Rui
Biotechology is an entity established in the PRC engaging in
biomedical laboratory project investment. According to the
Articles of Association, the number of directors in the board
of Nan Rui Biotechnology are three and the shareholders
agreed that the Group would not nominate any representative
to be a director of Nan Rui Biotechnology. Therefore, without
significant influence or control, the equity investment was
classified as financial assets at FVTOCI with changes in fair
value recognised in fair value through other comprehensive
income reserve (“FVTOCI Reserve”).

ERESEERAERAR | 225K

BHE_Z—hhF+A=+—HI*F
B AEBRREREEYREER G
) BRAE (FEHEEWRIE) 30%8
7 R EBA AR 19,000,0007t (KIER
9,997,000 7T) - mInEMR A —1
R ERI AR EEYREREREIE
BERENSE -RIFHEASZEME /&
BEYREEEEEEAEA = A
KREREAEEFABRAEAREKS
EHEYREES - FIb EUES K
FEYTFNBERT REREWRDE
AHENFEFAHMZEBAZ S/
BE MAFELFABILRATE
SAEMEEWRAGE (MRAFES
AEMEEWARE]) °
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24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (continued)

On 24 December 2020, the Group entered into an agreement
with an independent third party to dispose of 30% equity
interest in Nan Rui Biotechnology for a consideration of
RMB9,500,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$11,161,000).
Completion of the disposal took place on 27 December 2020.
Upon the completion of the disposal, the FVTOCI Reserve
amounted to HK$1,106,000, which was attributable to the
Group’s investment in Nan Rui Biotechnology, was transferred
to accumulated losses. Details of the disposal are set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 24 December 2020 and 30

25.

December 2020.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS

4. BAFEFAARMEEKRAZER

BE (&
N_E_EF+-_B-_+MHME k&
BRBYE=As]utpE MEHER
HmEMMEIONKRE KBAARKE
9,500,0007T (B9% 711,161,000
7T cHEFEER _Z_ZTE+_4
Tt+tHER O REEEEREME
AEBREHREYHENKEREWG
ZEAFESAHMEZEWAFEE
1,106,000 B Tt HBEERFEHEE -HE
FEFEFEENALADHBEA_ZE -
F+-_ A 4+NHKR_E_ZTE+_
B=+HZAffe

BRATEAAREZENEE

2021 2020
—Eg_-—F == 3
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHTT BT
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong MR &HEHZBRAES 1,448 1,198
Unlisted equity investment (Note) JEEHRERE (M5 10,854 17,199
12,302 18,397

Analysed for reporting as: BERDTOT
Non-current assets EREMEE 10,854 17,199
Current assets REEE 1,448 1,198
12,302 18,397
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25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group entered into a limited
partnership agreement with ARAESEEIR M EEH L (transliterated as
Chengdu Lan Bao Kun Business Management Centre) (the “General Partner”)
for 50% ownership investment in a limited partnership, AEREETRE (BEEIE
Ay (transliterated as Chengdu Lan Bao Zhen Business Management Centre)
(the “Limited Partnership”). The Group acted as a limited partner in the Limited
Partnership with injected capital of RMB30,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$33,324,000). According to the limited partnership agreement, all decisions
related to the relevant activities of the Limited Partnership are made by the
General Partner, which is independent from the Group, and the term of the
Limited Partnership is five years from the issuance date of the business licence.
The General Partner has the right to extend the term of the Limited Partnership.

Pursuant to the terms of the limited partnership agreement, upon termination
of the Limited Partnership, any surplus assets of the Limited Partnership, after
payment of termination expenses, wages, social insurance expenses, statutory
compensation, tax liabilities and outstanding debts, shall be divided among the
partners in proportion to their respective paid capital contributions. The principal
asset of the Limited Partnership is a 90% equity owned PRC subsidiary, f%#535=
REEIRBER AR /AT (transliterated as Chengdu Jia Bao Yao Yin Medicine
Technology Company Limited) (“Chengdu Jia Bao Yao Yin”), which is principally
engaged in investing and participation in new medicine development projects
in the PRC. In September 2019, Chengdu Jia Bao Yao Yin entered into a joint
development agreement with a business partner to co-operate in the joint
development of three new medicines. In October 2019, Chengdu Jia Bao Yao Yin
entered into an agreement to acquire the patent of a medicine from the business
partner.

The fair value of the Group’s interest in the Limited Partnership as at 31
December 2021 was estimated to be HK$10,854,000 (2020: HK$17,199,000),
which was measured based on discounted cash flows from the patent of a
medicine held by and certain new medicine development projects undertaken
by the subsidiary of the Limited Partnership using the discount rate of 20.3%
(2020: with discount rates ranged from 6.18% to 19.48%) per annum. Loss on
fair value change of the Group’s interest in the Limited Partnership amounted
to HK$6,735,000 for the year (2020: HK$15,732,000), are included in “other
income and losses, net” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Details regarding the fair value measurement are set out in note 43.

ERESEERAERAR | 225K
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e MR RMNE

W E_EB-_—F+A=+—HLEE

BRATFEAABHRZEMEE (@)
i -

BE_Z—AE+_BA=+—HLEE£&£E
B EERMCEEEPL ((EEEAB AL 5T
ERGEHZ UREEREBLEMBERE
TCEZERL (BREBRE)) Z50%EHE R &
EELEREBLENEREBA EABELRA
F2 #30,000,0007T (895 5233,324,000587T) ° 1R
ERGBHE RERSBOEXMERMEHEEN
FIAREHHBIRAEENEESBE AL
BREREGBLENPERASENRBEEZARER
F EREPAERILIREREGBLEZFH-

BEERGBEHZZGR RAERAGBEELL
BoRENBRLIAS - ITE- HERBRER ETE
BE-RNMBEERHAEEEFR ARABD
EZAMBFEERRAGBARRSSAHEY
BZHANE - EREBEENTEEERER
90% 1 ai < BT B A B) Al & 52 TR IR BR R R i
BRAT (THEERER)  HIBZRERER
DEPENERBEE - R _2—NFALA M
WERRRA—REBAERHIIHORER
FOUGBMERE=ZBNEN - N _F—hEF+
B B REREBEZSEBHITIULHZEUN
BEEEY HAR

RIEZ—F+ZB=+—H ZxEBERNER
BB LENER 2 A FEME 210,854,000 7T
(ZZE ==& 117,199,000 T) v ENERE
BrEHBABRANEYEF RAZENE
FTHEHZBEENCEMBRESAEFE (BRE
AFF20.83% (ZTZZF  BIBRENF6.18%E
19.48%))  AREE  AEBRBREB L ENRE
HZ AV EEEE46,735,0008T (ZEF
£ 115,732,000 7T) > st A EEEREMEE
WARRATE AU A R F518F 58]

ERATESBZFBHMNHMEAS.
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26. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 26. FE(TFRIA ¥ R HMEUWRIE
RECEIVABLES
2021 2020
2% _ECEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT THET
Deposits paid for acquisition of BEEESE BENERE
motor vehicles for resale (Note (a)) (MI5%(a)) 123,536 43,165
Advance payment for acquisition of BE—EYEZBNRIE
a property (Note (b)) (5% (b)) 1,707 1,660
Other deposits and prepayments Hitig s RFEIRIE 1,982 865
Total deposits and prepayments HE RFENHRIE4EEE 127,225 45,690
Other receivables HpEwkIa
Reclassified from deposits paid for ENMOEEEEERE
acquisition of motor vehicles for B #%E (WaE@)kkc)
resale (Notes (a) and (c)) - 5,684
Value added tax recoverable AJ UL Bl (E R 1,382 2,051
Advances to a subsidiary of the BHTFEREBELEWB AT
Limited Partnership (Note (d)) Z B (MI5E(d)) - 11,858
Sundry receivables T TE FE W RN IE 3,993 3,291
Total other receivables H W R IB 48 28 5,375 22,884
132,600 68,574
Analysed for reporting as: ABERDMUWT :
Non-current assets EREEE 1,707 1,660
Current assets TENE E 130,893 66,914
132,600 68,574
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26. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

NoTeEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M EHRER M

For the year ended 31 December 2021

W E_EB-_—F+A=+—HLEE

26. FAIFRIAHE R HE Mt EKRIE

RECEIVABLES (continued) (#)
Notes: fI5E -
(a) Movements of the deposits paid for acquisition of motor vehicles for resale (a)

are set out below:

BEEBEAEZENRSEHHIIMT ¢

2021 2020
—E-—F ZEIEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFHET THET
Balance at 1 January W—B—HZ &8 43,165 20,686
Deposits paid during the year FERBELEE 96,557 40,797
Deposits refunded during the year FRBRERSE (1,305) -
Decrease in deposits paid during the year: ER B &R/ :
Transferred out and formed cost of BHWERIEBEREZRA
motor vehicles purchased (18,098) (1,174)
Offset against deposits received HIEE WIS BREEHM DA
with remaining amount reclassified to AEAMEUERIE (L)
other receivables (Note (i)) - (11,665)
Impairment loss recognised for the year FRERDBEEE (B )
(Note (i) - (7,918)
Exchange realignment PE A2 3,217 2,439
Balance at 31 December W+ RA=+—H2&& 123,536 43,165

In prior years, the Group made deposits payments amounted to
RMB10,502,000 (approximately HK$11,665,000) to a purchase
supplier (Supplier A as referred to in note 32(a)) for the acquisition
of motor vehicles for resale purpose and, in this connection,
received deposits amounted to RMB3,100,000 (approximately
HK$3,443,000) from a customer (a third party) for sales of
motor vehicles. The deposits paid to the purchase supplier of
approximately HK$11,665,000 and the deposits received from the
customer (Customer X as referred to in note 32(a)) of approximately
HK$3,443,000 were included in the deposits paid for acquisition of
motor vehicles and contract liabilities respectively at 31 December
2019.

In December 2020, the Group entered into an agreement with
the Supplier A and the Customer X, pursuant to which (i) the
purchase from the Supplier A lapsed and (ii) the deposits received
from the Customer X amounted to RMB3,100,000 (approximately
HK$3,443,000) was applied to set off against the deposits paid
to the Supplier A, and the remaining balance of the deposits paid
amounted to RMB7,402,000 (approximately HK$8,191,000), which
are unsecured and interest free, are repayable by the Customer X
to the Group by four quarterly instalments, the last of which falls
due in December 2021. Such remaining balance was reclassified to
other receivables.

ERESEERAERAR | 225K

RBEFE ~EEHEEHERS
(EFERA > UM 5E32(a)Frat) B
BESEAEFENESOTRABA
F#10,502,0007% (4911,665,000
B o mMHBLEAFTE (—%H=
B) B E SEREA AR
3,100,0007% (493,443,000 7T) ©
RIE—-hE+-_B=+—H"'B
(JTEBMHER > EE411,665,000
BRAEERER (BEEX WM sE
32(a)ffrilt) $#2%:493,443,0008 B
DR ABNBEREZEERE
HEa\Ee

RIZZZE+ZH  ARE@mEEM
FERAREBXTIL s UL (i)
BHEFBABEEEAMKIIBRE
BEX#aeA AR®3,100,0007T (49
3,443,000%75) » ALK E S H
[EEAZ EE MENERENGTE
B AR 7,402,0007T (498,191,000
BT) AEBREREE HEEXER
NEZEEQHEETFAEE RE
—HR 2 —F+ A3
Rtk TAERWENRDEEHME

RIE
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE_ T —F+_A=+—HLEE

26. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(a)

Movements of the deposits paid for acquisition of motor vehicles for resale
are set out below: (continued)

(if) In the prior year ended 31 December 2020, management
conducted a review of the financial position of the purchase
suppliers and was of the view that as the Group had not fulfilled
its performance obligations under the purchase agreement entered
with another supplier (Supplier B as referred to in note 32(a)), it was
highly uncertain that the Supplier B would complete the sales of
motor vehicles to the Group under the related purchase agreement
entered with the Group, or refund the purchase deposits amounted
to RMB7,064,000 (equivalent to HK$7,918,000) paid by the Group.
In this regard, impairment loss on the purchase deposits amounted
to HK$7,918,000 was recognised in the profit or loss in respect of
the prior year ended 31 December 2020.

In August 2019, a subsidiary of the Company entered into an agreement
for acquisition of the property in the PRC which is intended to be for
own use purpose. The consideration for the acquisition amounted to
RMB1,400,000 which was fully paid by the Group in the prior year. At the
end of the reporting period, the property was still under development and
the Group will gain control of the property upon its completion.

26. FAIFRIA & R E Mt EKRIE

#)
P -

(a)

#)

BERE
(#)

AEZENRSEHHIIMT :

(ii) RHE_Z_TE+_-_A=+—H
IFBAFE EEECHBESHIE
BN BEARRETELS R AH
REAEBRBTHRS —HEER (H
FEREB > 3 W0 B 5532 (a) B i) 3T 32 AY
REHZETHEOS M FHILH
FE 75 B AR % B A 5 B 5T 17 9 4B B8
REHEERAAERBESRE
FEEBFAEACZTNEERS A
EE#7,064,0007T (5527,918,00074
T FEBEREEE MM E
BERS 2 FERE7,918,0008 T
EEAESE T EFE+ A=+

BEEENER PRS-

AZE—NENA ARE—BHBA
af}cuw%qﬂﬂfrﬁﬁmzE)ﬂﬂﬂ%%.ﬁﬂm
= o WENREA AR1,400,0007t° BEH
REBR F—EERHE T - RREER
MEDNEHEMKE AEEBER Y ES
THRESHETFIRE

As referred to in note (a), certain trade deposits amounted to (c) UM (a) iRl RBEE S -2 F
RMB7,402,000 (equivalent to HK$8,191,000) were reclassified to other +ZA=+—HILBEFFEE - ETESZE
receivables in the prior year ended 31 December 2020. Having considered £ AR #7,402,0007t (18 E 528,191,000
the financial position of the Customer X, an impairment loss amounted to BT BEMDEEEMERIIE KL E
HK$2,923,000 was recognised against this receivable in profit or loss in BRAXNHMHBRR R EFEBEETMEZE
respect of the prior year. During the current year, this receivable amounted & L R T8 B 5% Rk (B 5 $82,928,00078 7T © 1Y
to RMB7,402,000 (equivalent to HK$8,897,000) was settled and received AEE > AEBBDE B R BREZER KSR
by the Group. Movements of the receivable are as follows: H AR #7,402,0007T (165 528,897,0007%8
7o) o FEWGR B F R T ¢

2021 2020

—E-—&% T_TE

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHET

At 1 January W—HBA—H 5,684 -

Reclassification from trade deposits paid BENESREEMDE - 8,191

Repayment to the Group mAEBIER (8,897)

Impairment loss reversed/(recognised) FEE B[R (HER 3,135 (2,923)

Exchange realignment & R A% 78 416

At 31 December R+ZB=+—H - 5,684
As at 31 December 2020, the advances to a subsidiary of the Limited (d) RZEZZEFE+ZHA=4+— B » BT F

Partnership (Note 25) amounted to HK$11,858,000 are unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand. During the current year, the
advances were fully repaid by that subsidiary of the Limited Partnership to
the Group.

EREBLE (25 MBATZBH
11,858,000 8 T A EIKIF - R ERIEEK
BE-NREEE EREBLENHRBAT
ERAEEZEEERR -
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PLEDGED DEPOSITS 27. BIEWER
As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s total deposits with bank N BT —F+_BA=+—H KEER
amounted to approximately HK$60,971,000 (2020: HK$Nil), ERRIRITHERAEREZ60,971,000
which carried interest at 3.5% to 4.0% per annum, were B (CEZZFE 28T  FHESA
pledged as security for bill payables facilities granted to the 35%EA4.0%  EABRTFTAEENEN
Group (note 29). ERMEIER (H5E29) °
BANK BALANCES AND CASH 28. SR{THBRRIAE
2021 2020
—E-— === 5
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FAETT
Cash at bank and on hand RITKRFREREE 60,358 107,672
Short-term bank deposits RHERIRITER - 2,140
60,358 109,812
Analysed for reporting as: AEWDAT -
Bank balances and cash IRITHBRRIRE
- trust accounts —(E5EER P 6,116 16,256
— general accounts ——RERP 54,242 93,556
60,358 109,812

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had bank balances
(general accounts) and cash and pledged deposits (Note 27)
totalled approximately HK$86,460,000 (2020: approximately
HK$62,779,000) which are denominated in RMB. The
remittance of these funds out of the PRC is subject to
the exchange control restrictions imposed by the PRC
Government.

The cash at bank and short term bank deposits are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. These
bank balances and short-term bank deposits carried interest at
interest rates from 0% to 0.3% (2020: 0% to 0.1%) per annum.

T —F5R

RZE_—F+-"FB=+—H > &&E
BEUARBIMEZRTHERR (—RER
B RIBEURBIKEER (:27) &
F4986,460,0008 7T (ZE_FF | &
62,779,000/ 7T) ° % EIEE H A
B 15 9h 5 o0 B AT B 6 2 S0 BE B Y P
fR o

RTREREMRTERERESE
B EA MRS 2 IR1T - A FIRTT
SR R R IRIT AR A B 0% E0.3%
(ZEZZF 1 0%E0.1%) FH K5t
B

e
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HEZZ - —F+_F=+—HIEFE

29. TRADE AND BILL PAYABLES

20. ENEBRERRR

2021 2020
—E-—5F —EIE2HF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET

Payables arising from BH R EBTELENRIEA !

securities brokerage business:

Margin clients FREBEER 97 9,680
Cash clients REFR 6,312 6,627
Bill payables e E4% 63,288 -
Other trade payables HhpEr B 5 I8 6 6
69,703 16,313

Payables to margin clients are repayable on demand. The
settlement terms of amounts payable arising from cash clients

are one or two trade days after the trade execution date.

Aged analysis of payables arising from securities brokerage
business is not presented as management of the Company
considers that the aged analysis does not give additional value
in view of the nature of this business.

The following is an aged analysis of bill and other trade

payables based on invoice dates:

BARETERRBAREREERE -]
EEFELEBROMBANETRS
AEIE - MERZ B R

BERBFELEBZEE  xRFEIE
B A IR E 0 AT L AT (R BRIME(E &
REZIZEBREEZRUREZ
BREZ DA o

BNRBEREMENEZRIERERE
FRRZEREORAT :

2021 2020

T —F —ECEE

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHTT FAETT

91 to 180 days 91FE180H 38,045 -
181 to 365 days 181E365H 25,243 -
Over 365 days 3658 A k£ 6 6
63,294 6

Bill payables were secured by the pledged deposits (Note 27).

A RBEUCRRERIESER (U5
27)
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e MR RMNE

BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

CONTRACT LIABILITIES aHaE
2021 2020
—E-—f TECEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FAEIT
Advance payments from customers HRB(RIE 19,237 -

Contract liabilities of the Group, which are expected to be
settled within the Group’s normal operating cycle, are classified
as current.

The Group recognises revenue when related performance
obligation is satisfied. Contract liabilities at 31 December 2021
represents advance from customers in relation to trading of
motor vehicles.

The Group receives payment from customers based on the
billing schedules as stated in contracts. Payments are usually

AEEERETAEEEEEEERN
BENGNEEIERRE -

7 52 [ % 5 A A AL R A0 35 A R R BB U
moRIE—F+IA=1+—HHNEG
MEBRARMSEEZAE P I

FERRBEGRHBHRERBRD
ERBEBRIA -RRBREEERITAE

received in advance of the performance under the contracts for tHE SR Z B U ER
sales of motor vehicles.
2021 2020
—E-—%F 2R
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHTT FAETT
Revenue recognised for the year R|EHUTAENEE
that was included in the contract EHRNFABRERNE
liabilities balances at the beginning of
the reporting periods - 675

For the contracts with original expected duration of one year
or less, as permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price
allocated to unsatisfied performance is not disclosed.

ERESEERAERAR | 225K

HRRVOBEHRBRS —FHUTHE
B EEBMBRESENB155EAFFH
BRT DEERERTENNRZE
BATIHE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HEZZ - —F+_F=+—HIEFE

31. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 31. HMEGTRIER EETTRIE
2021 2020
—g-—F —EERE
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FET
Sundry payables and accruals MBI RIEREST I 1,458 1,798
32. PROVISIONS 32. #&fE
2021 2020
—E-— TECEF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FET
Provision for loss on onerous BEEEHEEEE (Hta)
contracts (Note a) 12,700 12,350
Movements of the provisions during the year are as follows: FRBEZEHUWT
2021 2020
T —F —EEE
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAEIT
Balance at 1 January N—A—HZ%&& 12,350 21,549
Recognised in profit or loss RIERER
Provision for onerous contracts BRINEEGEE
reversed - (4,248)
Legal claim settled by the Group HASEEZ R AERE
(Note b) (M 5¥b) - (5,823)
Exchange realignment b 2 R 350 872
Balance at 31 December R+ A=+—HZ&%% 12,700 12,350
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NoTeEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021

32. PROVISIONS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

EREEEEBARRAE | ZFZ

During the prior year ended 31 December 2019, the Group entered into
purchase agreements with three third parties (“Supplier A”, “Supplier B”
and “Supplier C”) under which the Group has agreed to purchase motor
vehicles for resale purpose from these purchase suppliers and in this
connection trade deposits amounted to RMB10,502,000, RMB7,064,000
and RMB1,057,000 were paid by the Group to the Supplier A, Supplier
B and Supplier C respectively. Completion of the purchase of motor
vehicles from these suppliers has not taken place up to 31 December
2019 and management of the Company, having considered the terms of
the relevant agreements and the underlying business circumstances of the
Group, considers it appropriate to make provisions for onerous contracts
amounted to RMB3,588,000, RMB10,414,000 and RMB203,000 relating
to the agreements with the Supplier A, Supplier B and Supplier C
respectively, which were recognised in the profit and loss in respect of the
prior year ended 31 December 2019.

During the prior year ended 31 December 2020, the Group completed
the purchase of motor vehicles from the Supplier C, management of the
Company considered it appropriate to reverse the provision for onerous
contracts amounted to RMB203,000, as the Group has discharged all
its obligations and liabilities under the relevant purchase agreement.
Reversal of the provision of RMB203,000 (equivalent to HK$227,000) was
recognised in profit or loss for that year.

During the prior year ended 31 December 2020, the Group entered
into an agreement with the Supplier A and a customer (“‘Customer X”),
under which the purchase of motor vehicles from the Supplier A lapsed.
Details of this agreement are set out in note 26(a). Management of the
Company considered it appropriate to reverse the provision for onerous
contracts amounted to RMB3,588,000, as the Group has released all
of its obligations and liabilities under the relevant purchase agreement.
Reversal of the provision of RMB3,588,000 (equivalent to HK$4,021,000)
was recognised in profit or loss for that year.

The provision for loss on onerous contracts amounted to RMB10,414,000
(equivalent to HK$12,700,000) (2020: RMB10,414,000 (equivalent to
HK$12,350,000)) outstanding at 31 December 2021 represents the
management’s best estimate of the costs and other charges that are
required to settle the obligations and liabilities under the purchase
agreement with the Supplier B.

—FFR

e MR RMNE

F+A=+—HLEFE

ET " —

32. #ifs (&)

M 5E -

(a)

REE_Z—HAE+_B=+—HI1B
FEE - AERR=Z2F=H (IiER
Al TEEREB ) R MEEBEC) 5T LR
WE BRI AEEERERZSHEEMR
EEEESEUFEERR BAEER
thEHEEmA HERBREEECHBIX
B Z#%e AR10,502,00070 AR
7,064,000 /2 A 1,057,000 EE

—NE+ZB=Z+—BERERIEZ
SHEBREAE MAADEEEBLE
B EN G R ASEENERAESR
3R BHEEmA HEEBRMEERC
SN EARNEESND R HEEE
AR #3,588,0007t~ AR #10,414,0007C
B AR 203,000 Th B E  sltREE—
Z-NE+B=+—HIBEFEERE
TP

REE_Z-_ZF+_BF=+—HIB%F
EF’K$IEWH1%FE%ﬁCE%E>w$O$

NEEEBRABOEEENEEBEARE
203,000 B E  RREAKXEEERBTH
PAERMREREE TSR RE T
O AR 1203,0007T (HE 7227,000
HT) ENEEER PR

REE_ZE-_SE+ZA=+—HIEBF
FE - AERAEEEBAR—LEL (FF
X1) FIM— e I R EEAEE
FREERRM LR EN S IEE N M T
26(a)c AABERERARCEEENE
& AR 13,588,0007c /v E » RRAAKRE
BERMERERREREBEBTNMER
RS- BREE#H AR 153,588,0007T (18
E 124,021,000 7T) B E F18 5 PR

RZEZ—F+ZA=+—HHKREEN
BEENEBEB ARE10,414,0007T (18
E112,700,00087T) (ZZZZFE AR
#10,414,0007c (tHE 712,350,000 7))
HEEBHAEAREREBNIRE HEE
THEBEREEMENRAREMEZA
REMGE
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32. PROVISIONS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(o)

In April 2019, a litigation was lodged against a subsidiary of the Company,
under which the plaintiff (a customer of the Group) claimed for repayment
of a sum of RMB5,000,000 which was paid by the customer to the
Supplier B. It was held, in the first instance of the trial in the PRC court
in September 2019, that the Group is required to repay the sum of
RMB5,000,000 to the plaintiff. The subsidiary thereafter filed an appeal
against the court’s judgment to the PRC relevant court. In this connection,
provision for claim and legal fees amounted to a total of RMB5,195,000
was made in the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
prior year ended 31 December 2019.

During the prior year ended 31 December 2020, the final judgment was
issued by the PRC court in favour of the plaintiff, the Group thereafter
paid a sum of RMB5,000,000 to the plaintiff and the litigation closed.
In addition, management of the Company is of the view that it is highly
uncertain to recover the sum of RMB5,000,000 from the Supplier B,
accordingly, this receivable from the Supplier B has not been recognised in
the consolidated financial statements.

33. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

32. 8B (&
st : Oﬁ)

(o)

RIZE—AFEMNA > —RFBHEHHER
B—EREARRE Bt BE (KER
—ZEP) RERBREXZTPRAMERB:
FHIFE AR 5,000,000 R ZZE—H
FNBEFBEERETER AEER
ABRRSHEZREARES5,000,000

o 5% M 8 A B] BE & LA B ¥ R [0 R Bl AR
Eﬁ,ﬂnkﬁiuﬁwmtﬁﬁf’ﬁ“r)\lz%”ﬁ%
5,195,000t N R KR EMEBERAEEEHE

“E-hF+ZA=+—HLEBEFEZ
REMBRRIRER
RBE_Z-_ZF+_A=+—HLLBE

FE REVARIERREBRNVEREH R
AEEEERARSEZATARTS,000,000
7T BRFABER LN ANFBEERER
%> A FEEBULEA K #5,000,00075 75
JEE RHEE > RIE 2% FE UR 1 FE FE BRRIE 18 ok
PR E M IEIRR PR -

33. SRITRH g™

2021 2020
k- el - TZF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FAET BT
Secured bank loans BEFIRITER - 186
Secured other borrowings BIRFEMMER 10,000 -
10,000 186

Analysed for reporting purpose: BERENDTOT -
Non-current liabilities JEREha’E 10,000 -
Current liabilities mEaE - 186
10,000 186
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(a)

NoTes To THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 (ETET
33. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued) 33. RITRHEMMER (&2
f5E -
The maturity of the bank and other borrowings are as follows: (a) RITREMEREEAHZEBUOT
2021 2020
—E-—F —EIEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET THET
On demand or within one year BERE—FA - 186
In the second year FHF 10,000 -
10,000 186
The bank loans at 31 December 2020 were secured by the charges RIZZZFE+_A=+—HWIRITER

ERESEEEBRAF |

over the Group’s leasehold land and buildings with the carrying amount
of HK$24,331,000 as at that date (Note 16) and corporate guarantees
executed by the Company (Note 39). These bank loans were denominated
in HK$, and carried interest at HK$ prime rate less 2.25% per annum. The
bank loans were fully repaid by the Group and the charges discharged
during the current year.

The other borrowings at 31 December 2021 are secured by the charge
over the Group’s leasehold land and buildings with the carrying amount
of HK$22,718,000 as at that date (Note 16) and corporate guarantees
executed by the Company. These other borrowing are denominated in
HK$, carried interest at 9.125% per annum, and are wholly repayable in
October 20283.

T —F5R

HAEEZHELIMEBFHL (R&A
BYBR E (& 524,331,0005870) (MfsE16) 1E
BIEFE S TARAATREQBIER (ME
39) cZFRITERHLUBTIE LEE
LB TREENRE2.25EE AEE
ERAFERYEEZSRITERL AR
st o

RIZEZ—E+"A=+—AMNEMER
UAEEZHAE T RIEFTED (REM
REE 422,718,000 7T) (MizE16) 155
EH THRAQATREATRER 2EHM
ERUBTEHE EFFEA9.125% 0 AR
TR =F+ARHEE
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34. LEASE LIABILITIES 34. HEAR
2021 2020
g%  —T-%s
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FAEIT
Present value of lease ENEEaEZIRE
liabilities payables:
Within one year —FRN 1,282 1,410
After one year and within two years —FEREMEN - 1,246
1,282 2,656
Less: Amount due for settlement B AR REaEE TR 12EA
within 12 months shown A EIHBEIERIE
under current liabilities (1,282) (1,410)
Amount due for settlement after FIRIERBIBEE TMNM2ES%Z
12 months shown under ZIHREERIE
non-current liabilities - 1,246
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to HEaEBERNMEFEHIEEER
lease liabilities is 4.75% (2020: 4.75%) per annum and lease MELEEL475% (ZE_ZF
liabilities are denominated in RMB. 4.75%) B EBBEUARKEE-
35. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 35. REMREER
Movements of the deferred tax liabilities, which are attributable MAEMBITERGZRELEIRESEE Y
to accelerated tax depreciation, are as follows: BEI T
2021 2020
—E—— TE TR
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FAEIT
Balance at 1 January R—B—HZ%&& 2,745 2,927
Credited to profit or loss (Note 13) s AIE@ (FI5E13) (182) (182)
Balance at 31 December R+B=+—HZ&& 2,563 2,745
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35. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (continued) 35. BREREER (&
Deferred tax asset has not been recognised in the consolidated EERRAETEE BB a A AR » BE L
financial statements in respect of unused tax losses available e BEmrM o BLUIRHB R R
for offset against future profits due to the uncertainty of future ZRBAMBEEERDEEREEE
profit streams. As at 31 December 2021, the unrecognised RIE-_—F+-A=1+—H &~&EE
tax losses of the Group amounted to approximately Z AR IER1E49456,095,00078 7T
HK$456,095,000 (2020: approximately HK$396,800,000). (ZZE =4 : £9396,800,000E7T) ©
These tax losses have no expiry date except that approximately F£49189,418,0008 TN &S -
HK$189,418,000 will expire from 2022 to 2026 (2020: EZ_RFHERER CEEE
approximately HK$137,315,000 will expire from 2021 to 2025). #9137,315,000B TR N _E-_—F=F
“EThFREEMm N ZERIEE
BilmEEmER-
No deferred tax liabilities have been recognised in respect HRAEBEEREFHZENBELAB 2
of the unremitted earnings of PRC subsidiaries because the BREHSK BEMEBAFFTENRAAR
Group is in a position to control the dividend policies of these AR B O] UL ENBE AR 2k
subsidiaries and it is probable that such differences will not be EERMEDELEREBEEE KT
reversed in the foreseeable future. As at 31 December 2021 T ERIFEIZF+ZIA=+—8"
and 2020, the unrecognised temporary differences in respect ERAAEREGETEINB AT ZKE
of the unremitted earnings of the PRC subsidiaries attributable HBEMNZABRREREBRIINOAR
to the Group are approximately of RMB53,831,000 and #%53,831,0007T /2 A 154,049,000
RMB54,049,000 respectively. JTe
36. SHARE CAPITAL AND PREMIUM B 7 Rz g3 {8
Number of Share Share
shares capital premium Total
RiHBE BE RRipiME it
'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THET TET TET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SREBE.0IBTZLER
Issued and fully paid BEITREE
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020, Sy SR
1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021 “ETEE+ZHAZ+-A
“Z2T-F5-F-Hk
“ZT-F+-"RA=+-H 7,748,958 77,489 1,673,299 1,750,788

The authorised ordinary shares of the Company comprise
10,000,000,000 shares (2020: 10,000,000,000 shares) with a
par value of HK$0.01 per share (2020: HK$0.01 per share).

ERESEERAERAR | 225K

KRB AT 38 A% 8 3510,000,000,000
f% (—ZEZZ4 1 10,000,000,0008%)
REEA00IET (CEZF 8K
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37. RESERVE

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Fair value through other comprehensive income
reserve

Fair value through other comprehensive income reserve
represents cumulative gains and losses arising on the
fair value change of equity instruments at fair value
through other comprehensive income. Such reserve will
be transferred to accumulated losses when the related
equity instruments are disposed of or are determined to
be impaired.

Special reserve

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal amount of the shares issued by the
Company and the aggregate of the nominal amount of the
issued share capital and share premium of Sinofortune
Financial Holdings (BVI) Limited acquired pursuant to the
corporate reorganisation undertaken in preparation for the
listing of the Company’s shares on GEM on 11 January
2002.

Statutory reserve

PRC companies are required to appropriate 10% of
statutory net profits to statutory reserve, upon distribution
of their post-tax profits in accordance with the PRC
laws and regulations. A company may discontinue the
contribution when aggregate sum of the statutory surplus
reserve is more than 50% of its registered capital. The
statutory surplus reserves shall only be used to make
up losses of the companies, to expand the companies’
operation, or to increase the capital of the companies.

Translation reserve

Exchange translation reserve comprises foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies set out in note
3.6.

37. {#E
(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

BRATEFAARMZEBAFE

BRATEFARMEARAREE
BERATESFAEMEANRAZ
BomTRENAFEELIMEEN
RetiEm o AR AN ARE
m T B W 5 E 2 (B R
ERFERE

LEFIRES
AREBZHRETHIEARQBIR
BEREBRARARMNR_-ZEZE
—F—A+—HBHEGEM LA
ETrESHERETROZE
B B Ffr W BESinofortune Financial
Holdings (BVI) Limited B 2517 J& s
HERRDRERER 58

EE A

RBEPEERRER  PEIAF
B9 R E R AR 1R i A B 0 B m0A
ERFEEBEEMABNI0% -2
REVEEBFRBBNBAEA
HEMEARNS0%E > AT A {Z Lk
BB -ATEEBRRERTRAER
MABNBE - BARENEE
HEMABNEL -

ERfHAE
ERREECERBIEBFYHR
RIMEELERPMAIIEEZE &
#E D ARZE M 5E3.6P7 5 & 5T EUR
BRI o
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(a)

ERESEEEBRAF |

The Old Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme under
which persons working for the interest of the Group are
entitled to an opportunity to obtain equity interest in the
Company. The number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the share option scheme
and any other share option schemes is not permitted to
exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in issue from
time to time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. The maximum number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of options granted and
to be granted pursuant to the old share option scheme
and any other share options schemes of the Company
to any person (including both exercised and outstanding
options) in any 12-months period up to the date of
grant of options shall not exceed 1% of the shares of
the Company in issue, without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders.

The old share option scheme was adopted pursuant to
a resolution passed on 17 December 2001 (“Old Share
Option Scheme”). The purpose of the Old Share Option
Scheme is to provide the people and the parties working
for the interest of the Group with an opportunity to obtain
equity interest in the Company, thus linking their interest
with the interest of the Group and thereby providing them
with an incentive to work better for the interest of the
Group. Under the Old Share Option Scheme, the Board
of Directors of the Company may grant options to eligible
employees, including Directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company.
Additionally, the Company may, from time to time, grant
share options to outside third parties for settlement in
respect of goods or services provided to the Group.

HK$1 is payable on the acceptance of the option per
grant. Options may generally be exercised at any time
during a period to be notified by the Board to each
grantee provided that the period within which the option
must be exercised shall not be more than ten years from
the date of grant of the share option.

T —F5R

e MR RMNE

BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

38. MmhgtEstaE

(a)

Bt
TRBEREBRESE  ABE
EEN @ ITFZALTRHESE
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BIRERE LA TRIREBER
st 8 R EMAEMBRESE A
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B T"REBBERBFKEET
BR1130% - FRIFERF A AT KRR
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BRI EMA12@ B HE - RIRER
IRiEst 8 AR BEMEMBR
B8 EERRERTENAL
ZHERE (BREETERERT
EEkE) ETERESRRE
BTz ERSHEE TREBB
TRBBEHTRMNI%

AANBRER _EE—F+_A4
+EtHEBR —EREERNE
Bt E (TEBERESTE) °
EEREFZIEEDARERF
HmIEZ AT REFRHBEERS
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(a)

38. MmhgtEstE (@)

The Old Share Option Scheme (continued) (a) ERERED @)
The exercise price is determined by the Board, and will THEEHEEEET BARER
not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the T =FZz2REEE ()RR
Company’s shares on the date of grant; (i) the average MRBEHBERZWSEE ;()RHD
closing price of the shares for the five Trading Days REEFHHBRREERZHEZ
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the FHWRHE ; R(i)RMDEE-
nominal value of a share.
The Old Share Option Scheme adopted by the Company KRABRZIEE—F+ZHA+t
on 17 December 2001 had expired on 16 December HEMmzEERESEN-E
2011. The Company has adopted a new share option —F+ A+ HEEH K
scheme on 21 June 2012 (“New Share Option Scheme”). NP _E—_FB_+—H
RaNFT B IR ST & (THT BB AR M 5t
2l1) o
No options under the Old Share Option Scheme were HE_Z - —F+°"B=+—H
granted, exercised, forfeited or lapsed during the year IEFE EERERESEIET
ended 31 December 2021, RORERG R W~ 1710~ BOR UK EL,
PRV
The following table discloses the movements of the share TREEHRE_S_ZFE+_-H
options granted under the Old Share Option Scheme —t+—HILEFEREBEERRRES
during the year ended 31 December 2020: SR HERE 8 .
Outstanding Outstanding
as at Grant Lapsed as at
Exercise  Exercisable 1 January during during 31 December
Name of grantee Date of grant price period 2020 the year the year 2020
KogoTE omt o
‘ ) —A-f +2A=1-8
AEAES RUES 188 PHE R AT EREL FREH HRITHE
Ms. Lai Yuk Mui 13 April 2010 HKS0.419  13/4/2010 - 12/4/2020 3,186,158 - (3,186,158) -
(executive director) “2-2f 04198 “Z-ZEME+=HE
REISL (H7ES) mA+=8 23EmATog
Mr. Liu Runtong 13 April 2010 HKS0.419  13/4/2010 - 12/4/2020 31,861,575 - (31,861,575) -
(non-executive director) “2-2f 04198 “Z-ZEME+=HE
YBERE FUTES) mBE+=H ZR2ZEMA+CH
Professor Zhang Benzheng 13 April 2010 HKS0.419  13/4/2010 - 12/4/2020 2,124,105 - (2,104,105) -
(independent non- 25§ 04198 ZF-TFME+=HE
executive director) mBE+=H ZR2ZEMA+CA
RAEHE BUFHTES
Sub-total for directors 37,171,838 - (37,171,838) -
e
3 employees 13 April 2010 HKS0.419  13/4/2010 - 12/4/2020 45,668,257 - (45,668,257) -
=4fE8 “2-%f 041980 C“E-SE£MBA+=HE
mA+=H “2CEEMA+CH
Sub-total for employees 45,668,257 - (45,668,257) -
BE/Nat
Total 82,840,005 - (82,840,095) -
i3
Weighted average exercise price HK$0.419 - HK$0.419 -
MEFLHTHEE 041987 0.419%7T
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(a)

(b)

ERESEEEBRAF |

The Old Share Option Scheme (continued)
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Company did not
have any share options outstanding for the share options
granted under the Old Share Option Scheme.

The New Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a New Share Option scheme
under which person working for the interest of the Group
are entitled to an opportunity to obtain equity interest in
the Company. The number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the New Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes is not
permitted to exceed 30% of the shares of the Company
in issue from time to time, without prior approval from
the Company’s shareholders. The maximum number of
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of options
granted and to be granted pursuant to the New Share
Option Scheme and any other share options schemes of
the Company to any person (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-months period up to the
date of grant of options shall not exceed 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue, without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders.

The New Share Option Scheme was adopted pursuant to
a resolution passed on 21 June 2012. The purpose of the
New Share Option Scheme is to provide the people and
the parties working for the interest of the Group with an
opportunity to obtain equity interest in the Company, thus
linking their interest with the interest of the Group and
there by providing them with an incentive to work better
for the interest of the Group. Under the New Share Option
Scheme, the Board of Directors of the Company may
grant options to eligible employees, including Directors of
the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares
in the Company. Additionally, the Company may, from
time to time, grant share options to outside third parties
for settlement in respect of goods or services provided to
the Group.

T —F5R

4= AH
17107 O = |
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38. MBRRtEstE (=

(a)

(b)

ERREStE (@
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(b)

The New Share Option Scheme (continued)

HK$1 is payable on the acceptance of the option per
grant. Options may generally be exercised at any time
during a period to be notified by the Board to each
grantee provided that the period within which the option
must be exercised shall not be more than ten years from
the date of grant of the share option.

The exercise price is determined by the Board, and will
not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares on the date of grant; (i) the average
closing price of the shares for the five Trading Days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share of the Company.

No options under the New Share Option Scheme were
granted, exercised, forfeited or lapsed during both the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Company did not
have any share options outstanding for the share options
granted under the New Share Option Scheme.

38. MBRRtEstE (=

(b)

MEREsE (2
BNEREFAMSIERZE
REZM1BT - BRE—RARN
EEgRANSABRAZHBANE
AR EIT6E R E Z 1T
PR EB % H BB IR 1 B BRE 5T 158
Bt

TEEBHEFTEE  KAER
TI=FEZRBER ()F28K
PREHBBRZWHE ;(i)&RM7
RERREABHAAERZAEZ
FHRHE ; K& ABKRAE
He

BE_ZT_—FRIEBZESF
+TZA=+—HLEMEEE#§
EMBRESEETNEREE
R TR BOR B R RN

RN_E_—FRZIBEZEF+Z
B=+—B A28 HEEHR
B ERES SR EREH
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39. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, the

EXEMEALRS
FRILFREMBRRAMSNREZ
R RAEFI > ZEBREARFTLUT

Group had the following significant related party transactions BEABREALRS .
during the year:
2021 2020
—E¥-—F —ERIEE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHAT TAET
Interest expenses paid to a BARNE]—RES
director of the Company FRHFERE - 7
Rental payment to a director of BAAB—%EER
the Company S HHEE 1,370 213
2021 2020
—E=— —EIEHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FAETT
Key management compensation FEBEEABZHM
Salaries and other short-term fre kHMEBRESRT
employee benefits 2,775 2,775
Post-employment benefits BERAEF 36 36
2,811 2,811

Notes

(ii)

As referred to note 33(a), the Group’s outstanding bank and other
borrowings amounted to HK$10,000,000 at 31 December 2021 (2020:
HK$186,000) are secured by corporate guarantees given by the Company.
In the opinion of the Directors, no material liabilities will arise from the
above corporate guarantee which arose in the ordinary course of business
and fair value of the corporate guarantee granted by the Company is
insignificant.

Pursuant to the rental agreement entered into between a subsidiary of the
Company and a director of the Company, Mr. Wang Jiawei (‘Mr. Wang”),
on 1 November 2020, Mr. Wang leased an office premise to the subsidiary
at monthly rental of RMB95,000 for two years from the date of rental
agreement.

ERESEERAERAR | 225K
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0] W33 (a)Ff iRl AEBMP T Z—&F
+ZB=+—HBREBRITREMBER
710,000,000 75 (ZE-Z £ : 186,000
D) UAR AT RENABIERIELT
BEEDRA REHBEBPT L EAT
ERTIBGELEEAEGRE BEARAFMREY
NEERZAFELAEAK-

(ii) BEALBD—BNBAREARATEREE
ERALE(ERE)R_B22FTF+—
B—HsJxzBEEWZ  EREZRABEA
R 595,000 Z MW B AR HE—EHA
= BAERZEABES BT
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40.

41.
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HE_ T —F+_A=+—HLEE

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 40. FEFHRERS
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group REEZZEZZF+"A=+—H1t
entered into an agreement with a purchase supplier and FE - AEHE—ZRBHERBKR %
a customer, pursuant to which the deposits received from BRI tE B B A WER
the customer amounted to RMB3,100,000 (approximately £ AR #3,100,0007T (493,443,000
HK$3,443,000) was applied to set off against the deposits 70) ERFIREZ N TIREHERNRZ
paid to the purchase supplier, and the remaining balance of SOMEZNFHEBNZSR TERA
the deposits paid to the supplier amounted to RMB7,402,000 F#%7,402,0007% (498,191,000 7T) H
(approximately HK$8,191,000) are repayable by the customer ERRNEFEESPEER ZIFRER
by four quarterly instalments. Details of this non-cash SEE B E M EE26(a)(i) ©
transaction are set out in note 26(a)(i).
RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 4A1. MEFBHFIEEAGRZHIR
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from TREMRBEAEERMEZHMESE
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. aBEzE88 8RRERIEFRSEH-
Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which MEFTHMEFERERETEELES
cash flow were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the RERERNDEAMEETHMESE
Group's consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows BEMEZRENERKKIRERE
from financing activities. ZzB8fE-
Lease Bank Other
liabilities borrowings borrowings Total
HEaRE RITHER HitifEwR k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
As at 1 January 2021 R_Z_—F—HF—H 2,656 186 - 2,842
Change in financing cash flows: MERERELE
Proceeds from other borrowings REEMERZFERE - - 10,000 10,000
Repayment of borrowings BRZER - (186) - (186)
Repayment of lease liabilities HEERZER (1,526) - - (1,526)
Interest paid BRFE - 1) (152) (158)
Total changes in financing cash flows RERSRELHEE (1,526) (187) 9,848 8,135
Other changes: Hitg g
Currency translation difference ERBEER 55 - - 55
Interest expenses FEMZ 97 1 152 250
Total other changes HiBgHas 152 1 152 305
As at 31 December 2021 RIZZ—F
+ZR=+— 1,282 5 10,000 11,282
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41. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 41.

FINANCING ACTIVITIES (continued)

BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

MERBFEERGRZHIR (&

Lease Bank Other
liabilities borrowings borrowings Total
HESE RITER HiER ek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
As at 1 January 2020 RIZZ2F—-F—H 4,935 2,377 - 7,312
Change in financing cash flows: MERERELE
Proceeds from borrowings REBHRZMERE - - 1,140 1,140
Repayment of borrowings BRZER - (2,191) (1,140) (3,331)
Repayment of lease liabilities HEBBZER (2,558) - - (2,558)
Interest paid BRFIE - (45) (7) (52)
Total changes in financing cash flows RERERELHLE (2,558) (2,236) (7) (4,801)
Other changes: Hit25)
Addition of lease liabilities HEBGEZEM 2,945 - - 2,945
Termination of lease KILHE (2,269) - - (2,269)
Lease modification HEET (735) - - (735)
Currency translation difference EiRhEER 189 - - 189
Interest expenses FIEmEx 149 45 7 201
Total other changes Hit 2840 279 45 7 331
As at 31 December 2020 -
+ZB=+—H 2,656 186 - 2,842

ERESEERAERAR | 225K
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

42. TMIADE
REBESHR SETREERTHEE

assets and financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting MERmEWT :
period are as follows:
2021 2020
—E-—%F TECEE
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAET
Financial assets EREE
At amortised cost F7g: 370078
Statutory deposits and other assets EERERAEAMEE 405 405
Trade receivables FEW E 5 =18 2,172 15,835
Deposits and other receivables W& R HME RIS 5,630 23,199
Pledged deposits BIREER 60,971 -
Bank balances and cash IRITHEFRRIRE
— trust accounts —(S5CERE 6,116 16,256
— general accounts —fRER P 54,242 93,556
129,536 149,251
At fair value LA FE
Financial assets at fair value BATEFAEGZSHEE
through profit or loss 12,302 18,397
2021 2020
—E-—5F —E2TEF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET
Financial liabilities E A
At amortised cost FZ IR B AR
Trade payables B B S8 69,703 16,313
Other payables and accruals Hih A IB R st I8 1,458 1,798
Provisions B 12,700 12,350
Bank and other borrowings RIT R EMER 10,000 186
Lease liabilities HEaR 1,282 2,656
95,143 33,303
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including currency risk, price risk, fair value interest
rate risk, and cash flow interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management program
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

Financial risk factors
(a) Market risk

()

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

Transactional currency exposures arise from the
sales or purchase by operating units in currency
other than the unit's functional currency. The
Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk is minimal
as almost all of the Group’s revenue and costs
of the operating units are denominated in HK$ or
RMB, the respective functional currency of the
Group entities, with most of the Group’s monetary
assets, liabilities are principally denominated in the
respective functional currencies of HK$ or RMB.
The Group manages the foreign exchange exposure
arising from its normal course of business activities
and investments in foreign operations by funding its
local operations and investments through cash flows
generated from business transactions locally. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising
from trading of listed equity securities which are
listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong and the
market price change of unlisted investment funds
classified as financial assets at FVTPL. To manage
its price risk arising from these investments, the
Group diversifies its portfolio. The sensitivity analysis
has been determined based in the exposure to
related price risk of these investments.

ERESEERAERAR | 225K
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 43. HMERMBEIEHERKE (&
POLICIES (continued)

Financial risk factors (continued) BHEEBER (&)
(a) Market risk (continued) (a) WSEME (E)

(i) Price risk (continued) (i) 1ESERE ()
At the end of the reporting period, if the quoted RHREHFR HEEESZ
market prices of the trading securities had been 5% MIZ|ME LA K TFES%M
higher or lower while all other variables were held HiMFf BB 2EFT~E K
constant, the Group’s net loss for the year would EEFERNFHEESRAR
decrease or increase by approximately HK$61,000 EFEELEmMRAZSZA
(2020: approximately HK$50,000) as a result of TEZMmALIIG MG
changes in fair value of listed equity securities held 61,00087T (ZCE _FF .
for trading. #950,0007 7T) ©

(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk (i) HERER A TFEFFRERE
During the years ended 31 December 2021 and HEZE_HFRIZ-E
2020, the Group is exposed to cash flow interest F+ZA=+—HILFE"
rate risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing HRZRTHHBHESEDN
market interest rate on bank deposits and bank RITEIUKRIBIT R H
and other borrowings which carry prevailing B ZIRITHM G FE
market interest rates. The directors consider that AEEEHRERENER
the Group’s income and operating cash flows are oBERARERZIWA
substantially independent of changes in market RREREREAEE LR
interest rates. EEZLIES K
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group’s A ZE I —GFRZIZIEF
cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily to +ZA=1+—HB ' &x&EEZ
its variable bank deposits and bank and other ReEnsMERREERE
borrowings. The Group currently does not use any IRIT AR IRIT R E &
derivative contracts to hedge its exposure to interest Mz 2HA R K&
rate risk. However, management will consider BRilmERERTEER
hedging significant interest rate exposure should the HoEEH 2 MERR A
need arise. MmUNERE BEEERE

B P E AT K E o

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, if interest RIBZ—HFR-ZB-EF
rates on the bank and other borrowings had been +ZBA=+—8B EMmEH
decreased/increased by 50 basis points with all MEBHEFTAEZBERT
other variables held constant, the Group’s post-tax IR 1T R E A E R E T [E
losses for the years ended 31 December 2021 and /S EFS0EE By REEE
2020 would decrease/increase by approximately EITZ T HRIZTEF
HK$41,000 and approximately HK$1,000 +BA=1+—HIEFEZR
respectively. REBES DR TR L
%341,000% 7t & 491,000
e
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (continued)
(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, if interest
rates on the bank deposits had been decreased/
increased by 50 basis points with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s post-tax losses for the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 would
decrease/increase by approximately HK$270,000
and approximately HK$471,000 respectively.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group is
exposed to the fair value interest rate risk relating to
the loans receivable. However, the directors of the
Company consider the repayable term of the loans
receivable is within one year, therefore, the fair value
interest rate risk is insignificant.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss
to the Group.

The Group reviews the recoverability of its financial assets
periodically to ensure that potential credit risk of the
counterparty is managed at an early stage and sufficient
provision is made for possible defaults. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis
and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s financial assets relate
mainly to bank balances and pledged deposits, trade
and other receivables. It arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amounts of these instruments. Management has
a credit policy in place and the exposures to these credit
risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.
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43. MBRAMEEBRRBE (&
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus on
the customer’s past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the customer
operates. Debtors with balances that are more than 1
month past due are requested to settle all outstanding
balances before any further credit is granted. Normally,
the Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has certain
concentrations of credit risk as approximately 67% (2020:
approximately 72%) and approximately 98% (2020:
approximately 96%) of the Group’s trade receivables were
due from the Group’s largest trade debtor and the five
largest trade debtors respectively within the brokerage
and securities margin financing services segment and
sales of motor vehicles, provision of agency services and
accessories sourcing segment. However, the directors of
the Company consider the credit risk is limited since the
Group has held certain listed equity securities of clients
as collateral over these receivables from the brokerage
and securities margin financing services segment. For
the sales of motor vehicles, provision of agency services
and accessories sourcing segment, the customer’s past
history of making payments are good and no default
record. Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables
are disclosed in note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which
is calculated using a provision matrix approach. As the
Group's historical credit loss experience does not indicate
significantly different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the loss allowance based on past due status
is not further distinguished between the Group’s different
customer bases.

43. MBRAMEEBRRBE (&

MBRBRRERR (&

(b)

FEERE ()
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

ERESEEEBRAF |

Credit risk (continued)

The following table provides information about the
Group’s exposure to credit risk for trade receivables
arising from trading of motor vehicles as at 31 December
2021 and 2020:

4 A
17107 O = |

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Rt #5 ¥ &= MY 5E

BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE

43. MBRAMEEBRRBE (&

MBRBRER (&

(b)

EERE (&)
TREWN _E_—EFER_T_
EE+_A=-+—HAEE@E
BEAEEBSZREWE ZHIEE
BERRZER !

2021 2020

it TERIRE

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHT FAETT

Current (not past due) BRER (R Hp) - 4,390

1 to 30 days past due BEHA1E30H - 5,583

31 to 60 days past due #EA31E60H - 1,423

More than 180 days past due HHAB4E180H 1,917 441
Gross trade receivables FEREWE ZRIBLEEE

at the end of the year 1,917 11,837

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past one to two years. These rates are adjusted
to reflect differences between economic conditions
during the period over which the historic data has been
collected, current conditions and the Group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of the
receivables.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for
expected credit losses for trade and other receivables
and deposits paid prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits
the use of the lifetime expected loss provision for all
trade receivables and 12 months expected credit losses
for other receivables and deposits paid. The Group has
assessed that the expected credit loss for trade and other
receivables and deposits paid were immaterial. Thus
no loss allowance for trade and other receivables and
deposits paid were recognised.

T —F5R

BHBEEXDBERBE—EMF
NWERBERERTESH &F
EER 75 I BRIE 1 BB W SR AT BY
B BRI R R A EEH
FE R I8 7 TR AR 77 18 HA BYAE 75 1%
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)

43. MBRAMEEBRRBE (&

MEBRBRER (&

Liquidity risk (c) HEEZEE
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests EEEANDESCRBREES
with the board of directors. The Group manages liquidity TREEF - AEEERFTEH
risk by maintaining adequate reserves and reserve BREGETRHE TEHERTE
borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast ARERRERE UkkHE
and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles MEEREEZIHSHH  BUE
of financial assets and liabilities. BREES R
At 31 December 2021, the Group had bank and other A _E_—F+_"_HA=+—H"
borrowings with carrying amount of approximately REFERTREMERZREE
HK$10,000,000 (2020: approximately HK$186,000) (Note #910,000,000%8 7T (ZEZF4F .
33). #9186,000787T) (fF5E33) ©
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities AEBEREEN IR SHABRR
as at the reporting period, based on the contractual BEEHNRLBRAMZEHABN
undiscounted payments, was as follows: T
On
demand Between 1 Total
or within and 2 undiscounted Carrying
1 year years cash flows amount
BRERY RERRE
DIME 1526 MERE IREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET
2021 g%
Trade payables BB S8 69,703 - 69,703 69,703
Other payables and accruals AR RB R EH A 1,458 - 1,458 1,458
Provisions B 12,700 - 12,700 12,700
Bank and other borrowings RITREMER 913 10,760 11,673 10,000
Lease liabilities HESE 1,310 - 1,310 1,282
86,084 10,760 96,844 95,143
2020 ZECEE
Trade payables ENEZFE 16,313 - 16,313 16,313
Other payables and accruals HA T RE R A 1,798 - 1,798 1,798
Provisions BE 12,350 - 12,350 12,350
Bank and other borrowings RITREMBER 186 - 186 186
Lease liabilities HESE 1,506 1,273 2,779 2,656
32,153 1,273 33,426 33,303
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

Certain of the Group’s subsidiaries are regulated by the
Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC”) and are required to
comply with certain minimum capital requirements according
to the rules of the SFC. In addition, the Group’s objectives
when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of the
debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as net
debt divided by adjusted capital. Net debt is calculated as
total debt (including current and non-current liabilities but
excluding current or deferred income tax liabilities as shown
in the consolidated statement of financial position) less
bank balances and cash (including bank trust accounts and
pledged deposits). Adjusted capital comprises all components
of equity (including share capital and premium, reserves,
accumulated losses and non-controlling interests as shown in
the consolidated statement of financial position).
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 43.
POLICIES (continued)
Capital management (continued)
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s
strategy was to maintain the debt-to-adjusted capital ratio
within 50%, which was unchanged from 2020. The debt-to-
adjusted capital ratios as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 were

MBRBREEBRRER (&)

BEXER (@)
rEEBRBE_ZT_—F+°A8
—t+t—HLEFEEEFT_T_TF
E’J%H% BERAREBHEHERAL
#‘Eh?‘SO% RIBT—FER-FE

as follows: THE+ A=+ —HZEBHKSR
%szﬁ EEET .
2021 2020
—E—% TE TR
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT TAET
Total debt B4R 114,380 33,303
Less: Bank balances and cash BIRTTAR KRS
(including bank trust accounts (BIEIRITEERA &
and pledged deposits) BERFEERD
(Notes 27 and 28) (ft5E27 5%28) (121,329) (109,812)
Net debt B% 548 (6,949) (76,509)
Total equity i ] 178,624 206,617
Adjusted capital LA 178,624 206,617
Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio B KRR AL N/A FiEH N/A 3E A
Fair value estimation AFEZMEE

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair
value, by valuation method. The different levels have been
defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) (level 2).

TREBGESEDTUATEFEZ
TMITE-BFRZEHRNT !

e HEEEHERNEEHTHZE
B CRERE) B -

s EZEEWRGAIERE (BR) MHE
CREER) BRZBABE (7
BEFE—RZBRE (BEZH) -
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Fair value estimation (continued)

ERESEERAERAR | 225K

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)

43.

e MR RMNE

BE_Z-_—F+"/A=t+—HILEE
MBERAKREEEEREE (&
AFEZME B

s EBENERUIFREBEUHRERZD
LEBEZEARE (BEHRZ

(level 3). WAKE (F=4 o
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
@Bt F—4 ot 1 F=4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET FTAET AT TET
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—
+=RA=+-H
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFARR
through profit or loss ZEMEE
(Note 25) (f5£25)
- Securities held for trading —-REEERS 1,448 1,448 - -
- Unlisted equity investment —FLTRERE 10,854 - - 10,854
At 31 December 2020 s
+-A=+-H
Financial assets at fair value BATEFARR
through profit or loss ZEMEE
(Note 25) (M5£25)
- Securities held for trading —-REEERS 1,198 1,198 - -
- Unlisted equity investment —FLTRERE 17,199 - - 17,199

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, there were no
transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and

Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3.

B ER-BSTE+FC
B=+—B B HRE_HZ
R E AT EHBEE B
FoRTEASARS L o
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)
Fair value estimation (continued)
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

Fair values as at 31 December

R+=B=+-BNATHE

43. MBRAMEEBRRBE (&

[AFEZMEE EF
BHE=BLTFEFAEZEH

Significant Relationship of
Valuation unobservable unobservable inputs
2021 2020 techniques inputs Range to fair value
EXFIHR TARRBARE
ZEZ-§ "I Zg fhER & BARE HE HATEMRRG
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET THET
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
BATES A BGZEREE
Unlisted equity investment 10,854 17,199 Discounted Discount rate 20.3% The higher the discount rate,
cash flows the lower the fair value
FLmRERE 10,854 17,199 HRRERE BIRE 203% FEBREHR ATEHR

The fair value measurement of the Group’s interest in the
Limited Partnership (classified as financial assets at FVTPL as
detailed in note 25) was determined based on discounted cash
flows from the patent of a medicine held by and new medicine
development projects undertaken by the Limited Partnership
with a discount rate of 20.3% per annum (2020: with discount
rate ranged from 6.18% to 19.48% per annum).

AEBPRERGBLEZE (WK
So5FE M N AR AT EF AER
JEREE) ZATFEAENDNERE
REBErEMBAENERSEN RFTK
ENHEREBEENCEHRERERE
BEE HMREASF203% (ZTZ
TFAREXHEN T ESEF6.18%E
19.48%) o
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POLICIES (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

Fair value estimation (continued)
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

(continued)

Movements during the years of the financial assets with Level 3

fair value measurements are as follows:

e MR RMNE

BEZZ-—F+A=t—HIFE
43. MBERAREEBRRBR (&

[AFEZEE &
EHF=RAFEHEZEH (7

RAFS=ZMAFTEFENEREERN

ZEFENEHUWT .
Financial

Financial assets
assets at fair value

at fair value  through other

through profit comprehensive

or loss income Total

BATERA

BAFESA Htt2ZEKA
BRZEmEE ZERMEE k]
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FAT FATT FATT
At 1 January 2020 R_E-_ZF—HA—H 31,703 9,997 41,700
Proceeds from disposal HEMEHIE - (11,161) (11,161)
Fair value (loss)/gain NFE (BB /W@ (15,732) 1,164 (14,568)
Currency translation difference ERMEET 1,228 - 1,208

At 31 December 2020 and RIBE-EE+"RA=+—HK

1 January 2021 “Z”_—%—HF—H 17,199 - 17,199
Fair value loss NTERBE (6,735) - (6,735)
Currency translation difference EINEERR 390 - 390
At 31 December 2021 R_E_—F+"F=+—H 10,854 - 10,854

ERESEERAERAR | 225K

225



NoTes To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBERRMNE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HEZZ - —F+_F=+—HIEFE

44, STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 44, EATHRBIKRER
COMPANY
2021 2020
—S_—f —TTEE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET BT
Non-current asset ERHEE
Property, plant and equipment YRR RS 23 127
Investments in subsidiaries RB AT ZKE 94,221 108,389
Amounts due from subsidiaries NGRS 44,013 63,505
138,257 172,021
Current assets RENEE
Prepayments, deposits and BAMRE TR
other receivables HihpE W =k1E 394 399
Bank balances and cash RITHEGAIRE 6,916 8,391
7,310 8,790
Current liabilities Pt =R
Other payables and accruals H i I R IB K FE 5T RUIE 648 948
Amount due to subsidiaries P& bfY /&8 A Bl "R I8 13,606 13,606
14,254 14,554
Net current liabilities mEEEEE (6,944) (5,764)
Net assets BEEFE 131,313 166,257
Capital and reserves BeZs R %
Share capital (%N 77,489 77,489
Reserves (Note) &5 (M55 53,824 88,768
Total equity b 131,313 166,257

KRB ZHMBRARN B _F=
BE+tN\BREFeHEREET EL
AUTEEAERRE

The Company’s statement of financial position was approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 18 March
2022 and are signed on its behalf by:

Wang Jiawei Lai Yuk Mui
EEE REIs
Director Director
EE EE
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44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 44. RAFIMBRRE (&
COMPANY (continued)
Note:  Reserves of the Company are analysed as follows: MisE : ARABHEBATUWT :

Share-based
Share compensation Accumulated

premium reserve losses Total
RIPEE RPHERE B8l e
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Balance at 1 January 2020 R —Z4F
—B—HzZ4E 1,673,299 21,624 (1,590,095) 104,828
Loss for the year FREE - - (16,060) (16,060)
Transferred to accumulated losses upon BB IR RE S AU B B 43
lapse of share options EREEE - (21,624) 21,624 -
Balance at 31 December 2020 and R TETE
1 January 2021 +-B=+—HEFK
—A—Bz#s 1,673,299 - (1,584,531) 88,768
Loss for the year FAREE - - (34,944) (34,944)
Balance at 31 December 2021 R ——%
+TZA=+—4H
R 1,673,299 = (1,619,475) 53,824
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
Rt #5 B 2

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the 1EBEEBTIEKLERIGEHBERR2AEHR
Group for the last five financial years as extracted from the published BEAEMBEEXEUREERGEHRE
audited consolidated financial statements is set out below: 2 RN

Year ended 31 December

HE+-A=+—-HLEE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
¥ T ZZ-HAFE ZE-N\FE ZE2—tH§
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FTAET TET TET TET
Results e
Revenue W@ 24,182 69,069 326,155 344,831 29,186
Loss before tax BRI A A (32,284) (41,742 (124,666) (32,015) (138,848)
Income tax credit PRSIt % 182 182 182 182 2,545
Loss from discontinued BRILEEXKER
operation - - (9,138) - -
Loss for the year FREE (32,102) (41,560) (133,622 (31,833) (136,303)
Attributable to: FE{E
Owners of the Company AREEEAN (32,090) (41,399) (127,674) (31,213) (136,497)
Non-controlling interests FEIERER (12) (161) (5,948) (620) 194
(32,102) (41,560) (133,622 (31,833) (136,303)
As at 31 December
®+ZB=+—8H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—EZ-§ "2 ZF Z-hE ZZ-N\F Z—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FT#ET FHET TET FiET FET
Assets, Liabilities, and BE BERFERESD
Non-Controlling Interests
Total assets BEEE 295,567 242,665 312,873 412,132 409,576
Total liabilities BREE (116,943) (36,048) (66,897) (33,956) (72,711)
Non-controlling interests 32 (220) (226) (7,428) (13,558) (14,903)
178,404 206,391 238,548 364,618 321,962
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